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Dear Sharehoiders,

I’'m pleased to report to you that 2012 was a strong year for our company. We
grew the overall business nicely, posting total order growth of 48 percent, with our
cloud-based communications segment leading the way with an order growth rate
of 123 percent. Revenue was up 13 percent, including recurring revenues, which
were up 27 percent. We signed 302 new customers during the year. We remained
profitable. Cash and investments ended the year at $80.6 million and we
generated operating cash of $20.0 million, while remaining debt free.

Wae are successfully executing on our two primary strategies — moving up market
in the contact center space, and selling more of our cloud-based Communications
as a Service offering. Our shift to the cloud has been deliberate and aggressive. We
see a unique opportunity and intend to capitalize on it. We recognized early-on
the benefits the cloud affords our customers — increased flexibility, faster
deployment times, lower upfront capital costs, and reduced IT requirements. At
the same time, we’ve found the market to be very receptive to the added
differentiation we offer — a cloud-based solution from a trusted vendor, who can
assure a highly reliable and scalable product, with the breadth of functionality that
we believe is unmatched in the marketplace.

During the year, we completed three acquisitions. The first was our acquisition of
certain assets from ATIO Corporation (Pty). Ltd., a South African-based distribution
partner. The second was our acquisition of Netherlands-based Brightware B.V.,
also a distribution partner. Then in August we acquired Bay Bridge Decision
Technologies, Inc., a leading U.S. supplier of contact center forecasting, capacity
planning, and strategic analysis technology. We see this latest acquisition as a
strategic component of our ongoing success in the high-end of the market.

in 2012 we made a bit of a clean sweep relative to third party vendor comparisons
done by leading analyst firms and media outlets. Gartner once again placed us in
their “Leader’s Quadrant” in its “Magic Quadrant for Contact Center
Infrastructure, Worldwide” report. Frost and Sullivan named us the contact center
systems company of the year, North America, for the third consecutive year.
Nemertes Research selected us as the IP Contact Center Market Challenger
PilotHouse award winner. And CRM Magazine awarded us the service leader in the
contact center infrastructure category.

Looking forward we see a bright future for the company. We are investing in the
business with a target to grow orders at a rate of 20 percent, while maintaining
profitability. We see a strong opportunity to expand our leadership in the contact
center market, especially as it relates to delivering cloud-based solutions. As we
have done in the past, we have near-term plans to extend our core offering into
other market segments, geographies, and customer sizes. In May 2013, we’ll
welcome 2,000 attendees to Interactions 2013 — our annual conference, which
this year goes global for the very first time. Finally, we also look forward to several
exciting new products that will be released by year’s end.

Our focus continues to be the delivery of the most innovative solutions that allow
our customers to provide exceptional service experiences to their customers. We
view this primary objective as the route to increasing sustainable shareholder value.

Don Brown
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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2012 HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Ninth consecutive year of positive
operating results

o $237.4 million total revenues
o $88.6 million, product
o $118.4 million, recurring
o $30.4 million, services

Total revenues up 13 percent from
$209.5 million in 2011

$906,000 in net income
Diluted EPS of $0.04

$80.6 million in cash and investments
as of December 31, 2012

Acquired three companies in 2012
19 percent of revenue spent on R&D

GROWTH UP-MARKET

o 158 orders $250,000+
o Up from 113 in 2011

o 102 orders over $250,000 from new
customers
o Up from 71 in 2011

NEW SOLUTION RELEASES
Interaction Mobilizer™
Interaction Analyzer™
Interaction Edge™

Bay Bridge Decisions™

INDUSTRY RECOGNITION

Gartner, Inc., Leader's Quadrant, 2012
“Magic Quadrant for Contact Center
Infrastructure, Worldwide” report, the
most recent report

Number 208 in the Top 500 Global
Software & Services Companies list,
Software Magazine (twelfth consecutive
year listed)

2012 Company of the Year, Contact

Center Systems North America, Frost &
Sullivan (third consecutive year)

2012 IP Contact Center Market
Challenger PilotHouse award, Nemertes
Research

2012 IP Contact Center Infrastructure
Service Leader winner, CRM Magazine
(second consecutive year)

2012 Cloud Computing Excellence
Award, Cloud Computing Magazine
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PART L.

SPECIAL NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain “forward-lookmg” information (as
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that
involves risks and uncertamties which may cause actual results to differ materially from those predicted in the
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can ‘often be identified by their use of such verbs as

“expects”, “anticipates”, “believes”, “intend”, “plan”, “may”, “should”, “will”, “would”, “will be”,

“will continue”, “will likely result”, or similar verbs or conjugations of such verbs. If any of our
assumptions on which the statements are based prove incorrect or should unanticipated circumstances arise,
our actual results could materially differ from those anticipated by such forward-leoking statements. The
differences could be caused by a number of factors or combination of factors, including, but not limited to,
those set forth in'the Item 1A “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

¢

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

Overview

Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. (“Interactive Intelligence”, “we”, “us™, or “our”) is a leading
provider of business communications solutions. Our principal product is a suite of apphcatwns that provides
customers with a cloud based or on-premises multlchannel commumcatlons platform We are a recognized
leader in the worldwide contact center market, where our software applications provide a range of
pre-integrated inbound and outbound ‘communications functionahty We use this same platform to offer our
solutions for unified communications and, busmess process automation. Our solutions are broadly applicable,
and are used by businesses and organizations in a wide range of mdustnes. including teleservrces insurance,
banking, accounts receivable management, utilities, healthcare, retail, technology, government and
business services.

.Our software has been licensed by customers since 1997. We market and. distribute solutions around the
globe, directly to customers and through a channel of approximately 350 partners of various types. Our
software applications:are available in 23 languages and our solutions have been installed in more than
100 different countries. - :

Our partners and, certain customers become certiﬁed through our professional education curriculum.
Customers are supported by our global support network of company technical professionals and
implementation partners. - . ,

Recent company recognitions include the following:

* ' Gartner, Inc., Leader’s Quadrant, 2012 “Magic Quadrant for Contact Center Infrastructure,
Worldwide™ report, the most recent report;

* - Number 208 in the Top 500 Global Software & Services Companies list (twelfth consecutive year
listed), Software Magazine; ‘

+ 2012 Company of the Year, Contact Center Systems North America, Frost & Sullivan (third
consecutlve year);

e 2012 IP Contact Center Market Challenger PilotHouse award, Nemertes Research

* 2012 IP Contact Center Infrastructure Service Leader wmner CRM Magazine (second consecutive
year); and

* 2012 Cloud Computing Excellence Award, ‘Cloud Computing Magazine.



Industry Overview and Current Developments

The increased use of voice over internet protocol (‘“VoIP”"), cloud-based services, eServices, content
management, business procéss autbmatioh ‘and'Various media types such as social mddia‘ and Short Message
Service (“SMS”) text messaging continue to cause a major shift in business communications technologies.
Organizations in many industries c_Oixtiimq moving from bnc—dim¢nsi0na},_haidware-bas@,privatc branch
exchange (“PBX”) phone systems to multichannel software platforms that support a br'(‘)ad‘ii_st‘df applications,
and are deploying these platforms via a choice of cloud-based as well as on-pretiﬁses's01uiioh offerings. Such
platforms incorporate internet protocol (“IP") telephony and a unified communications approach to bring
networks, information and voice and data applications togethér. This enables organizations to automate
processes to improve organizational efféctiveness and reduce conimmuhications equipment costs.”

IP technologies have allowed many businesses to transfer voiee traffic from circuit-switched networks and
bulky hardware equipment-ta more agile “converged” voice and data networks, applications servers, and
lower-cost end-user devices. One result of this transition is that traditional-PBX phone system hardwars, -
which many established PBX vendors are slowly phasing out of their. product lineups, is being replaced. by
software-based IP PBX and IP contact center solutions. This transition to IP-based products is a key driver in
the sales process, as are increasingly available cloud-based, on-premises and hybrid cloyd-based/on-premises
options to deploy and implement IP-based solutions. "

Cloud-based offerings have service providers maintaining the core communications system in data éenter's
and extending system functionality to customer sites. The cloud-based model, commonly rieferred to as ,
“cloud-based services,” »“host]ed}services,” “on-de‘r_nand §ewices” or ‘:‘_{cﬂlyoud' gompuﬁng,” proyjdqs,, mcreased
flexibility to address an organization’s mission-critical r}eqilirement,sfor,_ scalability, predictability, security and
control. Additionally, the cloud-based modél offers faster deployment times, requires minimal Capital
expenditures for on-premises equipment at the customer location, and reduces information technology (“IT™")
requirements for system administration and maintenance compared to on-premises communications =~
infrastructures. Organizations further benefit as setvice providér$ itiplémient’ enhanced solutions ahd depldy’
new sérvices, monitor network seclrity, and provide disaster recovery support as part of theit overall
service offerings. =~ - ’ S T

o

According to industry analysts at Gartner, Inc., unified communications are the “direct result of
convergence in communication networks and applications.” Micrésoft Corporation (“Microsoft”) has defined
unified communications as a solution that “bridges the gap -between telephony and computing to deliver -
real-time messaging, voice and conferencing to the desktop environment.” The term “unifted
communications” has also been defined in other ways, primarily by vendors that package collections-of . '
products for voice, data, conferencing, video and mobility into single offerings. The convergence of voice and
data communications, typically on TP networks leveraging open standards-software platforms and integrdted
application suites, is  statidard for people, groups and organizations to communicate. Unlified communications
products based on software solutions and equipment such as servers, gateways, and IP-based phone$ and-
end-user devices are proving to reduce administration costs over their proprietary hardware counterparts, while
at the same time enabling organizations to facilitate the integrition and use of éntérprise conithunication and
collaboration methods such as presence management, conferencing, video conferencing, messaging, and other
“unified” features in addition to voice. : e L

Businesses and their customers have long utilized voice communications medid' such as the telephone,
voice mail and the fax machine to interact. The Internet has expanded communications media to include
additional channels for email, web chat sessions, web callback requests, VoIP calls, text messages, videos, and
social media. With improved customer service as an ongoing objective, many companies are deploying
web-oriented applications for email management, knowledge management and web auto response for customer
inquiries and frequently asked questions (*FAQs™), and'web ¢ollaboration and-other online services to raise
service levels. Tools to monitor and respond {o customer comments on sosial media networks are also now
generally available to support customer service initiafives. Though many online services are unified in an
applications approach, most companies still support online media channels using separate email platforms,
web servers, chat servers and other disjointed equipment that can lead o inconsistencies and inefficiencies
across customer touch points.



‘Conventional call centers consist of phone banks and users handling inbound and outbound calls. While -
managing only a single communications channel, these ““call-only” centers still require multipoint systems
consisting of a PBX, an automatic call distributor (“ACD”), and an automated attendant to handle
voice-based interactions, along with optional systems such-as an interactive voice response (“IVR”) system, a
predictive outbound dialer and a call logger. Mahy call centers spend time and money to integrate these and
other disparate phone system devices. Today, many conventional call centers continue the transformation from
call-only centers to multichannel “contact centers” by incorporating all-in-one communications technologies.
Such technologies present email, web interaction, messaging capabilities, SMS texting, and social media
alongside phone calls to offer customers a wider range of contact options and service and support channels.
Given the growing availability and use of cloud-based services, some call centers are findling it more
cost-effective to make the transition to multichannel contact center functionality via the cloud, since
on-premises equipment and integrations are seldom required and capital costs are minimized or eliminated.

An mcreasmgly promment and still | growmg segment of business commumcatlons and customer service
are “mobile customers,” who choose to interact with businesses and perform transactlons using cell phones,
smartphones and tablet devices. This customer segment is the result of cloud-based services becoming more
globally avallable combined with significant numbers of mobile subscrlptlons and devices in use worldwide.
In statistics from its 2001-2011 ITU Wotld, Telecommunication/ICT Indicators dafabase released in June 2012,
the International Telecommunication Union estlmated that 6 billion mobile useér subscriptions had been issued
worldwxde at the end of 2011, equivalent to 87% of the world population. A February 2012 report from
Gartner, Inc. further showed that 1.8 billion new mobile handsets and smartphones were sold in 2011 alone,
up 11.1% from 2010. As a consumer demographic, mobile customers have prompted 4n up-and-coming shift
in the way service is delivered, and organizations have begun addressing their mobile initiatives from a
strategic customer service point of view.

Content management has grown mcreasmgly unportant for orgamzatlons in such mdustnes as insurance,
financial services, and healthcare that circulate large amounts of information internally and externally.
Government agencies and other organizations tasked with-managing confidential. data are also putting greater
emphasis on content management as they. continue to archive information in:larger volumes. Much like newer
software-based solutions for converged voice and data communications and business process automation,
many contemporary solutions for content. management are server-based applications. End-users of content
management systems can. typically range from enterprise business users to. contact center users, insurance
agents and claims adjusters, banking loan officers, healthcare professionals, human resources personnel and
similar users who routinely must access documents and information. in the office or remotely outside the
office. To meet the diverse needs of these end-users, the “virtual file cabinet” approach of a content
management solution allows organizations to easily define file management structures :and retrieval processes
specific to their busjness, user and customer requirements. :

Our Solutions ‘
Overview

Our innovative ‘standards-based software: products and services are developed for contact center
automation, unified communications, and business process automation, as well as for content management,
workforce optimization, and vertical applications including teleservices, insurance, banking, accounts
receivable management, utilities, healthcare, retail, technology, government and business services. Our
solutions can be deployed via our cloud-based model using a data center, on-premises at the customer’s site,
as hybrid cloud-based/on-premises solutions, or as a managed service in which we manage the
communications solution for the customer. :

All-in-one Solution for Communication Applications ,

Our Customer Interaction Center® (“CIC”") software was developed to run on the Microsoft® Windows®
operating system; and our various applications are designed expressly to work: with one another as a
fully-integrated all-in-one solution that does not requiré multipoint hardware, integrations to third-party
products, or computer telephony integration (“CTI”’) middleware. As a true allsin-one solution for voice, data
and process automation, our solution does not require separate systems or integration. For communications,
the CIC solution is capable of processing thousands of interactions per hour. CIC’s all-in-one multichannel



approach further allows contact centers and enterprises to process communications consistently across various
media channels: telephone calls, emails, faxes; voice mail messages, Internet chat sessions, IP telephony calls,
SMS text messages, social media, and generic media such as trouble tickets. Organizations can apply business
rules across media channels and various media types for uniform customer service processes, and for
end-to-end tracking and reporting that improves workforce performance and service quality. Whereas many of
our competitors’ unified communications offerings are_stand-alone products, ar part of -a portfolio of integrated
applications and platforms from multiple vendors, our all-in-one CIC application suite has unified multiple
communications channels inherently since its original development. -

On-Prémises Offerings

As an on-premises server-based solution designed for IP networks, the CIC application suite eliminates
multiple hardware “‘boxes” to reduce equipment costs and complexity, and provides a single point of system
management to simplify administration and maintenance. For voice communications, the CIC solution is
flexibly deployed as a PBX/IP PBX or with an organization’s existing PBX/IP PBX. For VoIP, the CIC
software leverages the Session Initiation Protocol (“SIP”") global communications standard and incorporates a
full-featured media server, media gateways, SIP proxy, and SIP station voice device. The CIC solution
additionally has established integration with many popular business applications for collaboration, customer
relationship management (“CRM”), enterprise resource planning (“ERP”), and other processes, enabling
customers to fully integrate and automate their specific business rules with minimal customization. Similarly,
CIC supports integration with applications designed to monitor social media networks and the comments of
users regarding a business’ products, services and brands. ‘

Cloud-based Offerings

Interaction management functionality in the contact center, and for certain business communications
capabilities such as call control and unified messaging in the enterprise, can be delivered via our cloud-based
Communications as a Service (“‘CaaS”) offerings, which are based on the CIC application suite and are
invoiced monthly. Our CaaS$ offerings include Caa$ Centact Center for larger contact center operations and
Caa$ Small Center for operations that include a smaller number of agents. Contact centers can deploy our
cloud-based CaaS Contact Center services via a local eontrol VoIP model that keeps their current
telecommunications circuits, all voice traffic and critical data at their site; or as a remote control VoIP model
that routes calls over telecommunications circuits terminatéd at one of our cloud-based data centers: Our CaaS
Small Center offering can be deployed using the remote control VoIP model only. With our Quick Sp'inTM
cloud-based Caa$ trial program, released in the first quarter of 2012, any contact center can have a risk-free
introduction to our cloud-based applications with set-up time in minutes. After a customer has implemented
our cloud-based Caa$S solution, at any time and in one step, they can migrate their services (i.e., CIC server
and applications) from a cloud-based solution to an on-premises systém at their site. We additionally offer a
fully managed cloud-based Caa$ option in which we manage all cloud-based and on-premises services for the
customer. Our cloud-based Caa$ solution offers service that is secure and reliable; broad functionality through
a deep set of communications applications; and a high degree of flexibility in terms of the ability to adapt
easily to changes in business needs. Additionally, our Caa$S offerings increase flexibility for critical
requirements such as scalability, security and control, provide faster deployment times, require minimal capital
expenditures for on-premises equipment at the customer location, and reduce IT requirements for system
administration and maintenance.

Process Automation

Our Interaction Process Automation™ (“IPA”) solution, leveraging our CIC platform, can receive the
data entered via a web service, or can monitor an email inbox to pick up the complaint. Using a customer
complaint as an example, a customer can submit their complaint vid a web form or email. Using ACD-type
technology, IPA initiates a business process and routes the initial Work item, or task, to the appropriately
skilled, available employee empowered to resolve the customer’s issue., IPA’s ability to.present a
context-sensitive user interface means that it can guide the.employee based on best practices on how to follow
up and resolve the complaint, including which subject matter experts to involve if necessary. To ensure service
level guarantees, if the work is not picked up by an employee within a specified period of time, IPA
automatically assigns it to a different, available co-worker. To ensure routing to the “right representative,”



organizations can assign user skills to different types of complaint scenarios, and supervisors can track the
handlingiof work using the same graphical interface they use to view the performance of contact.center users
and operations overall Configurable busjness rules can automate pnorxnzauon and escalatron e

We. beheve very few other vendors oifer the extensrve functronahty of. our approach when leveragmg the
CIC platfor:m for busmess progess automation. IPA’s integration to CIC allows orgamzanons 4o not only
manage the business process, but also keep their customer informed of every step, redncmg frustration and the
need for c¢allbacks to get status information. In addition, with CIC’s openstandards approach to support
broader integration to business and data systems, mtegratmg IPA to back oﬁice apphcatrons is much less
comple‘x than ‘with older, more propnetary systems

Contact Center Automation

With the CIC solution for contact center automation, we remain an mdusl:ry Ieader m helpmg contact
centers move from traditional time division mulnplex phone equipment, multrpomt call center technology and
CTI to pre-integrated application solutions for multichannel contact management. The CIC software is also
inherently developed on open standards, enabling contact centers to straightforwardly migrate ta VoIP. On the
strength of these factors, we were listed in the Gartner; Inc. Leader’s Quadrant for the fifth consecutive year
in the 2012 *“Magic Quadrant for Contact Center Infrastructure, Worldwide” report, the most .recent
report issued. :

Our scalable all-in-one CIC contact center application suite enables contact centers to intelligently
automate, route, monitor, record, track and report on phone calls as well as fax, email, web interactions, SMS
and social media, whether in a single location or across multi-site operations. Contact centers can leverage the
CIC solution to support . thousands of users, including remote “work-at-home” users, and can handle .inbound,,
outbound and “blended” inbound/outhound interactjons. As.an orgamzatron—wrde solutlon CIC grves contact
centers and enterpnses a smgle software platform and pre-mtegrated all-m—one application suite for IP
telephony, highlighted by multichannel ACD to uniformly manage all dlﬁerent types of voice and data |
interactions. CIC’s inherent PBX/IP PBX call processing, voice mail, fax server angd | unified messaging further
enhance performance and customer service for contact center users and supervisors, as well as for business
users. The SIP-architected CIC provides an inherent rmgratron path for VoIP, making it particularly well suited
for contact center operations that employ remote users. Again, organizations can deploy CIC'as an
on-premises product or through our cloud-based deployment -model. - :

Some of our other solutions that work w1th our CIC platform and provide addltlonal
functionality include: :

e  Interaction Dialer®, a predlctrve dialer application that prowdes call scnptmg and other call
funcnonahty,

. Interactron Director®, whrch routes calls to locat;ons that are capable of handlmg calls at that time;
*  Interaction Opnnnzer® whrch supports Workforce managément’and scheduhng capabrhnes

o Interaction Analyzer whrch provrges real-tune speech analytlcs apd key word/phrase spotting to
assess customer sentiment during -an interaction;

s “'Interaction Mobilizer ', which allows orgamzanons to wnte their own mobrle apphcauons and link
mobile customers to the contact center; and

 Interaction Web Portal " , which gives stakeholders within and outside the contact center a single
Portal environment to monitor contact center activities from anywhere via secure web access.

Some of our most requested pre-mtegrated add-on modules mclude

¢ ' Interaction Supemsor which provides real-ume mterfacmg for momtonng CIC user and
system activities; R

. In’teractron Tracker®, a contact history management application; and

*  Interaction Recorder®, which offers quality assessment control for user training and compliance. -



Additionally, we continue to: gain recognition;within the: industry ‘for our oloud-based; contact center ;v
solution and its VoI deployment medels, which are based on the CIC software. As on-demand cloud-based
offerings continue to take hold in the contact center market, our.CIC application suite is soundly positioned to
deliver cloud-based Caa$ functionality for ACD, IVR, multichannel queuing, recording, real-time supervisory
monitoring, workforce management/workforce optimization, and other critical services over a VoIP network,
with locdl control by the’ customer for services implementation, aci"ﬁﬁnist:rdﬁon and voice and ‘data security.

For self-service au\tx’)xvnhati_oyn.«in the contact center enviremment, including speech-enabled IVR and email
auto response technologies, we offer;a full range of solutions that help organizations support their sales and
service objectives while standardizing customer service options and reducing operations costs. Qne self-seryice
application our customers have implemented is e-FAQ®, our knowledge management solution for FAQ auto
response via email. For monitoring social media networks, the CIC software integrates: with many available -.
network monitoring and reporting tools, and adds the ability to route notification alerts to contact center users
for response to relevant customer comments detected on'social media sites. Our current release of the CIC |
software is version 4.0, which was released in November 2011. ‘ " .

. Our Bay Bridgml)ecisionsTM (“BBD”) solution is an agent capacity planning and- analysis platform for .
broader workforce optimization in contact centers. The'BBD solution is based on analytic capability that
assists contact centers in planning and optimizing resources, and determining the right putmber:of agents. foe' -
customer service. g

Unified Communications S e O ,
Leveraging our strength in the contact center sectof has etfabled us to offer IP telephony-baséd unified
commiumnications both o mid-sized business enterprises and to larger enterprises. In positioning our conitact

center solutioti for enterprise unified communications Tequirements, we target organizatios from 50 to'
thousands of users that wish’to implement our single platform solution, ‘which'irichades the 'ability to stale
user counts up or down as needed. This ‘unified communications sotution approach can be imiptemented for TP
PBX, ACD: TVR, multichannel queuing, messaging, businéss process automation, content management, mobile
access; preSence Tranagement and collaboration, and other capdbilities that mieet the needs of enterprise
business users and workgroups as well as' contact cefiter users. ~ R S

With our Interactive Intelligence Customer Interaction Center® for Unified Communications, {“CIg, for -
Unified Communications™) we offer a single, highly-scalable, multichannel IP telephony and, messaging
platform that allows organizations to route live communications to various devices. For VoIP, our platform’s
open, inherent SIP architécture paves a clear thigration path to VoIP for organizations looking to make the
move to IP telephony, or who choose to integrate our platform to an existing PBX phone system and move to
VoIP at a later time. In addition, our solution offers a practical replacement:option for certain existing voice
mail systems. The CIC for Unified Communications software additionally offers features including
conferencing, real-time presence management and remote access, with pre-integrated unified messaging, IVR,
and the Interaction Client® user interface: Also optiotially available are advanced “contact center”-style
features such as workforce management and customer, satisfaction surveys. By providing flexible
choose-by-function deployment and licensing options for features as well as users, organizations can configure
and centrally administér the precise IP telephony; messaging anél-¢nified communications environment needed
by department, or enterprise-wide. This solution has been successfully deployed by enterprises and
organizations such.as banks, insurance companies, healthcare providers, service proyiders: and other customer
service-oriented companies, along with organizations that maintain mobile and remote. work.fpré(:sdand/or
thousands of messaging users.

il

Business Process Automation . RS . '

From its inception, our core CIC software platform was developed as a process automation platform to
automate and unify phone calls, faxes, emails and web interactions and to manage all of these media types
with features including multichanmel queuing, ‘skilis-based routing, speech-enabled IVR:and auto. attendant
processes structured according to an organization’s business rules. As an outgrowth of -our CIC platform’s
automation capability, IPA inherently extcnd§ our qgmmu_ni{qa&ions automation practices to the automation of
formal business processes, such as employeés of an insurance company processing a claim or a banking loan
officer reviewing and approving a-customeris online-application for:a new car loan. We are leveraging our



CI€ platform technology to provide:a business process.gatomatibn product: solution for contact centers and .
ermerprrses 1in virtually any industry looking .to. automaté¢ key business and interaction pracesses.: W

‘Our IPA solution 1ntegrates with and leverages the CIC platform to automate busmess processes based on
CIC’s multichannel communications, queuing and routing capabilities. IPA allows an organization to capture,
prioritize, route, escalate and' track each step in a work process,-including’ progress; peopleyuser skills. and
qualifications, availability,-and resources. The IPA solition is designed to improve process efficiency..and
consistency by minimizing the latency and human error common in processes that are executed manually. IPA
can be applied to horizontal processes such as approving time-off requests by a human resources group, or to
vertical processes such as processing a loan apphcatlon ata bank or credit umon ’As an 1nte1hgent”
application, the prmaples of IPA stem from techniology proven in contact” centers mcludlng presence to
determine an employee’s qualifications and availability to receive a new work assrgmnent regardless of
location, and routing and queuing to route work more precisely through each step of the defined process, all
while maintaining full integration with each associated communication actiyity.

N Cu . SO

Content Management c N e chows

Content management isa related component of our posmomng in the busmes% process automatron
market. A primary benefit of our CIC platform s open architecture has always been'the ability it gives
organizations to integrate databases, information systems, business systems, CRM packages, ERP solutions,:
and other data reposxtorles to manage information critical to their bysiness operations. Additionally, our
integrated module for l(nowledge management and email auto response has contmued to prowde an 1ntu1t1ve
solution for automating m.formatlon management process and FAQ auto responses, allowmg users in contact
centers and service-oriented enterpnses to etfectlvely offload the manual time- consummg task of answering
customer inquiries. - ¢ T LR R RN A :

. Asa result of our acqu1s1t10n ‘of AcroSoft Corporatlon (“AcroSoft”) m May 2009, we oﬁer an
estabhshed apphcatron product suite for creatmg, managmg, dlsthbutmg and delrvermg husmess—cntlcal
content 2cross an enterpnse In conjunctlon with the AcroSoft automated processes AcroSoft apphcatrons
work in umson for content management workflow processmg work mana%ement apd reportmg AcroSoft
Documents, our product for document and 1nfonnat10n management is a client-server component that
provides a view of various electronic ﬁle formats in’ a uSefr—deﬁned “v1rtual cablnet.” Users can manipulate
and manage document and folder views usmg an assortment of functions accéssible ‘ﬁ'om the AcroSoft
Documents application. The AcroSoft Documents application complements an ‘organization’s:data and business
processing practices as a stand-alone application, werking in tandem-with-other Systems, or can-be interfaced
into a processing application. AcroSoft AnyWhere is our web-based document management sotution: that offers
many of the same functions as AcroSoft Documents; including the; ability: to. organize files; upload documents,
annotate imhages, view :multiple file types and implemeént overall secufity;:all-within' a- webvbased interface
accessible from-anywhere that an Intemet connection js available. A e ey

n:,

By mtegratmg these capablhtles ‘with our cIC platfo ’s II‘A busmess process automatron features, this
“whole solution™ will ‘extend greater content management funcuonahty to our ex1st1ng customers in the
contact center market, and to our customers in the msurance mdustry and smnlar vemcal’ markets in which
document management is becommg mcreasmgly cnttcal o

o B ; g i Py

- During 2013, we expect to. release Interaction Content: Managemeht (“ICM’l) ‘our:next-generation
document management product based:on a new: object-onented cloud-based architecturé for document
management solutlons. : N ‘ e S T A :
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Accounts Recetvable Management . o o . I - e
Accounts receivable ithanagement (“ARM”) products prov1de a: set of software solutlons to collectron
agencies, credit depértments, debt-buyers, credrtors and attorneys to manage all. aspects of the debt collectron

and recovery process. . .. Gl u i oo X e x LT ket ; 0

As a result of our acquisition of Global Software Services, Inc., doing business as Latitude Software
(“Latitude’””) in October 2010, our suite of solutions. includes Latitude’s accounts receivable: management
products, which provide all.of the. features necessary to perforin sophisticated: debt.collection operations.
Because Latitude products are standards-based; they easily integrate. with our CIC platform and Interaction



Dialer predictive dialing product, but also work with third-party contact center and dialer products from other -
vendors. This appeoach currently allows Latitude’s solutions to be positioned both as an integrated solution on
our platform and as mtegrated solutlons for other dla.ler platforms. Latitude offers its soluttons as on-premises

orasa cloud—based serv1ce

During 2013, we plan to create: tlghter mtegranon between Lattmde s apphcattoas and our core- CIC
solution, continue to drive Latitude’s sohmons as a cloud—hased oﬂ?enng, and enhance Latitude’s first-party

debt collection application.

We believe Latitude’s integration capabﬂltles and cloud- based optlons for its apphcatlon oﬁ”ermgs will
more effectively posmon us against, and dlfferentlate us from, our competltors w1thm the verucal market for
accounts receivable management.

Hardware

Some customers who license our CIC software also purchase certain hardware froih us, such as ‘servers,
gateways and telephone handsets, and occasionally networTlﬁmg hardware, as part of the CIC solution. In
addition, we have de veTLoped our Interaction Media Server , Interaction Edge Interactwn Gateway" and
Interaction SIP Station” appliances as a combination of 'hardware and our software S

Business Strategy

Innovation remains at the core of our business strategy innovation m our product oﬂ'enngs, as welTl as "
innovation in our approach to the market and. our ability to solve customers business commumcatlon ’
problems. Our strategy for achieving success mcludes multtple key ob_]ecnves, descnbed as follows:

o Continue to Go Up-Market in the Contact Center Space, with an Emphasis on Increasmg our Cloud- -
Based Sales and Expanding in Key Geographic Markets. In our ongoing efforts to win larger contact
center oppoxtumttes part of our strategy is to continue to move up-market, ﬁllmg the needs of Sqme. of
the largest businesses and contact centers in the world, We are ‘making’a notlceable Penetranon o7
larger businesses around the world, in particular with our cloud-based contact center services. Buﬂdm
increased scalability, functionality and rehabihty into our core products is an 1mportant key in this’
strategy. Equally important is our sales strategy targeted to la;ger opportunmes our work with
consultants and analysts, and thé methods in which we go to market )

During 2013, we expect to continue our push into. opportum’aes with darger contact centers. and o
businesses, particularly in the. global markets for.cloud-based communications services. These “cloud” ;
‘markets have shown sustained growth since 2009, with industry analysts expecting the growth-trend to
continue. According to. the 2012-2013 Cloud-Based Contact Center Infrastructure Market Report from
DMG Consulting. LLC (report# DMGHCCR5001; September 2012), the number of seats in cloud-based
contact centers grew by 80.2% in 2011, following a 42.4% increase in 2010, and a 26.4% increase in
2009, By actual number of seats, DMG estimates, that the numbers of such seats w;ll have increased
from 339,850 seats in 2009 to more than 3. 3 million seats by the end of 2015 represennng '18.1%, at a
minimum, of all contact center seats woridwnde Also prev10usly stated if its Intemanonal Data
Corporation (“IDC”) Predictions 2011 TT industry report, (IDC #225878, Volurne: 1), research firm IDC
estimated that worldwide spending on public IT cloud services will increase from $29 billion in 2011
(up 30%from 2010) to $55 billion by 2014: The IDC analysts predict that cloud technology will drive
15% of total IT spending during the 2011 to 2014 period, with growth rates predicted at four to five.
times the rate of the overall IT market as cloud services continue moving from early addpter status to an
accepted and viable technology. We believe we can take advantage of this growth in the cloud- based
market to complement our established on-premises solution offerings and position us more favorably for
larger-scale contact center and vertical market epportunities globally. During 2012, .our cloud-based
orders for the full:year increased 123% fromr 2011 and represented 35% of our 2012 total order mix.
Our 2013 financial outlook is based on a deployment mix in which our cloud-based offerings comstitute
50% of our total orders. .

e Market Our New Cloud-Based Communications Ofermg to Address the Small Conmr Cemer
Market. Along with ‘our ongoing efforts: tomwm lasger contact center opportunities; we will also
focus on marketing our CaaS Small Center  cloud-based services to organizations: that maintain



from 10 to S0 contact centers seats, and up to 100 enterprise seats for business users. The CaaS
~-Small Center offering provides a streamlined set of capabilities: allowing the ability to-manage calls,
email and text chat, and includes our Interaction Analyzer, Interaction Feedback, and Interaction
Recorder products as standard integrated applications for real-time speech analytics, customer
feedback management, and call and interaction recording, respectively.

Upgrade Our Installed Base to CIC Version 4.0 via CIC Version 4.0’s Enhanced Product
Functionality and Scalability, and:Increase Our Sales of CIC Add-on Products. We have
continually added scalability and functionality to our CIC solution and expect to do so again
throughout 2013. With our-latest inajor version, version 4.0, which we rteleased in November 2011,
we introduced-new advanced functionality including speech analytics, Web portal access, and a
private cloud-based deployment model. During 2013, we will offer numerous other improvements to
products such as Interaction Dialer, Interaction Recorder and IPA, and plan to release ICM, our next
generation object-oriented content management solution. We will continue to release upgrade
programs for CIC version 4.0, and continue improving CIC version 4.0’s capabilities for quality
monitoring, intelligent interaction routing, and the ability to offer services leveraging mobile devices
and social media networks. Also, we will continue to integrate and begin internationalizing
Latitude’s suite of products for accounts receivable management and enhance its integration with the
CIC solution. Along with our CIC version 4.0 upgrade initiatives to our installed customer base, we
will focus on increasing sales of CIC add-on products including Interaction Recorder, Interaction
Feedback, Interaction Dialer, Interaction Optimizer, Interaction Web Portal, our new. lnteract_ion
Mobilizer and Bay Bridge Decisions solutions, and IPA. ' ‘

Significantly Grow our Business Process Automation Sales. In 2012 we deployed IPA at a number
of existing customers’ sites and developed opportunities with prospective customers who had
expressed interest in the IPA solution. During 2013 we will continue this focus particularly with
existing CIC customers. Also by continuing to integrate IPA’s‘business process automation featutes
with the content management functionality’ of our AcroSoft products and forthcoming ICM content
management solution, we expect to position IPA more broadly to existing customers in the contact '
center market, and in the insurance industry and similar vertical markets in which document
management is increasingly critical. to the business process.

Increase Sales in Our Primary Vertical Markets. These markets include our established marketsfor
accounts receivable management, insurance, utilities, banks/credit unions, outsourcers, healthcare,
and government. Along with CIC version 4.0’s increased scalability, advanced functionality such as
the Interaction Web Portal for outsonrcers, and ““whole system” integrations for accounts receivable
management and content management, we believe we will be strongly positioned to provide
solutions to larger companies in these vertical markets. We further believe our ability to offer our
solutions via cloud-based as well as on-premises models, 1ncludmg the Latitude solutions for
accounts receivable management, will differentiate us from competitors in these markets.

Develop Our Global Services Capabilities. We continue to explore potential acquisitions that
strengthen our distribution and services capablhtles globally and that expand our application breadth
in certain key industry verticals. On the distribution side, we are focused on 1ntemat10nal markets
where we can accelerate our current business growth. Our January 2012 purchase of select
Interactive Intelligence-related contact centér assets from South African-based resellér, ATIO
-Corporation (Pty). Ltd:rand our-April 2012 acquisition of Brightware B.V., a Netherlands-based
reseller, are examples of the type of enhancements to our distribution channel that we are targeting.
These 2012 acquisitions followed those we made in 2011, including the March 2011 purchase of
Agori Communications GmbH in Germany and our July 2011 acquisition of CallTime Solutions
Ltd., which operates from offices in Sydney, Melbourne, and Auckland. On the application side, we
continue to look at vertical applications that leverage our CIC platform, consistent with our prior
acquisitions in the insurance, document management and accounts receivable management verticals. -
Our August 2012 acquisition of Bay Bridge Decision Technologies, Inc. is another example of this
expansion into the workforce optimization vertical. Such vertical applications can often generate
associated professional services opportunities for planning, implementation, and ongoing



maintenance. In addition, we are exploring ways to expand our business into other verticals through
acquisitions and/or product:line extensions, including extending our cloud-based offerings more fully
into- markets for insurance and other verticals. We believe building a comprehensive offering will
continue to differentiate us from, and more: eﬂ?ecuvely posmon us agamst our competltors within
these other verticals. ‘

e Further Develop Key Strategic Business Partnerships. We currently have strong strategic business
relationships with Oracle Corporation (“Oracle”), Salesforce.com, Inc., Microsoft, International Business
Machines Corporation (“IBM”),: Polycom, Inc. ¢*‘Polycom”), AudioCodes Ltd.(“*AudioCodes”), and
other key vendors. Each of these relationships is-unique, and they each bring key benefits. During 2013,
we intend to work with these partners to create' new. sales opportunities. Along with the name and brand
recognition of these partners, we intend to leverage their marketing capabilities to bring greater
recoghition to our brand. We believe that working in conjunction with companies such as these will
provide us with larger and more numerous opportunities- worldwide. In addition to these strategic
business relationships, we have over 350 partners in ous existing network that are focused:.on our
markets for the contact center, unified communications, and business process automation, which we
intend to work closely with during 2013. The majority of our revenue comes through our reseller
channel, and this channel gives us a competitive advantage against smaller;. start-up competitors that
may sell directly to the customer. We also plan to-aggressively seeck new partners, particularly cloud
providers, who can provide enhanced, combined value to our customers and prospects.

Global Distribution and Sales

We distribute cur products through reseller parﬁlers and directly‘ to eustomers In 2012 and 2011, 47%
and 66%, respectively, of product orders were sold through partners while most of our cloud-based orders
were done directly.

Our Territory Mauagers manage, our partners anc‘lr sell directly to customer, As of December .31, 2012, we
had 110 Territory Managers, maintained a global channel network of approximately 350 partners and. installed
our solutions in over 100 different countries.

Our partners are supported by Program Managers, regional Channel Enablément Managers, Licensing
Specialists and other roles related to sales, support servicés and education/certification.

Marketing
Our marketing team consists of the followmg four groups

»  Public Relations/Analyst Relations, whicly manages media relatlons key messaging, and creating and
managing relationships with industry analysts; : :

*  Solutions Marketing, which markets and promotes our solutrons to customers, prospectlve customers
and partners as well as to mdustty analysts ‘

*  Lead Management, which drives all lead-generation activities resultmg from tradeshows, seminars,
and web-based marketing programs, utilizes purchased lists of prospective customers and leverages
joint marketing activities with strategrc partners to generate qualrﬁed leads for partners as well as
Territory Managers; and

'

e Marketing Services, which prepares -all prmt collateral and associated materials for tradeshows,
marketing seminars, promotions, advertising,brand awarepess, customer and parmer relations, and
other company functions. ,

Customer Support and Services

We recognize the importance of offering quahty semce and support to our, parhmers and customers We
provide a wide range of services and support both to partners and customers viaour Worldwide Services teams,
including Client Success, Professional Serv1ces, Support Services, Managed Services and Educauon Services.

Client Success Team , te {

Our Client Success Team is responsible for measurmg the value our customers achleve with our solutions
and services. Team members, known as Success Program Leadérs, are allgned directly with a ¢ustomer’s
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organization to help the customer realize business value using our.solutions and services: Success: Program:
Leaders coardinate customer on-boarding,, participate in account strategy, engage the. appropriate Interactive
Intelligence and partner resoyrces to ensure success, and provrde proactive escalatlon warpings | when needed.
The Success Program Leader additionally identifies expansion opportunities for the customer To collect and
assess gustomer feedback, the Client Success Team utilizes survey results from new and exrstmg customers, in
conjunction with the Net Promoter Sconng® methodology, which proyides a, metric that indicates customer
satisfaction. The collective results of customer surveys, along with those of internal departmental surveys,
allow the Client Success Team to identify’ areas of opportumty, develop plans to address them, and generally
work to satrsfy each customer orgamzatlon

Professional Servzces

Our Professional Services team implements and enhances -partner. expertise on advanced offerings such as
predictive dialing, speech recognition and third-party CRM integrations. Our Professional Services team can
also, among other things, help mtegrate our products into applrcatlons such as Salesforce .com, and embed call
control into in-house apphcatrons and speech-enable IVR apphcattons The system conﬁguratwn services and
ad-hoc consultmg services from our Professwnal Services team woik to ensure that the customer has the o
appropriate solutron for 1ts business. The Profess1onal Servrces team works closely wrth new partners as they
implement our products at their sites, and is often invoived with the early ‘release of our products to assist in
new release implementations. We are.continuing to: invest in this team as we provide more: consultmg and
unplementatlon services for strateglc customefs:globally. : SRS

Support Servzces e , Co

Our Support Services team offers global technical support for our partners and ‘customers 24 holm a day,
7 days a week by phone, fax, email, ' web chat and from our website. We have: support centers at our world
headquarters in Indianapolis, Indiana, the United Kingdom and Malaysia. We, have secondary, support
employees available in California in the United States, and in the Netherlands, Germany, Australia and Japan.
We utilize our. CIC ‘products, leveraged wrth technologies such as knowledge :base, CRM and the Internet, to. .
maximize the effectiveness of our support services. ,

Our Support Services team is divided into regions that align with our worldwide sales teams. Interactions
are routed to the respective region based on the customer location. This enables Support Services team
members to better know their customers and offer quality support services. The engineers on our Support '
Services team are also specialists. They focus their efforts on very specific areas of our offerings, allowing
them to deveIop a deeper knowledge set. This enables us to do skills-based routing that directs the customer
to the best engirieer based on their dorﬁam thus reducmg the time to reSOIVe the problem We use our o
Interacnon Director® product to r0ute mcrdents globally ina “follow-the—sun manner

R

Managed Services

Wlth our growmg base of strategrc partners, wg now. oﬂ’er a Managed Care Program in whlch an
assigned Managed Services team provides support to customers, either on-site or off-site. We use Interaction
Monitor " to enable. our engineers to have a constant view of the health of the customer system Our goal is to
provide optimal system performance through proactive system management.

Education Services

- Our Education Services team is also divided into regions that align with our worldwide sales teams and
provides technical certification and advanced instruction through on-site: courses, classroom presentations and
web-based training. This team develops and maintains course curriculum for formal certification programs
such as sales, product installation, troubleshooting, system administration and custom design. Web-based
training: courses offer enhanced topics such as reporting, system administration and computer-based user
training. All-of our partners are required to maintain aipdated certifications .to; license and support our products.
Classes are also offered to all of our end customers to encourage the most:effective use of the applications.
We have moved our classroom sessions to a VoIP structure and focused otir Education Services resources on
the CIC software. This enables our.partners and our end customers to bmld a deeper understandmg of our
networking infrastructure and telephony. technology. S e v i
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Customers and Geographic Areas of Operations -

Through December 31, 2012, we have licensed our products to more thdn 4,500 customers in the
Americas, Europe, Middle East and Aftica (“EMEA”) and Asia/Pacific¢ (“APAC”) No customer or partner
accounted for 10% or more of our revenues'in 2012, 2011 or 2010 or for 10% or more of our accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2012 or 2011, therefore, the loss of any one customer or partncr would not
have a material adverse ef["ect on our operations.

No individual country accountcd for more than 10% of our reyenues, with the exceptlon of the
United States, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for financial information about
each of the geographic areas in which we operate. :

Business Seasonality and Geographic Fluctuations

Our revenues are comprised of product revenues, recutrmg revenues and services revenues. Product
revenues in the first quarter of each calendar year are typically lower than in the fourth quarter of the prior
year, with sequential quarterly increases thereafter, although sometimes the third quarter is flat. Recurring and
services revenues typically increase sequentially quarter-to-quarter as our business continues to expand. These
patterns are experienced by many enterprise software compames and reflect the customer spendmg patterns.

To the extent that product revenues fluctuate from quarter-to-quarter due to the seasonality of our
business described above, our gross profit on products may also fluctuate. Our operating expenses generally
increase sequentially in a given year. The gross profit and increasing operating expenses have a corresponding
impact on our operating income. Operating income historically has been lower in the first quarter of a
calendar year than in. the fourth quarter of the prior year, increases. in.the second quarter, can be up or down
in the third quarter compared to the second quarter and is highest in the fourth quarter of the year.

As stated above, we operate our business in three geographic regions — the Americas, EMEA and APAC.
We have historically experienced quarterly fluctuations-in our orders'and revenues in the various geographies.
These quarterly fluctuations have been due, in part, to the seasonality of our business genérally, as described’
above, but have also been impacted by the size and number of orders received in a particular quarter in the
geographic region compared to the orders received in the prior year period.

‘

Supplier Relationships

We rely on third parties for several components in the delivery of our, complete solutlon, including
general purpose servers, third-party software, thlrd-pany harqware apphances telephone end-pomts and
integration to various vendors’ hardware and soft.wa,re systems Our reliance upon these third pames comes
with some amount of risk, primarily due to the possibility of these suppliers being acquired or dlscontmumg a
product we rely on, or failure to renew terms of contracts with these suppliers. In addition, some of the third-
party software is licensed from our competitors or suppliers which could become our competitors in the
future, which may complicate our relationships with these suppliers. In many cases, however, we maintain
relationships with several different suppliers and therefore believe alternatives could be available if a supplier
would cease doing business with us. We feel that the risks dre further nutlgated by the revenue that we
generate for these third-party suppliers and the length of notlce that we WOuld m0st hke]y receive from the
suppliers if any of the products were discontinued. ’

Competition

The markets for our solutions are highly competitive. Competition is. typically based on various factors,
including the breadth and depth of functionality. of the product lin€, price, deployment methods and options,
ease of installation, ease of use, product roadmap, total cost of ewnership, return on investment, integration
with other applications, security, reliability and scalability. We differentiate ourselves.from our .competitors by
enabling customers to choose to deploy many of our solytions. on-premises or as a cloud-based solution,
offering an all-in-one platform, adhering to industry standards and providing a broad set of applications for the
business enterprise. Also contributing to our competmve strengths are our growing installed base of customers,
new products such as Interaction Mobilizer . , Interaction Analyzer Interaction Web Portal - , Interaction SIP
Station , Interaction Conference , andIPA, as well as enhancements to-our- Interaction Recorder®
Interactlon Optimizer®, Interaction Dialer®, Interaction Director® and Interaction Feedback® offerings.
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Our competitive position varies in each of our primary markets. In the contact center market, we are
considered a leader by third-party analyst firms based on the breadth of our product line, the completeness of
our vision and our ability to execute. We compete successfully with our contact center competitors, including
those companies that are considerably larger in size. In the cloud-based contact center market, we have
different competitors than those seen for our on-premises offerings, including in Contact, Inc., Five9, Inc., and
Echopass Corporation. In the on-premises contact center market, our primary competitors are Aspect Software,
Inc. (““Aspect”), Avaya Inc. (“‘Avaya”), Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. (“‘Genesys”) and
Cisco Systems, Inc. (“Cisco’).

In the unified communications market, we have a small market share in the pure IP PBX market
segment. However, when our IP PBX produict is sold in conjunction with our other solutions such as our
contact center solution, resulting in a unified communications offering, our competitive position is stronger.
Our primary competitors in the contact center and unified communications markets have a great deal of
overlap, with a small number of competitors being exclusive to either one or the other of the two markets.
Significant unified communications competltors include Alcatel-Lucent, Avaya, Cisco, Siemens AG, and
ShoreTel, Inc. :

The business process automation market can be divided into two submarkets: process automation and
content management. We are new to the process automation market and compete both with traditional
telecommunications vendors such as. Avaya and Genesys and, to a lesser extent, with traditional business
process management suite vendors such as IBM, Lombardi Software, Inc., Pegasysters Inc., and Oracle. We
entered the content management market in part through our 2009 acquisition of AcroSoft, which added
insurance industry domain expertise as well as-an installed base of customers.

While we are not new to the market for accounts receivable management or collections, we reinforced
our market position with our 2010 acqulsmon of Latitude, which added mdustry domain expertise and a larger
installed base of collections customers. In the accounts receivable management market, vendors that compete
against our products and those of Latitude include Onmo Systems, Columbia Ultimate, CR Software, LLC,
The Computer Manager, Inc.’s Debt$Net Collection Software and Fair Isaac Corporation.

Research and Development

Leveraging technology is part of our strategic position, and we continue to invest a substantial percentage
of our revenue in research and development (“R&D”). Our R&D group is compriséd of profess1onals with
backgrounds in telecommunications, software and hardware. This combination of diverse technical and
communications expeftise contributes to our competitive advantage with a differentiated technology approach.
A series of packaged customer solutions are available from this group, such as integration to SAP
Corporation, Oracle’s Siebel, Inc. and Microsoft Dynamics CRM. These solutions allow partner$ to quickly
install sophisticated applications for customers.

Within the R&D process, our Product Management team is responsible for coordinating activities with
our development teams to define product requirements and to manage the process for market requirements, -
product development approvals, pricing definitions, release scheduling and beta test coordination. The Product
Management team oversees the product management process from product concept through the end of the beta
test cycle.

We are a Microsoft Certified Developer as well as a Microsoft Certified Solutions Provider. These
designations provide us edrly access to Microsoft technology and the opportunity to develop products quicker
that effectively integrate with Microsoft products. We additionally are a Cisco development partner, and since
2000 have continued to develop interoperability that allows our contact center products to integrate and
interoperate with those from Cisco.

R&D expenses were $45.7 million, $35.6 million and $28.3 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Our R&D group is structured into technical teams, each of which follows formal processes for enhancements,
release management and technical reviews. R&D expenses include a testing department that utilizes automated
techniques to stress test our core software. We continue to make R&D a priority in our business in order to -
remain on the forefront of innovation.
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The R&D. groups of companies we have acquired. through acquxsmons are mtzgrated mto our. R&D group
and follow the same structure and processes detailed above. - : oo :

Intellectual Property and Other Proprletary nghts

We. own numerous patents and patent apphcatlons that we cons1der valuable components of our busmess
To protect our proprietary rights, we rely primarily on a combinatjon of:

. copynght patent, trade secret and trademark laws;
. conﬁdenuahty agreements w1th employees and third partles and

* . protective contractual prov1s1ons such as. those contained i in hcenses and other agreements with
consultants, supphers partners and customers

As of December 31, 2012, we and our subsidiaries held 16 patents, Whlch expire between 2020 and -
2031, and have filed other patent applications relating té technology embedied in our software products: .In
addition; we and ‘our subsidiaries hold 24 United States and 16 foreign trademark registrations and have
numerous other trademark applications pending worldwide, as well as common law rights in other trademarks
and service marks. We and our sub51d1ar1es also hold 19 registered qopynghts and have numerous other
applications pending. "

While. we currently hold patents and have ﬁled other patent appheatmns relatmg to: certain technology :
which we have developed, we do not believe that we are signifieantly dependent on any. one of these: patents.
We hold trademark and copyright registrations domestically and :worldwide and have numerous other
applications pending worldwide for the name “Interactive Intelligerice” and several of the names used for our -
products. We consider the trademark for the “Interactive Intelligence” name the most signiﬁcant trademark or
copyrlght held because of the impact the “Interactivé Intelhgence” fiame has on the market’s awateness of,
and identification with, us. The “Interactive IntelhgenCe” trademark reglstration explres in 2017 in the -

Umted States and can be renewed beéyond that date. In addition, we have’eritered into a license arrangement
for certain technologies that we utilizé in our solutions. Without this license arrarigement in place, we may be
subject to litigation that could result in significant dxpense to us resulting from our use of these technbidgies.
This license arrangement extends through 2026.

Environmental

Compllance with federal state and local provisions regulatmg the dlscharge of materlal into the .
environment or othgrwise relating to the protectlon of the, environment has not had a mptenal efgect upon our
capital expenchtutes earnings or competitive posmon We; beh,eve the nature of Qur operatlons have little
environmental impact. We therefore anticipate no material cap1ta1 expendltures for environmental control
facilities for our cugrent fiscal year or for the foreseeable future.

Employees

As of February 28, 2013, we had. 1,437 employees worldwide, including 390 in research-and
development, 250 in recurring serviges, 219 in client serviges, 386 in sales and marketjng and 192 in. .
administration. Our. future performance depends in part upon the continued service of our key sales, .
marketing, technical and senior management personnel and owr contjnuing ability to attract ang; retain highly
qualified personnel. Competition for such personnel is intense and we may not be successful in attracting or
retaining these individuals in the future »

. We, beheve that we . have a corporate gulture that attracts hlg,h}y guahﬁed and mouvated employees We
emphas:ze teqmwork flexible work arrangements, loca,l decision-making and gpen communications. Certain.
key employees. have been granted stock optipns and/qr. restricted stock units. 'We. do not, have any employees
represented by a labor union. We have not experienced any work stoppages. We cons;der our relations with
our current employees to be good.

AT )

Company Informatlon o L e I ’
- Interactive Intelhgence Gu'oup, Inc was- mcorporated in Indtaﬂa i Apnl 20;1'1 andiwas & wholly-owned
subsrhary of Interactive: Intelhgence, Inc.,-an Indiana corporation.incorparated in-1994 (“ININ Inc.”). .

Effective July 1, 2011, Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. became the successor reparfing company to
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Interactive Intelligence, Inc. pursuant to a corporate reorganization.: We maintain our world headquarters and
executive offices at 7601 Interactive Way, Indianapolis, IN 46278. Our telephone number is (317) 872-3000.
We are located on the web at http://www.inin.com. We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy
statements and other documents with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
under the Exchange Act. These periodic and current reports and.all amendments to those reports. are available
free of charge on the investor reélations page of our website at http:/investors.inin.com/sec.cfin. We-have. -
included our website address throughout this filing as textual references only. The information contained on
our website is not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The followmg factors, among others could cause actual results to dlffer matena]ly from those contamed
in forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presented glsewhere by
management from time to time. Such factors may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations and you should carefully consider them. Additionial risk and uncertairities
not presently known to us or which are currently not believed to be material may also affect our actual
results. Because of these and other factors, past performance should not be considered an indication of -
future performance.

R

Ly

The Overall Economic Cllmate Lould Result in Decreased Demand for Our Products and Services

Our products typically represent substantial capital commitments by customers’and involve a potentially
long ‘sales cycle. As a result, our operatiéns and performance depend significantly on worldwide economic *
conditions and"their impact on customer purchasing decisions. Given the current-economic conditions; current
and potential customers are more cognizant of their budgets for communication software, services and . : -
systems, which may result in our current or prospective customers delaying and/or reducing their: capital
spending related to information systems. Some of the factors that could influence the levels of spending by
our current or prospective customers include ava11ab1hty of credit, labor and healthcare costs, consumer
confidence and other factors affecting spending behavior. These and other economic factors could have a
material adverse effect on demand for our products and servuies and on otr ﬁnancral condmcn and
operating results. SR . - - S g

Our Quarterly Operating Results ﬁave Varied Signi!ic;tn,tly

Qur operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter and depend on a number of factors
affecting us or our industry, including many that are. beyond our control. As a result, we believe that
period-to-period comparisons of our operating results should not be relied on as an indication of our future
performance. In addition, our operating results in a futufe quarter or quérters may fall below expectations of
securities analysts or investors and, as a result, the price of our cémmon stock ‘tnay ﬂuctuate N

Our quarterly revenues and operating results depend on many factors, including whether the deployment
is on-premises or as a'cloud-based offering, the type of license, the size, quahtity and timing of orders
received for our products during each quarter the delivery of the related ‘software- or hardware and our
expectations regarding collection. Because we do not know if or when our partners ‘and current dr potential
customers will place orders and ﬁnallze license agreements we cannot accurately forecast our hcensmg
activity; our revenues and our operatmg results for future quarters. We have generally experrenced a lengthy
initial sales cycle, which can last six to nine months and sometimes longer The lengthy sales cycle is one of
the factors that has caused, and may in the future continue to cause, our product revenues and operating
results to vary significantly from quarter tg.quarter which may in turn affect the market price of pur common
stock. Because of the unique characteristics of our products and our prospective customers’. .internal evalyation.
processes, decisions to license our products often require significant time and executive-level decision making.
As a result, sales cycles for customei ‘orders vary substantially from customer to customer. The length of the
sales cycle for customer orders depends on a numbet of other factors over whrch we ha've 11tt1e or no
control, including: : co R

*  acustomer’s budgetary constraints;

*  the timing of a customet’s budget cycle;
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«  concemns by customers about the introduction of new products by us or our competitors; and -

«  downturns in general economic conditions, including reductions in demand for contact
center services. ‘

Our limited number of products, changes in pricing policies, the timing of development completion,
announcement and sale of new or upgraded versions of our products-and the effect of eloud-based
deployments on recognizing revenues are some of the additional factors that could cause our révenues and
operating results to vary significantly from period to period. ‘ :

We recognize revenues from different licenses over different periods depending on the satisfaction of the
requirements of relevant accounting literature, including Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”")
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 985, Software (“FASB ASC 985"), and ASC Topic 605,
Revenue Recognition (“FASB ASC 605”). :

A large portion of our operating expenses, including salaries and rent, is fixed and diiiicult to reduce or '
modify in a short time.period. As a result, our financial condition or results of operations could be materially
adversely affected if revenues do not meet our expectations. C :

We Have Made Acquisitions and May Pursue Acquisitions That Present Risks and May Not
be Successful . : .

We have acquired companies and in the future we may pursue acquisitions to diversify our product . -
offerings and customer base, to strengthen our distribution channel or for other strategic purposes. We cannot
provide assurance that our recent or future acquisitions will be successful. The following are some of the risks
associated with acquisitions that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations:

e Our acquired businesses may not achieve anticipated revenues, earnings or cash flow.

e We may be unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully and realize anticipated economic,
operational and other benefits in a timely manner, particularly if we acquire a business in a market :
in which we have limited or no current expertise, or with a corporate culture different from our own.
If we are unable to integrate acquired businesses successfully, we could incur substantial costs and
delays or other operational, technical or financial problems. ’ : '

e Acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing business, distract management, divert resources and make it
difficult to maintain our current business standards, controls and procedures. C

e We may be competing with other firms, many of which have greater financial and other resoh:g:es_,
to acquire attractive companies, making it more difficult to acquire suitable companies on
acceptable terms.

e We may not generate sufficient cash from operations and our growth could be limited unless we are
able to obtain capital through additional debt or equity financings. These financings may not be
available as required for acquisitions or other needs, and even if financing is avai!able, it may not be
on terms that are favorable to us or sufficient for our needs. In addition, if we finance future _
acquisitions by issuing common stock for §oin§ or all of the purchase price, this coﬁld dilute the
ownership interest of our shareholders. We may also be required to recognize expense related to '
intangible assets recorded in future acquisitions.

Our Future Business Prospects Depend in Part on Our Ability to Maintain and Improve Our Current
Products and Develop New Products ‘ S

We believe that our future business prospects depend in large part on our ability to maintain and improve our
current software applications and to develop new software applications on a timely basis. Our software
applications will have to continue to achieve market acceptance, maintain technological competitiveness and meet
an expanding range of customer requirements. As a result of the complexities inherent in our applications, major
new applications and application enhancements require long development and testing periods. We may not be
successful in developing and marketing, on a timely and cost effective basis, application enhancements or new
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software. applications that respend to technological change, evolving industry standards or customer requirements.
We may ‘also-experience difficulties. that could delay or prevent the successful development, introduction or
marketing of application enhancements, and our new applications and application enhancements may not achieve
market acceptance. Signiﬁcant delays in the general availability of new releases of our software applications or
significanit problems in the installation or mrplementauon of new réléases of our apphcauons could have a material
adverse effect on our business, ﬁnanc1a1 condmon or results of operauons

Our Products Could Have Defects for Whlch We Are Potentially Lrable and Which Could Result in
Loss of Revenue, Increased Costs, Loss of Our Credibility, Harm Our Reputatlon or Delay in
Acceptance of OQur Products in the Market

Our products including components supplied by others, may contain errors or defects, especially when
first introduced or when new ‘vetsions are released. Despite internal product testing, we have in the past
discovered software errors in some of our‘products after their introduction. Errors in new products or releases
could be found after commencement of commercial shipments, and this could result in additional development
costs, diversion of technical and other resources from our other development efforts, ‘or the loss of credibility
with current or future customers. This could result in a loss of revenue or delay in market acceptance of
our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Our hcense agreements w1th our customers typlcally contam prov1srons desrgned to limit our exposure to
potential product liability and certain clarms However, not all of these agreements contain these types of
provisions and, where present, these provrsrons vary as to their terms and may not be effective under the laws
of some jurisdictions. A product habrhty, warranty, or other claim brought against us could have a material
adverse effect on our business, ﬁnancral condition or results of operatjons.

Our software solutions are developed to run on the ‘Microsoft® Windows® operating system and use one
or more media servers for voice (telephone call) processing and recording. Our server software also operates
in a network environment with database servers, email servers, and third-party systems such as CRM
applications and Microsoft® Lync® Server 2010. As a cloud-based solution, our software solutions can be
deployed as a Caa$ offering via wide area networks. Because of this complexity, our software may be more
prone to performance interruptions for our customers than traditional hardware-based products. Performance
interruptions at our customer sites, some of which currently do not have back-up systems, could affect demand
for our products or give rise to claims against us.

If Our Customers Do Not Perceive Oiir Products or the Related Services Provrded by Us or Our .
Partners to Be Effective or of High Quality, Our Brand and Name Recognition Will Suffer

We believe that estabhshmg and mamtalmng brand and name recognition is critical for attracting,
retaining and expanding customers in our target markets We also believe that the importance of reputation
and name recognition will i ‘increase as competltlon in our market increases. Promotion and enhancement of our
name will depend on the effectiveness of our marketing and advemsmg eﬁorts and on our success in
providing high-quality products and related services, including mstallatlon, training and maintenance, none of
which can be assured. If our customers do not perceive our products or related services to be effective or of
high quality, our brand and name recogmnon would suffer wh1ch could have a matenal adverse effect on our
business, ﬁnancral condition or results of operatlons

We Face Competitive Pressures, Which May Affect Us Adversely

The market for:our software applications is highly competitive and, because there are relatively low
barriers to entry in the software market, we:expect competitive pressures. to continue to be a risk to our
ongoing success in the market: In addition, because our industry is evolving and characterized by rapid
technological change, it is difficult for us to.predict whether, when -and by whom new competing technologies
or new competitors may be introduced into our markets. Currently, our competition comes from several
different market segments, including computer telephony platform developers, computer telephony applications
software developers and telecommunications equipment vendors. Addxtlonally, alternative deployment
strategies, such as software as a service, are offered by certain companies. We cannot provide assurance that
we will be able to compete effectively against current and future competitors in these market segments, or in
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new market segments with new types of competitors. In addition, increased competition or other competitive
pressures may result in.price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share,-any:of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operatlons . ‘

Many of our current and potenttal compeutors have lon,ger operatmg h1stones, s1gmﬁcantly greater
resources, greater name recognition and a larger installed base of custpmers. than we do. Competrtors may, be
able to respond to new or emerging technologles and changes in customer requrrements more effectively than
we cat; or devote ‘greatér resouttes to the development’fpromotwn -and sale-bf-products than‘we can: Tn
addition, for a number of our larget' competitors; the peédact segment inwhich they curréntly comipete with us:
is a small portion of their overall offering. These competitors might be willing and-able to' dramaticaldy.cut
prices in our segment in order to protect or grow other segments that are more important to their overall
business. Current and potential competrtors have estabhshed and may in the fut;ure estabhsh cooperatlve
relationships among themselves or with third parties, mcludmg mergers or acqursmons, to, increase the ablhty
of their products to.address the needs of our current or prospective customers If these compeutors were to
acquire significantly increased market share, it could have a materlal adverse effect on'our busmess, ﬁnancral
condition or results of operations.

~ '

Our Cloud-Based Applications Presentt Execution and Competltive Risks

We are devoting significant resources to extend our cloud-based alternative to our traditional, on-prermses
offerings. Certain competitors offer alternative cloud-based servicés for consumiers and ‘business customers.
While we believe our expertise, investments in mfrastructure and the breadth of our cloud-based services
provide us with a solid foundat1on to cothpete, it is uncertain whether our sfrategres will attract the users or
generate the revenue required to be successful. In addition to certain software development costs, we are’
incurring costs to build and maintain infrasttucture to support cloud computing services. These costs have
negatively impacted, and may continue. fo- negatively impact. our operating margins. Whether we are successful
in this new business model depends on our execution jn a number of areas, including: . :

*  continuing to innovate and bring to market compelhng cloud-based experrences that generate
‘ mcreasmg trafﬁc

. improving the performance of our cloud—based services, and

»  continuing to enliance the attractiveness of our cloud-based plathrms to partners

Our Inability to Successfully Manage our Increasmgly Complex Suppher and Other Tlnrd-Party
Relationships Could Adversely Affect Us

‘ ol 1 : Lo
u V

As the complexrty of our product technology and our supplier and other thlrd-party relattonshrps have
increased, the management of those relationships 2 and the negotlatlon of contractual terms sufficient to protect our
rights and limit our potential liabilities have become more comphcated and we expect this trend to continue in the
future. In addition, because we offer a whole product solution, this has added complexrty to our suppher ,
relationships. We license from third partres technology that is embédded in our, products. Some of these third
parties that hcense technology | to us are our compeutors, ‘or could become competmve with us in the future.
Certain license agreements permit elther party to termmate all or a portlon of the hcense without cause at any
time. Further, some of the license agreements provide that upon acqu1s1t10n of 1 us by certain other third parties, we
would have to pay a significant fee to continue the license. As a result, our mahlhty to successfully manage these
relationships or negotiate sufficient contractual terms ould have a material adverse effect on.us: - .

For certain of our orders, we supply hardware to support the implementation of our software. We are
dependent on. third parties for the supply of hardware components to eur customers. If these hardware
distributors experience financial, operational or quality' assurance difficulties; or if there is any:other «lisruption
in our relationships, we may be required:to locate alternative hardware sources. We are also subject to the
following risks selated to our hardware distribution system: - . BN

. cancellatrons of orders or delays m delrvermg orders due to unavallabrlrty of hardware

*  increased hardware prices, whlch may reduce our gross proﬁt or make our- prod:uots less
price competitive; : it ; , :
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* ‘additional development expense to’ modrfyv' our’ produets to work wrth new hardware
. configurations; and ' S L by o

. performance issues resultmg from product changes by our hardware supphers

We cannot asstire-you that we would be. able to' locate- alternative techniology or Hatdware sources in a timely
manner, on terms favorable to us, or at all Even 1; we and/or oyr drstnbutors are successful in locatlng altematr\ie
sources of supply, “alternative supphers could increase’ prices mgmﬁcantly In addmon a]tematlve technology or
hardware components may malfunction or interact with existing components in unexpected ways. The use of new
suppliers. and the. modification of our products to: function with new. systems would require testing and may
require further modifications' which may result in additional.expense; diversion of management attention and other
resources; inability to fulfill customer. orders or delay-in fulfillment; reduction:in-quality and reliability; customer
dissatisfaction; and other adverse effects on-our.reputation, business)and operating resuits .

Existing and New Reseller Parthers are Critical to Continued Growth

Our ability to achieve revenue growth in the future will ‘depend' in part on’our’sticcess‘in maintaining”
productive relationships with eur existing-and future reseller. partners and-in recrujting and fraining additional
reseller partners. We rely primarily on these partners to market and suppert.our products and plan on
continuing to rely heavily on such partners-in the future., We continue {0,expand our partner and distribution
networks and may be unable to attract additional partners with both voice and data expertise or appropriate
partners that will be able to market our pl‘oducts effectively and- that will be" Quallﬁed to provide timely and
cost-effective customer support ‘and service. We' generally do not have ‘long-term or exclusive agreements with
our partners, and the loss of specific larger partners ‘or a significant nurnber of partneis 'cotild matetialty -
adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of gperations, In a,ddm,on, due.to_the current )
economic conditions, the risk of failure of a spec1ﬁc partner or a significant ‘number of partners is 1ncreased, )
which failure could also materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

If We Are Unable to. Maintain the Compatlblhty of Our Software Wlth Certam Other Products and
Technologies, Our Future Busmess Would be Adversely Affected ) .

Our software must integrate with software and hardware solutions: provrded by a numbet of our existing
and potential competitors. For example; our products must integrate with-phone’ switches ‘made by the
telephone switch vendors and computer telephony Software applications offered-by othier software providers.
These competitors or their business partners could alter their products so: that our softwaré no longer integrates
well with them, or they could delay or deny our access to software releases that allow us to trmely adapt our
software to integrate with their products. If we cannot adapt our software to changes in necessary technology,
it may significantly impair our ability to compete effectively, particularly if our software must integrate ‘with
the software and hardware solutions-of our competitors. .

Our Products Require Wide Area Networks -and We May be Unable to Sell Our Pxoducts ’Where
Networks Do Not Perform Adequately

Our products also depend on the rehablo« performa.nce of the mde area networks of busmesses and
organizations, including those that employ remote-and mobile workers..If enterprise customers experience
inadequate performance with their wide area networks, whether due to outages, component failures, or
otherwise, our product performance would be adversely affected. As a result, when these types of problems
occur with these networks, our enterprise customers may .not be able to;immediately .identify :the source of the
problem, and may conclude that the problem is related to our products. This could harm our relationships with
our current enterprise customers and make it more difficult to attract new enterprise customers, Which could
negatively affect our business. - - - : i : C ;

We May Not Be Able to Protect Our Proprietary nghts Adequately, Which Could Allow Thrrd Parties
to Copy or Otherwise Obtain and Use Our Technology Without Authorization v

We regard our software products as proprietary.:In-an effort to protect our proprietary rights, we rely
primarily on a combination of copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as patents, licensing and
other agreements with consultants, suppliers, partners and customers, and employee and third-party
non-disclosure agreements. These laws and agreements provide:only limited protection of our proprietary
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rights. It may be possible for a third party to copy or ptherwise obtain and use our technology without
authorization. A third party could also develop similar technology independently. In addition, the laws of some
countries in which we license our products do not protect our software and intellectual property rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States. Unauthorized copying, use or reverse engineering of our
products could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.

Specific, Negotiated Provisions in Agreements May Expose Us to Llablhty That Is Not Limited in
Amount By the Terms of the Contract

Certain contract provisions, principatty conﬁdenuahty and mdemmﬁcanon obligations in‘certain of our
license agreements, could expose us to risks of loss that, in some cases, are not limited by contract to a specified
maximuen amount but dre generally limited by various pre-conditions to coverage. We could be subject to
additional liability and our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely
affected if those seeking to enforce these contract provisions are successful in thejr assertions.

Infringement Claims Could Adversely Affect Us

Third parties have claimed and ‘may in the future claim that our technology infringes their proprietary
rights. As the number of software products in our target markets increases and the functionality of these
products ‘overlap, we believe that software developers may face additional infringement claims.

Infringement clauns, even if wnthout ment can be time consuming and expensive to defend. A third party
asserting infringement claims against us or our customers with respect to our current or future products may
require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or litigation, or otherwise materially adversely affect us.

We Depend on Key Personnel and Must Retain and Recrmt Skilled Personnel, for Which Competition
Is Intense

Our success depends in large part on the contmued service of our key personnel particularly Dr. Donald
E. Brown, our Chief Executive Officer and largest shareholder, The loss of the services of Dr. Brown or other
key personnel could have a material adverse effect on oiir business, financial condition or results of
operations. Our future success also depends on our. ability to attract, train, assimilate and retain additional
qualified personnel. Competition for persons with skills in the software industry is intense, particularly for
those with relevant technical and/or sales experience. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain our
key employees or that we can attract, train, assimilate or retain other highly qualified personnel in the future.

Our International Operations Involve Financial and Operational Risks Which May Adversely Affect
Our Business and Operating Results

Our international operations require significant management attention and financial resources to establish and
operate, including hiring. appropriate personnel and recruiting effective international partners. Non-North American
revenues accounted for 30%, 31% and 27% of our total revenues for each of the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010. We intend to continue to emphasize our international operations and we may enter additional
international markets. Revenues from international operations may be inadequate to cover the expenses of those
operations. Risks inherent in our international business activities may include the- following:

*  economic and political instabﬂity;
»  unexpected changes.in foreign regulatory requirements and laws;
o tariffs and other trade barriers; " ’ o

*  timing, cost and potential difficulty of adaptmg our software products to the local language in those
foreign countries that do not use the English alphabet, such as Japan, Korea and Ching;

» lack of acceptance of eurimducts‘:in foreign nountries;v | | |

*  longer sales cycles and accounts receivable payment cycles;

¢  potentially adverse tax conseguences; ' o

I

e  restrictions on the repatriation of funds;
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. acts of tetrorism; and o

. ) mcreased govemment regulauons related to mcreasmg or reducmg business act1v1ty in
various countnes

oy

Fluctuations-in- excharige rates between the United States dollar and other Currencles could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, and particularly, on our
operating margins and net incomé. We maintain a currency hedging program to- help mitigate future effects of
fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates on cash and receivables. These hedging techniques may not be -
successful. Exchange rate fluctuations could also make our products more expensive than competitive
products not subject to these ﬂuctuanons which could adversely affect our revenues and proﬁtabﬂrty in
international ‘markets. - - b

Malicious Human Actlons or Catastrophlc Events May Dlsrupt Our Operatlons and Aﬁect Our “
Operating Results

The continued threat of terrorism and. heightened secutity and military -action in response to this threat, or
any future acts of terrorism, may cause further disruptions to the economies of the United States and other
countries and create further uncertainties or otherwise materially harm our business, operating results, and
financial eondition: Likewise; évents such as widespread blackouts could have similar negative impaots. To the
extent that such disruptions or uncertainties result in delays or cancellations of customer orders or the
manufacture or shipment of our products, our busmess operatmg results and financial condition could be
materially: and adversely affected. ‘ , : ’ :

A disruption or failure of our 'systéms or operations:in the event of a major ehrthquake; weather event,
terrorist attack, or other catastrophic event could cause delays in completing sales, providing services ot
performing other mission-critical functions. A catastrophic event that results in the destruction or drsruptrqn of
any of our critical business or information technology systems could harm our alnhty to conduct normal -
business operations and our operating results.

A Failure or Compromise of Our Informatjon Securlty Measures Could Rosult in Substanqal Harm to
Our Reputation, Dally Operatlons, or Proﬁtability

We utilize web-based systems and applications to process new oi'dets to provrde support services to our
customers and partners, and to communicate information to the public. Because these systems are
Internet-facing, they have been, and lrkely will continue to be, subject 16 a variety of cyber-attacks whrch if
successful, could drsrupt our ab;lity to process new orders and provide support services' eﬂ’ectlve‘ly ’
Addrtlonally, we house corporaté 1ntellectual property and varying amounts of sensrtxve customer mformatlon
on our pnvate network and within our cloud based serv1ces envu‘onment

. s n 1 M 1ot

We have implemented technical and adrmmstranve controls desrgned to protect the confidentiality,
integrity, and availability of these systems and the data they hause. We-have also implemented commercially
available products-and system tools designed to monitor, detect and/or prevent cyber-attacks and other
malicious activity that may occur on our systems. Additionally, we have developed and unplemented processes
to respond to and mitigate identified issues quickly and effectively. :

I these sequrity measures fail or are compromised or we fail to tetect and mitigate any such compromise
promptly, it could result in.the:loss of intellectual property, the breach of semsitive customer infornation entrusted
to our care, damage to our reputation, disription of routine operations, and/or material financial expense related to
the mitigation or response to, or litigation arising from, any particular issue. Although we maintain cyber liability
insurance, such i msurance may not adequately or umely compensate us for all losses we may incur.

In 2012, we did not experience. any such events, either mdrvrdually or.in aggregate that resulted in any
matenal financial impact or any material loss or exposure of sensitive-data.. . .

Changes in Corporate Taxes or Adverse Outcomes Resultmg from Examination of Our Income Tax
Returns Could Adversely Affect Our’ Results

Our :provision for income taxes could be adversely aﬂ'ected by changes in the valuation of our deferred
tax assets and liabilities; by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries that have lower tax rates and
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higher than anticipated in countries that have higher tax rates; by expiration of or lapses in:the research and
development tax credit laws; by transfer pricing adjustments including the post-acquisition integration of
purchased intangible assets from certain acquisitions into our intercompany Tesearch and development cost
sharing arrangement; by tax effects of nondeductible stock option expense; by tax costs related to
intercompany fealigninents; by foreign:losses not being utidized to offset future taxable income; or by changes
in tax-daws, regulations and accounting principles, including accounting for uncertain tax:pesitions or. . .
interpretations thereof. If amounts included in tax returns are reduced or disallowed, it. would reduce our loss.
carryforwards and tax.credits and.the:amaunt of expected futute pon-cash income tax expense used by
management .and.investors. Judgment is required to determiine the. recognition and measurement attributes
prescribed in FASB ASC:.Topic 740, Income. Taxes {“FA$B ASE 7407). In addition, FASB ASC.740 applies
to all income tax positions, including the potential recovery of previously paid taxes, which if settled. .. .
unfavorably could adversely impact our provision for income taxes or additional paid-in capital. Further, as a_
result of ceftain of our ‘Ohgoing employment and capital investment actions and comtiitments, our incorfie'in
certain tax jurisdictions is subject to reduced tax rates and in some cases is wholly exempt from tax. Our "%
failure: to meet these-commitments could adversely impact our provisian for income taxes. In addition, we are
subject to the examination of our income tax. returns hy the U.S. Internal Revenue Service and other tax .
authorities. We have .alse.recorded state and: lpeal income tax inoeptives as-a reduction: of certain operating
expenses and if those incentives were ta be disallowed;we may be required to.record additional expense. We . -
regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these; examinations to-determine the -
adequacy of our provision for income taxes. There. can.be no, assurance that the outcomes from these.; ;.
continuous examinations will not have an adverse effect on our operating results and financial conditign,:;1:

As a Holding Company, Interactive Intelligence Depends in:Large Part on Dividends from Its Operating
Subsidiaries to Satisfy Its Obligations ST S DI S

Interactive Intelligence is a holding company with no Business operations of its own. Its only significant

) ) [ TN 7 . AN o . . . R SRR ’;
assets are the outstanding shares of capital stock of its subsidiaries. As a result, it relies on funds from its
current subsidiaries and any subsidiaries that it may form in the future to meet its obligations. s

Although We Expect that the Distribution of Lafitude Stock and the Transt ”’}f‘ofA,ség{,s;t,ii‘fsgbéidmn:' iesof

Interactive Intelligence by Its Subsidiary ININ Inc. Will Not Result i Any Immediatt Federal Income Tax
Liability to Interactive Intelligence or ININ Inc., the Internal Revenue Service May Disagree S

Aftgr the consummation of the corporate feorganization, ININ Inc. disﬁ‘ibutéd the stock of Lafitude o ggs »
parent Interactive Intelligence, transferred. certain assets to newly created subsidiaries and spun off one of

v . : i

these newly created subsidiaries to Interactive',hnt{;ﬁigence'.,:we do not believe' that these actions resulted in
any immediate federal income tax liability to I tgréu':,gﬁ(és Intelligence or ININ Inc. However, neither };i;éracﬁv’e
Intelligence nor ININ Inc. has requested nor will request a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue
Service as to the tax consequences of these actions. As a result, the Internal Revenue Service could take the
position that these actions:do not constitute tax-free transactions. ‘In sach ease, ININ Inc. may-be treated as
having instead ‘made a taxable'distribution(s), which: ‘could result in material tax liability to Interaotive
Intelligence or ININ Inc. In addition; Interdctive Ihitelligence may ingur state income tax as a result of these.
actions, but we do not believe that these taxes will:be material. ..« - 0 e L e ;

We Are Exposed to Fluctuations in the Market Value of .Our Money Market Fands and Investments.
The Fingncial Pressare on Investment Institutibns’ Managing Our Investments:or the Failure.of Such -
Entities May Lead: to Restrictions on' Access to:Qur Investments Which - Could Negatively Impact Our
Balsiive of Cash sind Cash Equivalents, thus Affecting Our Qverall Financial Condition - '

We maintain an investment portfolio of various holdings and maturities of up to three years. These
secutities arerecorded on our cérfsolidated:bakatice sheets at fair value. This-portfolio includes-money-market
funds, notes, bonds and commercial papet of various jgsuers: Ifthe debt of thése issuers iy downgraddd;:the
carrying valug of these, inyestments could be impaired, In addition, we could also face defaylt risk from some
of these issuers, which could cause the carrying value to be impaired, ffnancxﬂqxpsntut}on?s have been under .
significant pressure over the past several quarters. Should one or more of the financial institutions managing
our invested: funds experience-increased:financial préssure resulting ‘in'bankruptcy, or the threat of bapkruptcy,

access to our funds may be restricted for a period of time and may also:result inslosses -on those funds.
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Our cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid. investments .with original maturities of -three. months.or ..
less:at.the tirhe of purchase. We maintain the cash and cash:equivalents with reputable major financial <. «. -
institutions. Deposits with these banks exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation:insurance limits:or -
similar limits in forelgn Jurisdictions. While we monitor daily the cash balances in the operating accounts and
adjust ‘the balances as apprbpnate thése’ balances dould e ul;ﬁact‘ed if'o one ‘ot tnore’ of tllé’ financial ‘institutiohs
with which'we depdsit falls of ‘is subject to'Bther advetse condmoris‘ i the findncial - or *Credit marl(ets To date’
we have experienced no loss or lack of access to our invested &ash 6 cash’ equtvaleht's howeveér,'we can
provide no assurance that access to our invested cash and cash equrvalents wrll ot be 1mpacted by adverse
condrtlons in the ﬁnancral and credit markets

Our Stock Price Has Been and Could Continue to Be' nghly Volatlle v

‘1

Our stock pnce has been and could contrnue to be h1gh1y volatrle due to a number of factors 1nclud1ng

. actual or ant101pated ﬂuctuatlons in our operatmg results
e announcements by us, our competltors or our customers

*  changes in financial estimates of securrtres analysts or mvestors regardmg us, our mdustry or
- our competitors; N R , )

D

. technologrcal innovations by others;
e the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companles or of our competrtors,

o the avarlabrhty for future sale, or sales, of a substannal number of shares of our common stock in
‘the public market; and ’

N ) . LY T “;llr ¥ ’.:r

e  general market or economic conditions. .. i o o L onn

This risk may be heightened because our industry is continually eyglylng,"cllaracteﬁifed by:rapid

technological change, and is susceptible to the mtroduct1on of ne\fwl competmg technologles or co{mpetrtors
o H FENEENT LI

In addition, the stock market has experienced significant price and volume ﬂuctuatrons in the recent past
that have particularly affected the trading prices of equity securities of many technology companies, incldding
us. These price and volume fluctuations often have been unrelated to the operating performance of the affected
companies. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s-sécuritiés, securities -
class action litigation has sometimes been instituted, against that company. This type of lltlgatron regardless of
the outcome, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management s attentron and resources whrch
could matenally and adversely aﬁect our busmess, ﬁnanmal condrtlon or results of operatlons ) '

Changes Made to Generally Accepted Accountmg Prmclples and Other Legislatrve @hanges May Impact
Our Business I ST SN PR SR .

13 i
Revrsrons to generally accepted accountmg pnncrples w111 requrre us to revrew our accountmg and ,
ﬁnancral reporting procedures in order to ensure, contmued comphance w1th requlred polrcles From time to
time, such changes may have a short-term 1mpact on our reportmg, and these changes may unpact ma.rket
perception of our financial condition. In addition, legrslatlve changes and the percepnon these changes create
can have a material adverse effect on our business.

Failure to Maintain Effective Internal Controls in Accordance with Sectlon 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 Could Have a Material Adverse Eﬂ'ect on Our Busmess, Operating Results and St0ck Prlce

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes—Oxley Act”) imposes certain duties on us and our
executives and directors. We are also required to comply with the internal gontrol ever-financial-reporting.. .
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Our efforts to comply with the requirements of
Section 404 have resulted in' increased general and administrative’ ‘expense and 4 d1versron of management
time and- attention from revente-géfierating dctivities'to compliance- 4ctivities, and we expect these efforts to
require the continued commitment of significant resources.

. c . . CRLESER Y de s g e
If we fail to maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, we may not be able to conclude that we have
effective internal control over financial reporting. Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial
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reporting could result in a material misstatement or an investigation by regulatory authorities,: and could have
a material adverse effect on our business and operating results, investor. conﬁdence in our neported financial
information, and the market-price -of our common, stock. i

Antx,Takeover Provisions in Our Orgamzaﬁonal Documents and Indxana Law Make Any Change in
Control of Us More DIMcult, May Discourage Bids at a. Premlum over.the Market Price and May .
Adversely Affect the Market Price of Our Stock

Our Atrticles of Incorporation and By-Laws contain provisions that may havé the effect of delaymg,
deferring or preventing a change in control of us, may discourage bids at a prerium over the market price of
our common stock and may adversely affect the market price of our commen stock; and the voting and other
rights of the holders of our common stock. These provrsrons include:

o the division of our board of directors into three classes servmg staggered three -year terms,
» removal of directors only for cause and only upon a 66 2/3% shareholder vote;
»  prohibiting shareholders from calling a specral meetmg of shareholders;

» the ability 1o issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock thhout shareholders’
approval; and

»  advance notice requirements for raising business or making nominations at sharehOlders’ meetings.

The Indiana Business Corporation Law (“IBCL”) contains business combination provrsrons that, in
general, prohibit for five years any business combination with a beneficial owner of 10% or more of our
common stock unless the holder’s acquisition of the stock was approved in advance by our board of directors.
The IBCL also contains control share acquisition provisions that limit the ability of certain shareholders to
vote their shares unless their control share acquisition is approved.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

'None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our world headquarters are located in approximately 250 000 square feet of space in three oﬁce L
buildings in Indianapolis, Indiana. We lease the space under an operating lease agreement and amendments
which expire on March 31, 2018. We also occupy a product distribution center in Indianapolis, Indiana and
five regional offices in the United States which ase Jocated in Annapolis, Maryland; Hemedon, Virginia; Irvine, .
California; Columbia, South Carolina; and Jacksonville, Florida. Additionally, we lease offices for each of out .
Canada, EMEA and APAC operations in Montreal, Quebec Berkshire, United Kingdom; and Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia, respectively, and have several other office leases throughout the Uhited States and in 20 other
countries. We rent office space for sales services, development and international officés under long-term and
month-to-month leases. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 840, Leases, rental expenSe is recogmzed ratably
over the lease period, including those leases containing escalatron cIauses '

We believe all of our facilities, including our world headquaners, regional oﬂices and mtematronal oﬂ'}ces
in EMEA and APAC, are adequate and well su:;ed to accommodate our busmess operatrogs ‘Ve conqnuously
review spacc requlrements to ensure we have adequate room for growth in the future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. - ‘ ‘

The i.nformation set forth under ‘“‘Iegal Proceedings” in Note Lll of Notes to Consoljpated F_inancial :
Statements included in Item 8 of this. Annual Report on Form 10-K is ingorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES »
Not applicable ‘ a ' ; ‘
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PART 11

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITHES. .. .~

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the twker symbol ININ. The
following table sets forth, for the quarterly, periods mdlcated the hlgh and low common stock prices per share
as reported by ‘The NASDAQ Global Select Market:

o . 2012 ‘ 2011 :
Quarter Ended: High Low High Low
March31 ............. Y e e $31.60  $22.56 $39.00 $25.90
June 30 .. ... 3234 2452 ¢ 4197 31.23
September 30 . . . ... ... . ... 31.44 24.35 40.92 26.76
December 31 ...... .. ..., 34.92 28. 52 34.34 20.76

As of February 28, 2013, there were 90 reglstered holders of record of our common stock:

We have never declared or paid cash d1v1dends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain
future earnings, if any, to finance operations and to'expand our business. Any future determination to declare
or pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our Board: of Directors and will depend upon our financial
condition, operating results, capital requirements and other factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to shareholders of our common stock from
December 31, 2007 through December 31, 2012 with the cumulative total return over such period of (i) the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (the S&P 500 Index) and (ii) the Research Data Group Software ‘
Composite Index (the RDG Software Composite Index). The graph assumes an investment of $100 on
December 31, 2007 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the RDG Software Composite
Index (and the reinvestment of all dividends). The performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future
performance. The comparisons shown in the graph below are based on historical data and we caution that the
stock price performance shown is not indicative of; and is not intended to forecast, the potential future
performance of our common stock. Information used in the graph was obtained from Research Data Group, a
source believed to be reliable, but we are not responsible for any errors or omissions in such information.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN o
Among intarsctive intelligence Gmup.’lnc.,thtmmmmd the RDG Software Composite Index
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B Cumulative Total Return
Years Ended December 31,

oo ' e 2007 aps 12008, 53009 0 2010 4 1 2011 2012 .
Interactive Intelligence Greup, Inc. .. ' $100.00° -$24:33 ¢ '$70.02° ~ $99.28 - $86.98  $127.29
S&P500 . ...... ... ... .. 100.00 63.00 79.67 79.67 93.61 108.59
RDG Software Composite . ........ 100.00 59.33 90.36 90.36 93.66 107 39

" The prece(jlng Performance Gra?h ‘ind related information ‘shiall not ‘be deemed “sohcmng material,”
to be “filed” with thie SEC, nor shall such information be mcorporated by reéfefencé in any ﬁlmg of’
Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. under the Exchange Act ot the Securities Act of 1933 whéther made
before or after the ddte hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such ﬁlmg

The remaining mformat.xon required by this Item 5 concerning securities authorized for i issuance under
our equity compensation plans is set forth in or incorporated by reference to Item 12 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following selected consolidated financial data (in thousands, except per share amounts) is qualified in
its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and ‘our Consolidated-Financial Stat¢ements and the Notes thereto
contained in Items 7 and ‘8, respectively, of thls Annual Report on’ Form lO—K Thefe were no cash dividends
declared per common share. : '

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

, , Years Ended December 31,
, L2012 201 2010 2009 . 2008
Total revenues . . .. ............... $237365 '$209,526  $166,315  $131,418  $121,406
Gross profit . .. ... .......... e 157,778, 144,101 115585 =~ 91,524 82, 268
Operating income . . ............... 1,083 21,641 23369 14,441 " 6,948
Netincome ..................... 906 14798 14901 8640 433"
Net income per share: : It : : » "
Basic ......... T T “$ 005 & 079 $:08 -$ 051 $ 024
Diluted ............. ool oo 004 0.74 0.79 - 047 0.23.
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: »
: 'As of Dedelnber 31,
2012 Co20010 20100 7 2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents and
investments . .................. $ 80,630 $ 92469 $ 85882 $ 64979 $ 45510
Net working capital ............... 56,069 64,069 70,408 54,149 35,504
Total assets . . ..........cccuovuu.n. 281,796 232,802 176,232 132,668 105,183
Total shareholders’ equity ........... 144,117 129,974 99,264 67,607 47,247

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fmancml Condmon and Results of Operations
is intended to provide our investors with an understanding of our past performance, our financial condition
and our prospects and should be read in conjunction with other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including Item 1 “Business”; Item 6 “Selected Financial Data”; and Item 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data”. Investors should carefully review the information contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K under Item 1A “Risk Factors”. The following will be discussed and analyzed:

*  Overview
e Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
« 2012 Highlights *
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¢  Historical Results of Operations .

- 'COmparlson of Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
*  Liquidity and Capital Resources '
*  Contractyal Obligations. ;.

*  Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

b

Overview
Our Business

We were founded in 1994 and have ‘been developmg a fully-integrated suite of apphcatrons as pdrt of our
Interactive Intelligence Customer Interaction Center® (“CIC”) platform that manages interactions by -
telephone, e-mail, fax, voicemail messages, Internet web chat, Short Message Service '(*SMS”) text, social’
media or other commumcatlon means. Today we believe we have the broadest set of applications developed
by one provider mcludmg interactive voice response (“IVR”™), automated call dlstnbutxon ( “A\CD”) outbound
dialing, recording, post-call surveys, workforce management (“WEM”) and pnvate branch exchange (“PBX”)
telephone systems. We have also developed a business process automation solution that is based on the
communications platform, and is easily managed from a common administrative interface with license keys
controlling the functionality and number of users. - : s

In addition to CIC and business process' automation, we have acqulred companies that provide document
management, accounts receivable management and forecasting/capacity ‘planhing soltitions. These solutions
complement the functionality of CIC, expand our market potential, and provide cross-selhng opportunities. -
Our CIC and accounts receivable’ management solutions can be-deployed on-prehﬁses or delivered viaa -
cloud-based deployment. We anticipate that cloud-based deployment opttons w111 be avarlable for the other
apphcations we oﬁer wrthm the next year.

Addrtlonally, we prov1de hardware mcludlng servers gateways and telephone handsets which are
principally. obtained from third parties including Hewlett-Packard Company, AudioCodes and Polycom.
Certain items such as our Session Initiation Protocpl (“SIP”) Station for contact center agents are ,
manufactured to our specifications, and we assemble our Interaction Gateway® using custom designed servers
and third party voice cards. :

In the past several years there has been a migration of contact centers from legacy Time Division
Multiplex (“TDM”) based technology from larger competitors such as Avaya, Aspect and Genesys to Voice
over Internet Protocol (“VolP”) We compete primarily with the incumbent TDM provxders and Cisco when
customers are unplementmg VoIP technology. While most of these new VoIP implementations have been
on-premises, during the past four years we have seen an increasing move from on-premises to cloud-based
alternatives. Our cloud-based competitors are principally in Contact, Inc., Five9, Inc., Echopass Corporatlon
and Contactual Inc. ‘

We market our solutions directly to customers and through a network of over 350 reseller partners
throughout the world:' We acquired parthers in Germany and 'Australia in 2011 and Sdiith Africa and the
Netherlands in 2012 to increase our direct presence intematioialy, In 2012 out parters accounted for 34% of
all orders received, with ‘66% of our orders sold directly to customers. Geographically, 72% of our orders
received in 2012 were from the Americas, 20% from Europe, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”)-and
8% from the Asia-Pacific (‘“APAC”) region.

Results and Trends in 2012 - :

Our orders increased 48% in 2012 compared to 2011, with a 30% increase in orders from existing
customers and a 64% increase in orders from new customers. Orders for our cloud-based deployments
continued to increase as a percent of total orders from 11% in 2010 to 23% in 2011 to 35% in 2012." As
cloud-based orders increase as a percentage of total orders an mcreasmg percentage of revenue is deferred
from current revenue to recurring, resultmg in lower revenues recogmzed for the current perrod and lower
non-GAAP operatmg margins, (as dlscussed under “Hlstoncal Results of Operauons — Non-GAAP metrics”’).

ERE N

In 2012 on-premises ‘orders mcreased 25% Year-over-year while product revehues were.down 4%
compared to 2011, primarily due to the deferral of revenue for certain product orders because of their payment
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terms and because software included in some orders was not generally: available by the end of 2012.
Additionally, we received one large order in the fourth quarter of 2012 which required revenug deferral
because of specific contract terms. Cloud-based orders increased 123% in 2012 compared to 2011, and
cloud-based revenues, which are included in recurring revenues, increased 54%. As such, our unrecognized
future cloud-based revenues increased from $34.6 million at the end of 2011 t0'$89.6 million at the end

of 2012. T C

A key element of our 2012 strategy was a 27% increase in our investment in sales, marketing arid
development efforts targeted to aggressively take advantage of our differentiated cloud-based offering. Since a
larger portion of the orders received in 2012 were cloud-based and not recognized immediately, the =
combination of deferred recognition of a larger percent of orders and increasing operating expenses resulted in
a decrease in our operating margin in 2012.

To address the expanding interest in cloud-based deployments, we added or e_Xpandpd data centers in
Brazil, the United States and Japan in 2012. These data cgenpers required capital investments of $4.1 million in
2012 and staffing and operational costs for cloud-based deployments increased from $11.2 million in 2011 to”
$16.0 million in 2012. = -

Direct orders increased from 47% in 2011 to 66% in 2012 due to a large increase in direct orders and our
acquisitions of certain reseller partners. Additionally, while partners are. involved in certain of our cloud-based
orders, the majority of cloud-based customers are direct customers. As a result of the increase in direct orders,
professional services contracts in 2012 increased 89% compared to 2011. Professional services revenues for .
cloud-based engagements contracted in 2011 and prior years were deferred and recognized over.the . .- ’,‘
subscription period. In 2012, we performed an analysis in accordance with FASB EITF Issue 08-1, Revenue
Recognition with Multiple Deliverables, and determined that due to a change in circumstances which, occurred
in 2012, there is sufficient evidence of standalone value for professional services to account for these as a
separate deliverable, thus' we now recognize revenue using the proportional performaiice method instead of
deferring revenue over the life of the contract. As such, for professional service engagements for cloud-based
customers contracted in 2012 and later, revenues are recognized as delivered. The incréase in professional
services contracts combined with the proportional performance method of recognition for professional services
for new contracts entered into in 2012, resulted in an increase in recognized professional revenues of
35% from $16.8 million in 2011 to $22.7 million in 2012.

Our gross margin declined to 66.5% in 2012 compared to 68.8% in 2011 becguée of the cdmparatively
faster increase in cloud-based and services revenues, both of which have lower gross margins than our overall
gross margin. ' t ‘

Outlook for 2013

During 2013 we expect total orders to increase by approximately 20% and that cloud-based orders will
grow to approximately 50% of total orders. Recurring revenues are expected tq increase as a result this
increase in cloud-based revenues as well as increases in support revenues. Additionally, we expect services
revenues to continue to increase. If the dollar amount, and mix between.on-premises-and cloud-based orders
occur as forecasted, we expect total 2013 revenues.to be in the range of $285 million to $290 million.

Gross margins for 2013 may decline as our cloud-based revenues and services revenues, both of which
have lower gross margins than our overall gross margin, are expected to increase at a faster rate than -
overall revenues. : :

v, al

The continued shift to cloud-based orders will resulf in orders received in the current period that will be
recognized in future periods. We have announcéd deyelopment of a new version of our cloud-based solution
that is targeted to smaller contact centers with less complex implemeritations, and we are creating ‘an inside
sales ‘organization to market to small contact centers. The costs of these efforts are expected to total
approximately $5 million during 2013, which are included in the anticipated expense increases for the year,
with minimal directly related revenues recognized. Based on thesé assumptions, we-expect our non-GAAP
operating margin for 2013 will be between three.and five percent. .- i \
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe our accounting policies listed below are important to understanding our historical and future
performance, as these policies affect our reported amounts of revenues and expenses and are applied to
significant areas involving management’s judgments and estimates. Such accounting policies require significant
judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements included
in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and actual results could differ materially from the amounts
reported based on these policies. These policies, and our procedures related to these policies, are described
below. See also Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for a further summary of our significant accountmg policies and methods used in the
preparation of our consohdated financial statements

Sources of Revenues and Revenue Recognition Policy

Product revenues are generated from licensing the right to use our software applications and selling hardware
as a component of our solution. Recurring revenues are generated from our cloud-based offerings and annual
support fees. Services revenues are generated primarily from professional services and educational services.
Revenues are generated by direct sales with customers and by indirect sales through a partner channel.

Product Revenues

~ Our license agreements are substantially all perpetual. The following cntena must be met before we can
recognize any revenue from a license agreement:

*  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
e  The fee is fixed or determinable;

i

*  Collection is probable; and
¢ Delivery has occurred.

Upon meeting the revenue recognition critéria above, we immediately recognize as product revenues the
residual amount of the total contract fees if sufficient vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair
value exists to support allocating a portion of the total fee to the undelivered elements of the arrangement. If
sufficient VSOE of fair value for the undelivered elements does not exist, we recognize the initial license fee
as product revenues ratably over the initial term of the support agreement once support is the only undelivered
element. The support period is generally 12 months but may be up to 18 months for initial orders because
support begins when the licenses are downloaded, when support commences, or no more than six months
following the contract date. If the contract includes prepaid support, the support period may be up to
36 months. We determine VSOE of fair value for support in on-premises arrangements based on substantive
renewal rates the customer must pay to renew the support. The VSOE of fair value for other services is based
on amounts charged when the services are sold in stand-alone sales.

We recognize revenues related to any hardware sales when the hardware is delivered and all other
revenue recognition criteria are met.

Recurring Revenues

We generate recurring revenues from our cloud-based offerings and annual support fees. Cloud-based
customers pay a minimum monthly fee to use a specified number of software licenses, plus any overages.
Customers are billed the greater of their minimum monthly fee or actual usage, and revenue is recognized
monthly as-the service is delivered. The total contract fee also includes an implementation fee, which is
recognized ratably over the term of the contract.

We recognize annual support fees as recurring revenues ratably over the post-contract support period,
which is typically 12 months, but may extend up to three years if prepaid.
Services Revenues

We generate revenues from other services that we provide to our customers and partners including fees
for professional services and educational services. Revenues from professional services, which include
implementing our products, and educational services, which consist of training courses for customers and
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partners, are recognized as the services are performed for contracts entered into in 2012 and after. Revenues
from professional services contracted in 2011 and prior years were deferred and recognized over the
subscription period. '

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We review goodwill' and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment at Jeast annually in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB’’) Account -Standards Update (“ASU”).
2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”)
Topic-350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. Guidance requires us 0 perform the goodwill impairment -
analysis annually or when a change in facts and circumstances indicates that the. fair value of .an asset may be
below its carrying amount. As of November 30, 2012, when our annual 2012 goodwill impairment test was
performed, we had one reporting segment and therefore our impairment review of goedwill. involved
reviewing the impairment of the Company as a whole. Identifiable intangible assets such as intellectual
property trademarks and patents are amortized over a 10 to 15 year period using the straight-line method. In
addition, other 'intghgible assets, such as customer relationships, core technology and rio__n-compete agieemeﬁts_
are amortized over a 5 to 18 year period using the straight-line method. Based on the review of the qualitative
events and circumstances outlined in FASB ASU 2011-08, we determined that it is more likely than not that
the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its carrying amount, and the two-step process of the ‘
goodwill impairment test was not necessary to perform. We determined no indication of impairment existed as
of November 30, 2012 when the annual goodwill impairment test was performed. ‘ '

See Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for further information on goodwill and other intangible assets.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Consistent with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation (“FASB ASC 718™), we continue
to use the Black-Scheles option-pricing model as our method of valuation for share-based payment awards, Our
determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number. of highly complex and subjective
variables. Thesg variables include, but are not limited, to, our expected stock price volatility over the term of the
awards and an expected risk-freg rate of return. If factors change and we use different assumptions for estimating
stock-based compensation expense associated with awards granted in future periods, stock-based compensation .
expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded. in the current period- :

We re¢ord compensation expense for share-based awards using the straight-line method, over the vesting’
peridd of the award. Stock-based compensation expense recognized under FASB ASC 718 for the years ended:
Decetnber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $6.7 million, $5:3 miltion and $4.0 million, respectively. See Note’5
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ‘in Item 8 of thi$ Annual Report on Form 10-K for further
information on our stock-based compensation. :

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit .
carryforwards: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected 10 apply to
taxable income in-the years in which thosé temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the periodthat
includes the enactment date.

FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes { ‘FASB ASC.740"), establishes financial accounting and reporting
standards for the effect of income taxes. We are subject to Federal and state income taxes in the United States
and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and
determining our provision for income taxes. The objectives of accounting: for income taxes are to recognize
the amount of faxes payable or refundable: for the;current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets; for. the
future.tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns.
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Variations in the actual ‘outcome of ‘these future-tax: consequences could matenally unpact our financial . .
position, résult$ of operations,.or cash flows. . .+, - - » : -

In assessmg the recqverablhty of defelred tax assets, our management cons1ders whether itis ‘more hkely
than not that s some portlon ot all of the deferred tax assets will not bé realized. The ultimate realization of =~
deferred tax assets is dependent Upon generatlon of future taxable in¢ore prior to the penod in whlch
temporary différences such as loss carryforwards and tax credits expire. Management cons1ders prOJected
future taxable income and tax planmng strategies in making this assessment. '

See Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial, Statements in Item 8 of thls Annual Report on Form 10 K
for fuxther mformatmn on our meome taxes.*: " SOl -

Research and Development . N ' X sl

FASB ASC Topic 985, Software, requires capltahzanon of ‘cettain software developmeht costs subsequient to
the establishment of technological feasibility. Based on our product devélopment prokess; technologlcal feasibility
is established upon completion of a working model. Costs incurred by us between completlcrn ‘of the working
model and the point at which the product is ready for general release have been ms1gmﬁcant Thiough
December 31, 2012, all research and development costs have been expensed. Research and development expense
for 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $45.7 million, $35.6 million and $28.3 million, respecnvely

Legal Proceedings

Liabilities for loss contmgencnes ansmg from claims, assessments, htlgatlon ﬁnes, a.nd penaltles and
other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment and/or remediation can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs in connection with loss contingencies
are expénsed as incurred.

Revenue, Order and Acquisition Highlights

The following tables set forth our total revenues (in millions) and the annual growth percentage over the
previous year for the past five years, and also a summary of the orders received during 2011 and 2012.
Revenues increased 13% for 2012 compared to 2011, 9% of which was organic and 4% was a result of the
incremental revenue from our acquisitions.

Year Revenies ~ Growth %
2012 ......... e et et i bae e $237.4 “13%
2011 L P L. 2095 26
2010 . e 1663 - 27
2009 ......... e e e Yoo 21304 8"
2008 ... e es. 1214 -~ 10
Order Results -\ Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011

*-{$ in thousands)
Increase in dollar amount of total orders from prior year . ................ LT 48% - 29%
Incredse in dollar amount of on-premises orders from prior year . ... .....<u. .70 25% 1%
Increase in dollar amount of cloud-based orders from prior year . ........... w5 123% . 187%
Cloud-based orders.as a % of total orders . ..............oo oo .. 35%. . 23‘79
Orders from new customers as a % of total orders . ....................... .60% 54% .
Number of new on-premises customers . . .. ..................oouun..... 230, .. 259
Number of new cloud-based customers ................................ 72 4
Total orders greater than $250,000 . ... ............ ... ... . 158 13
Acquisitions

On February 28, 2011, we entered into a stock purchase agreement w1th the shareholders of Agori ;
Communications GmbH (*“Agori”), and acquired 100% of Agori’s outstanding capital stock. On July 1, 2011,
we entered into a stock purchase agreement with CallTime Technology Sdn. Bhd., the ultimate parent
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company of CallTime Solutions Ltd. (“CallTime”), and acquired 100% of CallTime’s outstanding capital
stock. On January 5, 2012, we entered into an agreement with ATIO Corporation (Pty). Ltd. (‘“ATIO”), and
acquired certain Interactive Intelligence-related contact center assets of ATIO. On April 1, 2012, we entered
into a stock purchase agreement with Brightware B.V. (“Brightware™), and acquired 100% of Brightware’s
capital stock, On August 1, 2012, we entered into a stock purchase agreement with Bay Bridge Decision
Technologies, Inc. (“Bay Bridge”), and acquired 100% of Bay Bridge’s capital stock. Additional details for

each acquisition are as follows:

‘Working Capital

Purchase - Funding Amount Escrow #of
Company Description of Company Price Purchase Price Acquired Amount Employees
Agori Reseller $49 million  Cash on hand $808,000 $493,000 16
CallTime Reseller $11.4 million Cashonhand $1.4 million $2.1 million - 21
ATIO Reseller $7.0 million  Cash on hand $1.8 million $704,000 40
Brightware ~ Reseller $6.4 million Cashonhand $3.0 million  $461,800 14
Provider of Workforce
Optimization Software
Bay Bridge and Services $129 million Cashonhand $2.6 million  $1.3 million 2

Historical Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our consolidated financial information as a

percentage of total revenues:

Revenues:

Recurring . ........c.ininnnninninananeecens
SEIVICES .+ 2 e v v vt vt sts s eeaasaes s enasneens
Total TEVENUES . . o v v o v et v e oo eansaeansaanann

Costs of revenues:

RECUITING . . oo i i ittt
SEIVICES .« o oo v v e vie e emeiine et
Amortization of intangible assets . .................
Total coSts Of TEVENUES . . . . v v vt i v v ie e o s a e nonn
Gross profit . ......... ..ot

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing . ............. e
Research and development . . . ........... ... ...
General and administrative . . . ... ... ... oo .
Amortization of intangible assets ........... e e e
Total Operating €Xpenses . ... .......ceoseesesees
Operating inCoME . . . .. .o vt vevurearnaoeeensons
Interest iNCOME, MEL . .. . ..o c vt iv v neenscncnnans 3
Other inCOMe (EXPENSE) . . . ..o vvvvvvvnonseenenenns
Total Other iNCOME . . . .« ot i v v e e ettt it eeaaeeaenens
Income before income taxes . ...........ocieennnn
INCOme tax EXPenSe . .. ... covvvet e
Netineome .........icoveiniiencnnnenenacnens
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
37.3% 44.3% 47.6%

499 - 4.5 41.7
10.2 12.0 144
13.6 11.4 10.2
9.6 7.8 59
_o1 01 =
B5 312 305
665 688 695
33.6 30.1 28.3
19.2 17.0 17.0
12.5 10.8 10.0
06 _o0s o1
659 584 554
0.6 10.4 14.1
0.3 0.2 0.2
oy o1 _©1)
02 03 05
08 107 136
_03 _35 _46

0.5% 7.2% 9.0%

|
|
|



Non-GAAP Metrics Bl ; B SRt

In addition to measures based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
(‘GAAP”), our managsment monitors non-GAAP. diluted earnings per share (“EPS”), non-GAAP net income
and-non-GAAP operating income to analyze our business. These non-GAAP measures include revenue which
was not recognized on a GAAP basis due. to-purchase accounting adjustments and exclude:non-cash
stock-based compensation expense, non-cash putchase¢ accounting adjustments and;hon-cash income tax .
expense. These measures are not in accordance with, or an alternative for, GAAP, and may be different from
non-GAAP" measures tiscd by'other. companies. We believe that the presentation of non-GAAP results, when
shown in conjunctlon with corresponding GAAP measures, provides useful information to our management
and investors regardmg financial and business trends related to our results of operations. Further, our
management believes that these non-GAAP measures improve management’s and investors’ abnhty to compare
our financial perforxpance with other companies in the technology industry. Because stock-based compensatlon
expense, purchase aocountlng adJustments and non-cash income tax expense amounts can vary s1gmﬁcantly
between companies, it is usefif to compate results ex¢luding these amounts. Our management also uses
financial statements that exclude stock-based compensation expense, purchase accounting adjustments and
non-cash-income tax expense for our internal budgets. The following table provides a reconciliation of GAAP
net income, GAAP eperating income and -GAAP diluted EPS. with their non-GAAP counterparts. for the years

ended December.31, 2012, 2011 and 2010: o Vo e .
" Years Ended December 31,

: RS oo S 200200 .- 2011 - 2010
Net income, as reported ........ PO S 8 906 0 814,798 0 $14,901
Purchase accounting adjustments: ,
Increase to revenues: N S D . ‘ )

RECUITINE . .\ oottt it et et ety o aeeeeens s, o522 88

Services . ..............ieia, o= 54 4
Reduction of operating expenses; ‘ e o ,

Customer ‘relationships . ....... e ... 1341 886 166

Technology . ........ o ne e e 163 140 83

Non-compete agreements . . .. .., ........ S £V . 180, 45

Acquisition costs ... ...... e e e N ) | 600 . 89

Total ......... P e 2487 2331 475
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense:
Costs of reCurrmg révenues e e e et e 523 422 227

Costs of services- rcvenues ......................... 147 101 94

Sales and marketmg ........... e 2,250 1,677 1,230

Rescarch and development . .. ... ................... 1,886 1,570 1,178

General and admipistrative . ... ..................... 1,871 1,528 ‘ 1,250

Total . .. ... e ‘ 6,677 5,298 3,979
Non-cash ificome tax expense . .......... e e T — 2434 1176
Non-GAAP netiincome . .......... LSl YT 810,070 $24 861 $26,531

- L e RS o =t
Operating income, as reported . ..................... $ 1,083 $21 641 $23,369
Purchase accounting adjustments ................ e 2,487 2,331 475
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense . ... .... oo . 6,677 5,298 " 3,979
Non-GAAP operating income .. .................. .. $10,247 $29,270 $27,823
Diluted EPS, as reported . ......................... $ 004 $ 074 $ 079
Purchase accounting‘adjustments -. . . . . e e e 0.12 0.12 0.03
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense . ............. 0.34 0.27 0.21
Non-cash income taX éxpense ........................ — 0.12 0.37

Non-GAAP diluted EPS ....... ..., ..,.......,

weme 3. 050 0§ 125 $_140
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Revenues ,

Our revenues inchude: (i) product revenues, (ii) recurring revenues; and (iii) services revenues. During the
first quarter of 2012, we reclassified certain rental‘ reveniues ‘réldted to product orders from: product revenues to
recurring revenues) Historical amounts have been reclassified based on this new revenue presentation. Our
revenues. are generated by direct sales to customers and through our partner channels.

Product Revenues " Years Ended, December.31, .

e w2 201 2010
. ‘ ($ in thousands)
Product revenues . . . . .. S $88,626 "$92"/‘,786 $79,295
Change from prior year . ............. SO L @ 1% T 26%
Percentage of total revenues . ... ... U P Fr37.3% 44.3% 41.7%

PR B K . . LIRS SN0 3 S A PR S L BV R .
Product rgvenues include on-premises software licenses and hardware and are recognized when revenue
recognjtion criteria are met. . : , , : .

* Product revenues decreased $4.2 million, or 4%, in 2012 compared to2011 primarily because we -~
deferred product revenue of $13.7 million'as a result of orders‘that in¢luded software not.generally available
at the end of 2012, a portion of which are expected to be recognized during 2013: For 2012, CIC related
revenue represented 93% of product revenues. The number of CIC users added in 2012 was 113,000
compared to 95,000 in. 2011, an increase of 19% and in-line with the increase in on-premises orders of 25%
in 2012 compared.to 2011. While the mix of applications does vary year to year, we experienced stable per -
seat pricing. A -

Product revenues increased $14.9 million, or 19%, in 2011 compared to 2010, primarily due to increases “
in the dollar amount of orders received from both new and existing customers driven, in particular, by an"""
increasing number of sizable transactions. ‘ o

~ Not all software and hardware product orders are recognized as revenue when the orders ate received
from the customer because of product general availability, certain contractual terms or the collection history
with particular customers or partners. Consequently, product revenues for any particular period not only refiect
certain of the ordérls_ received in the current period but also include certain orders received but deferred in
previous periods and.recognized in-the current period. In addition, a portion of product orders are relited to
support, and thus that portion is recognized over the support period as recurring revenues.

Recurring Revenues Years Ended 'D‘ mber 31,

2012 2011 2010
(§ in thousands)
RECUITING TEVENUES . « . .« v oo eeeeeaean e ese e $118,343 $93,363 $69,262
Change from prior year . .................... e 27% - 35% ©23%
Percentage of total TeVenUes . . . ... ........co.ouo.onn- 49.9% 44.6% ' 41.6%

. -Recurring revenues include the support fees from on-premises license agreements and revenugs__ff@tn Qur
cloud-based solutions. The support fees are recognized over the support period, generally one ygar.

Cloud-based orders are for periods of one to five years, with an overall average contract term in 2012
of 51 months. .

The breakdown of recurring revenues was as follows: oy

N Years Ended December 31, .,

2012 2011 2010

: : . (§ in thousppds) - . - .
Support fees .. ........... e e - $96,322. ., $79074 . $62,864
Cloud-based . .............. e e 22,021 14,289 6,398
TOAL v v o et e e e e e e e e ~ $118,343 $93,363 = - $69.262

Recurring revenues increased $24.Si- million, or 27%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and $24.1 million, or
35%, in 2011 compared to 2010. These increases were due to continued increases in orders for our

34



cloud-based solutions, which once the solutions are deployed, begin to accrete revenues, increases in support
fees due to, the continued growth of our installed base of on-premises customers, and recent acquisitions. The
average number of hcensed seats associated with our ¢loug- -based orders was 8 ,000.in 2012, up from 4, OOO in
2011 and 2, 000 in 2010. Per seat pricing was. consmtent between 2012 and 2011, as were renewal rates for '

support fees. . . . e e g

i

Our unrecogmzed cotitracted cloud-based revenues were $89 6 mﬂhon and $34 6 rmlhon as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These unrecognized contracted cloud-based revenues are not
included in deferred revenues on pur balance sheet, but represent the remammg minimum value of
non-cancellable agreements that have not been invoiced to the customer. '

Services Revenues ‘ S Years Ended December 3,
2012 2011 2010
‘ SR - o . ($ in thousands)
Services revenues . ........... ..., R $30,396 - . $23377 - $17,758
Change from prioryear ............................ 30% © 32% 44%
Percentage of total revenues . ........................ 12.8% 11.2% 10.7%

Services revenues pnmanly include profess1ona1 and education services fees.

Services revenues mcreased $7 0 mllhon or 30%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and $5.6. rmlhon, or 32%,
from 2010, due to increases in the number and scope of professional service engagements and the number of
attendees at our:educational classes. The increase from 2010 .to 2011 was also the tesult of the number of
large implementations sold directly through our sales force that involved professional services; as well as
additional revenues related to-our acquisitions. Prios to 2012, professional services revenues related to
cloud-based implementations were deferred and recognized over the. length of a contract. In accordance with
FASB EITF Issue 08-1 Revenue Recognition with Multzple Delzvembles for contracts s1gned in 2012,
cloud based engagements were recognized as work was performed which contfibutéd to the year-over—year
increase in recognized services revenues from 2011 to 2012. In 2012, 2011 and 2010, professwnal services
revenues of $1.5 mllhon, $3.0 million and $1.4 million, respectively, were deferred. :

Services reveriues have and will continie to fluctuate based on the product implementation requlrements7
of our customers and partners as well as the number of attendées at our educatronal classés. We believe v
services revenues will continue to grow as product and cloud-based revenués increase, order sizes increase
and as we contract a greater percent of our orders directly with our customers.

Geographic Mix ; J e , T s
The following table sets forth the percentage of revenues derived from each of our geographic regions for
the periods presented :
S " . Years Ended December 31,

e T S SRR W2 -l . - 2010
North and Latin America . .. ....¢...00iuu... e e o 12.4% 71.0%:. . . 753% -
Europe, Middle East, and Africa ..., . .jpc v vy v v e iiein o . 20.1: . . 204 19.8
AsiarPacific.: . :...... ... L P .18 .86 . . . 50
Costs of Revenues Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Product ........ e S $24,329 $25,095 $23,868
Recurring . ... ... e e 32,227 23,801 16,991
Services . ..... . O 22,868 16,389 9,788
Total costs Of TEVENUES . .. .. .. v ee e ene s Y $79.424 $65,285 $50,647
Change fromprior year . ........................... 22% © 29% 27%
Product cost as a % of product gross revenues . . . . . .. e 27.5% . 27.0% 30.1%
Recurring cost as a % of recurring gross revenues ., ........ 27.2% 25.5% 24.5%
Services cost as a % of services gross revenues . . . ... .. e T52% 0 701% 55.1%
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Costs of Product Revenues SN . Ce R P

Costs of product revenues consist of hardware costs (including media setvers, Interattion Gateway®"
appliances and Interaction SIP' Stations™ that we develop, as well as servers, telephoné hindsets and
gateways that we purchase and resell), royalties fot third-party softwdre and other technologiés included in our
solutions, personnel costs and product distribution facility costs. These costs can fluctuate depending on which
software applications are licensed (including third-party software) and the:dollar amount of orders for
hardware and appliances. : L : : : : . R

Costs of product revenues decréased $766,000, or 3%, in 2012 compared to 2011. These decreases R
were primarily due to declines in the amount of hardware included in recognized on-premises orders as
well as the shift in total orders from on-premises to cloud-based solutions, which typically include fewer
hardware comporents. - g

Cost of product revenues increased $1.2 million, or 5%, in 2011 compared to 2010, but product costs as
a percentage of product revenues decreased from 30.1% to 26.0% as a result of fewer orders involving the
integration of hardware. . - : e

Costs of Recurring Revenues

Costs of recurring revenues consist primarily of compensation expenses for technical support personnel

and costs associated with our cloud-bas'ed bﬁeﬁngs. .

Costs of recurring revenues increased $8.4 million, or 35%, in 2012 compared to 2011. These higher .
costs were primarily due to an increase in compensation expenses, resulting from.a 38% increase.in staffing
through new hires and acquisitions as well as increased data center.and telecommunications €Xpenses.. « ¢+« ..

[ S

Cost of recurting fcvenucs incréasedi$6".8 million, of f}O%,‘ih 201 l"édxﬂpared to 2010,pmnanly due fo ‘
an increase in compensation expense as staffing increased year-over-year })y 38%, alorig with a corrgsponding
increase in travel and entertainment expenses. o T '

Some costs related to our cloud-based offerings, such as equipment expenses, are recognized over time,
but others such as salary and trave]-related expenses are recognized as incurred. Some of these costs are fixed
while others are variable based on usage and call volume. We expect operating margins for our cloud-based
offerings to improve over time as our business scales. J o

¢

Costs of Services Revenues

Costs of services revenues consist primarily of compensation expenses for professional services and
educational personnel. o R SRS

Costs of services revenues increased by $6.5 million, or 40%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and
$6.6 million, or 67%, in 2011 compared to 2010. These higher costs were primarily due to an increase in
compensation, travel; and other related expenses resulting from a staffing increase of 40% in 2012 and 66% in
2011 through staff hired or added through acquisitions to meet the growing demands for our professional -
services. Partially offsetting these increases were deferred professional services costs: of $1.5 millien,
$2.2 million and $1.0 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to our cloud-based professional -
services that are recognized ratably over the life of the related cloud-based contracts.

Gross Profit
’ Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 .
v ($ in thousands)
Gross Profit .. ...ovvvvivnennnn et $157,778 $144,101. . $115,585
Change from prior year . .............ccooueinntnnn 9% . 25%- . 26%
Percentage of total tevenues . .................... e 66.5% . 68.8% - 6%5%

Gross profit increased by $13.7 million in 2012 compared to 2011 afd $28.5 milli'o‘n‘i’n 2011 compared to
2010 as a result of the impact of the factors discussed above. ' R o
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Gross profit related-to our cloud-based offering was $5.8 million in 2012 and our gross margin on
cloud-based operations was 26.4% in 2012, up from $3.0 million and 21.4% in 2011 and $494,000 and 7.3%
in 2010. We are rapidly adding new cloud-based customers and have bu11t out our data centers for potential
customers in advance of revenue generation.

Gross margin declined to 66.5% in 2012 compared to 68.8% in 2011 because of the comparatively faster increase
in cloud-based and services revenues, both of which have lower gross margins than our overall gross margin.

Operating Expenses
Sales and Marketing » Years Ended Décember 31,
2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Sales and marketing eXpenses . .................00.0.... $79,770 $63,039 $47,072
Change from prior year . ................ ... ........ 27% 34% 20%
Percentage of total revenues .. ....................... 33.6% 30.1% 28.3%

Sales and marketmg expenses primarily include compensation, travel, and promotional costs related to
our direct sales, marketing, client success and channel management operations for our on-premises and
cloud-based deployments.

Sales and marketing expenses increased by $16.7 million, or 27%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and
$16.0 million, or 34%, in 2011 compared to 2010. These increases were primarily due to increases in
compensation and travel and entertainment expenses resulting from a staffing increase of 29% in 2012 and
34% in 2011 through staff hired or added through acquisitions, as well as increased spending on marketing
programs, mcludmg promotional and branding initiatives.

We expect sales.and marketing expenses to increase in future penods as we contmue expanding our sales
organization and increasing our marketing and other promotional efforts. We believe these investments are
critical to our future growth as we continue to increase our market share and expand internationally. In
addition, if our cloud-based orders as a percentage of total orders increases, marketing and sales expenses as a
percentage of total revenues may increase because revenues for cloud-based deployments are recognized over
time while most related sales and marketing expenses are recognized as incurred.

Research and Development Years Ended December 31,
\ 2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands)
Research and development expense .................... $45,682 $35,626 $28,349
Change fromprioryear ............................ 28% 26% 18%
Percentage of total revenues . .. ...........0 ... 192% - 17.0% 17.0%

Research and development expenses are comprised pnmanly of compensation expense, allocated
corporate costs and deprecxatlon expenses.

Research and development expenses mcreased by $10. 0 unlhon or 28%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and
$7.3 million, or 26%, in 2011 compared to 2010: These increases were primarily due to increased
compensation and other related expenses resulting from a staffing increase of 28% in 2012 and 2011 through
additional staff hired and acquired, as well as increases in outsourced services.

We believe that continued investment in research and development is critical to our future growth,
particularly because our competitive position in the marketplace is directly related to the timely development
of new and enhanced solutions. As a result, we expect research and development expenses will continue to
increase in future periods.

General and Administrative Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands)
General and administrative expense . ................... $29,722 $22,729 $16,584
Change from prioryear . ............c.cciiivnniennnn 31% 37% 20%
Percentage of total revenues . ........................ : 11.5% 10.8% 10.0%
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General and administrative expenses include compensation expense as well as general corporaie expenses
that are not allocable to othér departmerits, such as. legal, other professional fees and bad debt expense. We
expect that general and administrative expenses will continue to increase as we continue. to-expand our
staffing, acquire additional companies and expand our infrastructure-consistent with our:growth strategy.

General and administrative expenses increased $7.0 million, or 31%, in 2012 compared to 2011 and
$6.1 million, or 37%. in 2011 compared to. 2010. These increases wese primarily; due to an-increase in- -
compensation, travel and entertainment expenses, primarily resulting from a staffing increase of 42% in 2012
and 25% in 2011. Additionally, in 2011 the amortization of intangibles related to our acquisitions incréased °
$1.2 million compared to 2010 and professional services increased $1.8 million in 2011 compared t¢ 2010 for:
outside professional services related to our corporate reorganization, recent acquisitions and various other legal
matters within the normal course of business.

Other Income

Interest Income, net Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011” 2010
- : : : i 7. (§ in thousandsy
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments (average) .......... $86,550 $89,176 $75.431
Interest income, NEt ..., ooy e b e R i 469 340
Return on inVeStMENtS | . . . .« voievinoe o smmn oo P .. 0.89%, . 0.53%. 0.45%..

Interest income, net, primarily. consists of interest earned from investments and interest-bearing cash
accounts. Interest éxpensé and fees, which were not material in any years reported, ‘are also inclutiéd:

Interest earned on investments increased during 2012 compared to 2011 and during 2011 édhipa:ed to
2010 as a result of increasés:in investmerits with maturities between one -and three-yeéars plus higher cash and
investment balances in 2011 compared to 2010: In 2012, thesé incréases were pattially offset by lower: cash
and investment balasces. In the first quarter of 2011, 'we began'investing in‘longer ferm-investments with -
maturities up to three years to increase our overall yield on investments. We continue to monitor the allocation
of funds in which we have invested to maximize our réturn on investment within our established investment .
policy. We do not have any investiments in subprime assets. n ' S -

Other Income (Ex, pens e) ’ . Years Elide;l December 31,
2012 2011 2010
B _ o ($ in thopsands)
Other income (expense) ......... e $(189) $144 ©  §(1,146)

Other income. (expense) primarily includes foreign currency transaction gains and losses. These foreign
currency gains and losses fluctuate based on the amount of receivables we generate in certain international
currencies, the exchange gain or loss that results from foreign currency disbursements and receipts, and the
cash balances and exchange rates at the end of a reporting period. Other income ('expi:’xiée) for the year ended
December 31, 2012 included $289,000 of foreign currency ilosses, partially offset by a $100,000 usage credit
recorded from our credit card provider. The foreign currency. gain was $144,000 in 2011 and foreign currency
loss was $1.1 million in"2010. G e L ” ‘ .

The change in foreign currency in 2012 ‘compared to 2011 was mainly due {o the change in value of the
euro and Australian dollar. The change in foreign currency in 2011 compared to 2010 was the result of
transferring the majority -of our euro cash balances to U.S. doilar. In May 2010, we began utilizing foreign
currency hedge transactions-to mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations.

Income Tax Expense Years Ended December 31
. 2012 2011 2010
B ($ in thousands)

Income tax expense .. ............ e e $760 ... $7,421 . §7.662

Our effective tax rate was 46% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 33% fét the year
ended December 31, 2011. The tax rate is determined by considering the federal tax rate, rates in various
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states and international jurisdictions in which we have opergtions, and a pornon of the amount of: stock-based
compensation that is not-deductible for income tax purposes. Cor : Co

As of December 31, 2012, we had, $3.2 million of various tax credit carryforwards to offset taxable
income and taxes payable as described in Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in.Item 8 of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

There was no valuation allowance at December 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010. We recorded income tax expense
of $760,000 in 2012; however, due to temporary differences which increase income for tax purposes, actual
cash payments for income taxes were $3.2 million in 2012.

In January 2013, the Research and Development Tax Credit was extended through December 31, 2013.
As of December 31, 2012, we generated $719,000 of federal research and development tax credits, of which,
$503,000 will be recognized in the first quarter of 2013. : ;

We have historically used a cost plus basis for calculating taxes in most foreign tax jurisdictions in which
we operate. A cost plus tax basis limits the taxes paid in these foreign jurisdictions to a markup of the costs
that we incur in these jurisdictions and is not tied to the actual revenues generated.

Income (loss) before taxes for our foreign subsidiaries, under both the cost plus and reseller models, for
2012, 2011 and 2010 was ($9.5 million), $1.5 million.and $1.2 million, respectively., The recarded foreign tax
expense (benefit) and the related effect on the income tax rates for 2012, 2011 and 2010 were ($2.9 million),
$18,000 and $187,000, respectively. The decrease in the income for our foreign subsidiaries during 2012 was
due to switching our foreign subsidiaries to the reseller model. The impact of the foreign effective income tax
rates could increase as-we expand our operations in foreign countries and calculate forelgn income taxes based
on operating results in those countries. »

qumdlty and Capital Resources

We generate cash from the collection of payments related to licensing our products as well as from
selling hardware, renewals of support agreements, and the delivery of other services. We use cash primarily to
pay our employees (including salaries, commissions and benefits), lease office space, pay travel expenses; pay
for marketing activities, pay vendors for hardware, other services and supplies, puréhase property and
equipment, pay research and development costs and fund acquisitions, We continue to be debt free. .

We determine liquidity by combining cash and cash equivalents and short-term and fongiterm
investments as showi in the table below. Based on our recent performance and. current-expectations, we ¢ «
believe that our current liquidity position, when combined with our anticipated cash flows from operations,
will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital requirements and current or expected obligations associated
with our operations over the next 12 months and into the foreseeable future. Our largest potential capital
outlay in the future is expected to be related to acqulsmons and purchases of furmture and equipment. If our
liquidity is not sufficient to purchase a targeted company w1th our emstmg cash we may need to raise
additional capital, either through the capital markets or dcbt ﬁuancmgs

-

- December 31, -

2012 2011
. . . ~ . (3 in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... . e - $45 057 . . $28:465
Short-term investments . . . . ... .... PO e e . 23816 40,589
Long-term investments . . . .. e e e e e e e e e e e ,11,757 A 23,415 . .
Total liquidity ....... e b e s e G aeee. —$80,630. - $92,469

We believe that the funds of Interactive Intelligence and its subsidiaries that are held in f'(')re'igri’ accounts '
can be transferred into the U.S. with limited tax consequences. Given our strong liquidity in the U.S.,
however, we do not expect to repatriate earnings from our foreign subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As of
December 31, 2012, Interactive Intelligence held a total of $6.0 million in its various foreign bank accounts
and our foreign subsidiaries held a total of $19.2 million in their various bank accounts. The temporary
difference related to unremitted earnings: of our foreign subsidjarjes as of December 31, 2012, that have not
been subject to United States income taxation as dividends and are indefinitely invested outside the United -

39



States, was $2.8 million. If we were to repatriate all of those earnings to Interactive Intelligence in the form
of dividends, the incremental U.S. federal income tax net of applicable foreign tax credits would be $670,000.

The following table shows the U.S. dollar equivalent of the Company’s foreign account balances for the
stated periods: o ' ‘

~ As of December 31,

‘ " 2012 200 2010
o - ($ in thousands) '

BUIO « o v v e e e e e e e et SR ' $8807 $78%6  $5583
Britishpound .............: i e e 2405 1,607 207
Australian dollar . ................ e A 6,137 2,346 © 93
South Africanrand . . . . . .. . ..ttt it e 3,001 7,175 —
Canadian dollar . .. .........covueeeeennnnn e 3,577 813 75
Other foreign currencies ......... s e 1,283 389 . 163 -
Total ..t e e $25,210 - $20,186 $6,121

The following table shows cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing
activities for the stated periods: ‘ C s b

Years:Ended December 31,
2012 ‘ 2012 s 2010
Beginning cash and cash equivalents ................... $ 28,465 - $48,300 $ 48,497
Cash provided by operating activities ................... 20,006 . 21,390 28,697
Cash used in investing activities .. .................... (10456)  (51,742) (41,969)
Cash provided by financipg activities ............. e 7,042 10,517 13,075
Ending cash and cash equivalents . . . .. .....ooouinann... $ 45,057 $28,465  $ 48,300
Days sales outstanding (DSO) . ................ RN 87 . -88 . 64

Cash flow from operations decreased $1.4 million in 2012 compared to 2011 and $7.3 million in 2011
compared to 2010. Cash flows from operations consist of our earnings, adjusted for varijous nen-cash expense,
such as depreciation and amortization, and balance sheet changes. The three most significant items that have
impacted our cash flow from operations include our net income, changes in accounts receivable and changes
in deferred revenues. ; -

Accounts receivable negaﬁw)ély affect our cash flow from pﬁerations when our days sales outstanding
(“DSO”) increase. Our DSO was relatively flat at December 31, 2012 compared with 2011 primarily due to
substantial business that was recorded during the month of December 2012, which contributed toa .

year-over-year increase in accounts receivable of $12.1 million in 2012. Our DSO in 2011 compared to 2010
increased 24 days, which contributed to a year-over-year increase in accounts receivable of $20.2 million in
2011.

Deferred services revenues increase our cash flow from operations. These balances have generally
increased each year with the increase in advance billings of support for our installed base of on-premises
customers. Total current and long-term deferred services revenues increased by $15.2 million and ’
$19.2 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 compared to December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, m
part due to corresponding increases in long-term support agreements, which are reflected on the balance sheet
as long-term deferred revenues.

Cash used in investing activities decreased $41.3 in 2012 compared 'to'2011 as a result of a decrease in
the purchase of available for sile securities, which waspartially offset-by $22.7 million-of cash used to
purchase ATIO; Brightware and Bay Bridge, and increased purchases of property, plant and equipment in
2012. Cash used in investing activities increased i 2011 conipared to 2010 due to transferring 4 portion of
our cash to investment vehicles, purchasing propérty and equipment totaling $13.3 million, and the purchases
of Agori and CallTime for $4.1 million and $9.3 million; respectively. ' o
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Cash provided by financing activities decreased $3.5 million in 2012 compared:to 2011, and $2.5 million
in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily due- to, decreases in tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements . .
and proceeds from stock options exercised. ‘ Lo - : .

Contractual Obligations

The following amounts set forth in the table are as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands).

Payments Due by Period

Less than EES K : 3-5 More than
. Total 1 Year . Years - Years - 5 Years
Contractual Obligations . - -
Operating lease obligations . . . . . . $46,061 $ 8,446 $18,536. $15,916 $3,163
Purchase obligations . .. ........ 12,435 3,134 9,301 — —
Other obligations . ............ 1,702 —_ — . 1,702 —
Total ................... $60,198 $11,580 $27,837 $17,618 $3,163

As set forth in the Contractual Obligations table, we have operating lease obligations-and purchase
obligations that are not recorded in our consolidated financial statements. The operating lease obligations
represent future payments on leases classified as operating leases and disclosed pursuant to FASB ASC Topic
840, Leases. These obligations include the operating lease of our world headquarters and the leases of several
other locations for our offices in the United States and 20 other countries. See Note 6 of Notes to _
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on
our lease commitments. )

In addition, we have signed obligations for activities after December 31, 2012, such as marketing related
initiatives, which are included in our purchase obligations. Finally, other obligations include amounts
regarding our tax liabilities and uncertain tax positions related to FASB ASC 740. See Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on
our uncertain tax positions.

In addition to the amounts set forth in the table above, we have contractual obligations with certain .
third-party technology companies to pay royalties to them based upon future licensing of their products and,
patented technologies as well as purchase obligations in which the payments due are based on a percentage of
our revenues, and are therefore unknown. We cannot estimate what these future amounts will be. B

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangemenfé

Except as set forth in the Contractual Obligations table, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements that
have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future material impact on our financial condition, changes in:
financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources as of December 31, 2012. ' . :

‘We provide indemnifications of varying scope and amount to certain customers against claims of
intellectual property infringement made by third parties arising from the use of our products. Our software
license agreements, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 460, Guarantees, include certain proyisions for
indemnifying customers, in material compliance with their license agreement, against liabilities if our software
products infringe upon a third party’s intellectual property rights, over the life of the agreement. We are not
able to estimate the potential exposure related to the indemnification provisions of our license agreements but
have not incurred expenses under these indemnification provisions. We may at any time and at our option and
expense: (i) procure the right of the customer to continue to use our software that may infringe a third party’s
rights; (ii) modify our software so as to avoid infringement; or (iii) require the customer to return our software
and refund the customer the fee actually paid by the customer for our software less depreciation which is
generally based on a five-year straight-line depreciation schedule. The customer’s failure to provide timely
notice or reasonable assistance will relieve us of our obligations under this indemnification to the extent that
we have been actually and materially prejudiced by such failure. To date, we have not incurred, nor do we
expect to incur, any material related costs and, therefore, have not reserved for such liabilities.
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Our software license agreements also include a warranty that our software products will substantially
conform to our software user documentation for a period of one year, provided the customer is in material
compliance with the software license agreement. To date, we have not incurred any material costs associated
with these product warranties, and as such, we have not reserved for any such warranty liabilities in our
operating results. s ‘

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
’ R
We develop software application products in the United States and license our products worldwide. As a
result, our financial results could be affected by market risks, including changes in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates or weak economic conditions in certain markets. Market risk is the potential of loss arising

from unfavorable changes in market rates and prices.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We transact business in certain foreign currencies including the British pound, Canadian dollar, South
African rand, Australian dollar, Japanese yen and the. euro. However, as a majority of the:orders: we receive
are denominated in United States dollars, a strengthening of the dollar could make our products more
expensive and less competitive in foreign markets. During 2010, we began hedging both our accounts
receivable and cash that are held in euros. As of December 31, 2012, we had outstanding hedging
arrangements for the euro and the Canadian dollar. We continue to mitigate our foreign currency risk by
generally transacting business arid paying salaries in the functional currency of each of the major cotintries in
which we do business, thus creating natural hedges. Additionally, as our business matures in foreign markets,
we may offer our products and, services.in certain other local currencies. If this were to occur, foreign
currency fluctuations coyld have a greater. impact on us and may have an adverse effect on our results of
operations. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we realized a foreign currency translation loss .
of $289.000 and a foreign currency translation gain of $210,000, respectively. S

For the year ended December 31, 2012, approximately 16% of our revenues and 15% of our expenses
were denominated in a foreign currency. As of Decembet 31, 2012, we had net monetary assets valued in
foreign currencies subject to foreign currency transaction gains or (losses), consisting primarily of cash’ and - -
receivables, partially offset by accounts payable, with a carrying value of approximately $28.6 million.

A 10% change in foreign currency exchange rates would have changed the carrying value of thése net assets
by approximately $2.8 million as of December 31, 2012, with a corresponding foreign currency gain (loss)
recognized in our consolidated statements of income. I o

Interest Rate Risk

We invest cash balances in excess of operating requirements in sec{lrities that have maturities of up to
three years and are diversified among security types. The carrying value of these securities approximates
market value. These securities bear interest at fixed interest rates. Based on the weighted average maturities of
the investments, if market interest rates were to increase by 100 basis points-from the level at December 31,
2012, the fair value of our portfolio would decrease by approximately $295,000. R
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ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
Report of Independent Registered Pubhc Accountmg Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.:

* ‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. (the
Company) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of i income
and comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2012. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also
audited the consolidated financial statement Schedule I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. We also have
audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by. the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for. these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reportmg, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting; included in the accompanymg
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule and an opirion-on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. . S

We-conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to ‘obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements. are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
finangial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement. presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal confrol based ‘i the assessed’ nsk Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audlts provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. :

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process des1gned to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial'statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control-over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) prov1de reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordancé with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)‘provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future perlods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred ta above presen,t fa;rly, m all materlal
respects, the financial position of Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
per10d ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountmg ‘principles. Also in
our opinion, the related consolidated financial statement Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts,
when considered in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein. Also in our opinion, Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
March 18, 2013
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Interactive Tntelligence Group, Ine. = *": .~ -
Consolidated Balance Sheets 4.
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Decgilslbeir 31, Dece%ﬁr 31,
Assets
Current assets: _ _ ‘ )
Cash and cash eqmvalents ........... P $ 45,057 $ 28,465
Short-term inVeStMents . & . . ... v v e e neno e suneeens e 23,816. . . = :40,589
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,584 at
~ December 31, 2012 and $1,718 at December 31,2011 ...... PR . 68,409 56,331
Deferred tax assets, Det .. ...........ooniiaienen.n e 16,600 8,952
Prepaid EXPENSES. - « - . . . v e 15,565 11,474.
Other current assets - . . . . . e 958 4,966,
Total CUITENt ASSELS . . . v o e v v vt i v et ie e an e eann e 175,405 150,777
Long-term iDVESIMENES . . . v oot vvve o veoeses e 11,757 23,415
Property and eqmpment, net ..........c.o0eiaann P P 26,816 18,304 .
GoOdWIll . . oo i e e - .38,723 22,696
Intangible assets, net .......... e R 22,676 15,029
Other assets, Nt . . .........coooeeeennnn E 6,419 2,581
TOtal BSSELS . . . . . . o\ oo e Lee... $281,796  $232,802
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Eqmty
Current liabilities: ,
Accounts payable ......................................... $ 8,796 $ 5434
Accrued liabilities . ...... ... . . i e 23,008 11,111
Accrued compensation and related eXPenses . . . .. ... - 13,640 8,870
Deferred product reVEnUEs . . . ... ...t oiit i - 15,999 .. 3,870
Defetred services revenues .. ....... e e e e 67,893 57,423
Total current liabilities . ... ....... FE R - 19336 86,708
Deferred TEVENUES . . « . v o v v v e ev e e e ie e eeaneen e 18,000 14,141
Deferred tax Habilities, Dt . . ..o vvvvveeeeeenoniannnnneeeeennas 99 1,688
Other long-term liabilities ... ....... ... .o i 244 291
Total liabilities . . . . ... ... ... ... i 137,679 102,828
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 10,000,000 authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding ........ PP = —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 authorized; 19,436,918 issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 18,961,497 issued and o
outstandmgatDecember312011....'...‘................7.... 194 190
Additional paid-in capital ... .......... ... aeie e e 133,359 119,644
Accumulated other comprehensive loss e e e .. 675 .. (193)
Retained earnings . .. ..... ... . ivn S SR § V. 10,333
Total shareholders’ equity . .......... e e i Soo 144,147 129,974
Total liabilitles and shareholders’ equity . .. ....................... $281,796 $232,802

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income and, Comprehensive Income

For'the. Years Ended December 31, 3012,:2011 and 2010
(in thousands, exeept per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2012 - 2011 2010
Revenues: : : , o
Product . ............ ... ... ... $ 88,626 $ 92,786 $ 79,296
Recurring ........................ 118,343 93,363 69,261
Services . ........ ... ... .. ‘ 30,396 23,377 17,758
Total revenues . .................. 237,365 209,526 - 166,315
Costs of revenues: : s
Costsof product . . . ................. 24,329 25,095 23,868
Costs Of TECUTTINg . . . . .o oenn s 32,227 23,801 16,991
Costs of SErvices . .................. 22,868 16,389 9,788
Amortization of intangible assets ........ 163 140 83
Total costs of revenues . ............ 79,587 65,425 50,730
Grossprofit ...................c..... 157,778 144,101 115,585
Operating expenses: ‘
Sales and marketing . ................ 79,770 63,039 47,072
Research and development . . . .......... 45,682 35,626 28,349
General and administrative . . ........... 29,722 22,729 16,584
Amortization of intangible assets ........ 1,521 1,066 211
Total operating expenses . ........... 156,695 122,460 092,216
Operating income .. .................. 1,083 21,641 23,369
Other income (expense):
Interest income, net .......... e 772 434 340.
Other income (expense) . . . ............ (189) 144 (1,146)
Total other income (expense) . ............ 583 578 (806)
Income before income taxes ............. 1,666 22,219 22,563
INCome tax eXpense . .................. 760 7,421 7,662
Netincome ........................ $ 906 $ 14,798 $ 14,901
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . . (645) 74) —
Net unrealized investment gain (loss) — net
oftax ........ ... 163 93 (101)
Comprehensive income . ............... $ 424 $ 14,817 $ 14,800
Net income per share:
BasiC . ... ... $ 005 $ 079 $ 085
Diluted . . ......... ... ..., 0.04 0.74 0.79
Shares used to compute net income
per share:
Basic . ........i i e 19,241 18,714 17,563
Diluted............ ..., 20,162 19,885 18,894

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Balances, January 1, 2016 . . . ... . S

Stock-based compensation expense . . .
Exercise of stock options . . . . . Y
Issuances of common stock .. ... ...

Tax benefits from stock-based payment

arrangements . . . . . ... ... ...
Netipcome . . . . . ... ...... e
Net unrea}lized investment loss .. . . . .
Balances, December 31,2010 . , . . . . .

Stock-based compensation expense . . .
Exercise of stock options . . ... ...
Issuances of common stock . . .. ...

Tax benefits from stock-based payment

arrangements . . . . . ... ... ...
Netincome . . . .............
Foreign currency translation adjusunerit e
Net unrealized investment gain’ . . . . .
Balances, December 31,2011 . . . . . ..

Stock-based compensation expense . . .
Exercise of stock options . . . . . . .
Issuantes of common stock . . ... ..
Issuance of restricted stock units . . . .

Tax benefits from stock-based payment

agrangements . . . . . . ... ...
Netincome . . . .............
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . .
Net unrealized investment gain . . . . .
Balances, December 31,2012 . . . . . ..

Interactive Intelligénce Group, Ine.
. Consolidated ‘Statements of Shar¢holders’ Equity
Fbl‘ the: Yeal‘s Endeﬂ Decemiber: 31, 20‘12 20’!1 ‘and: 2010

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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“ (in thousands) -
Retained
Additional Accunmlated Earnings
. Commm!_Stoci( Treasury  Paid-n  Comprehensive (A Tated
Shares Amount Stock Capital Income Deficit) Total
. 172717 0 $173 (6,242) $ 92,807 $ 8 $(19,139) - .$ 67,607
— — — 3,979 — — 3,979
.. 861 9 6,078 580 — (227) - 6,440
.. 20 — 164 186 — L — 350
— — —_ 6,285 — . —- 6,285
— — — — — 14,901 . 14,901
- = — - 0% = (298)
.. 18,158 $182 $ — $103,837 $(290) $ (4,465) $ 99,264
— — — 5,298 — — v 5,298
- 786 8 — 6,663 — — 6,671
.. 17 — — 510 — —_ v5v10
— — — 3,336 — — 3,336
— — — — — 14,798 14,798
— — —_ — (74) — (74)
— — — — 171 —_ 171
.. 18,961 $190 $ — $119,644 $(193) $ 10,333 .$129,974
— — — 6676 — - 6,676
.. 430 4 — 5,026 — — 5,030
.. 26 % — — 680 — — 680
20 — — (253) — — (253)
— — — 1,586 — — 1,586
— — — — — . 906 906
— — — — (645) — (645)
— — — — 163 — 163
.. 19,437 $194 $ — $133,359 $(675) $ 11,239 $144,117_




Interactive Intelligence Group, Ine:
Consolidated, Statements of Cash Flows -

For the Years Ended December 31, 3012, 2011 and 2010

(in thousands)

December 31,
2012 12011 2010
Operating activities: ~ ' - :
Netincome . .. .. ... iii it Cevvin. $°906-  $ 14,798 $ 14,901
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by )
operating activities: o ' o . , _
Depreciation . ......... e e e e e e e 7,975 5,669 4,284
AMOTHZAtON . . . . .ottt ittt et 1,776 1,209 450
- Other non-cash items ............. e i (O (906) - 37 (113)
Stock-based compensation expense .. . ... ............. RN 6,677 5,298 - 3,979
Tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements .......... (1,586) (3 336) - - (6,285)
Deferred income tax ... ........ ... . . . ..o o, (12,311) - - (524) --(245)
Amortization (accretion) of investmént premlum ‘(discount) ...... ~ 846 (1,165) ' (235)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ... ...« ... ... ...... T4 4 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:’ S a i
Accounts receivable ... ....... e e ... (10,166) (13,313) (2,040)
Prepaid eXpenses . : . ... ..., aiha e e (3918 (2,888) (1,423)
Other current assets .. .......... e . o T 975) (85) (1,054)
Other assets . . . ... .ot i ittt ittt ittt e (3,838) 1,778 - (114)
Accounts payable . . .............. e TN - 5,071 (7,700) 5,942
Accrued liabilities .............. ... ... . ... ... SRR § K73 | 6,918 4,408
Accrued compensation and related expenses . .. ............ 4,400 918) 1,370
Deferred product revenues . ........ R Ceeee 1,190 489 (2;329)
Deferred services revenues . . . .. S L 12,850" 18,675 7,201
Net cash provided by operating activities . ...... e © 20,006 21,390 28,697
Investing activities:
Sales of available-for-sale investments ......... e e e s .. -58,235 73,118 - 21,815
‘Purchases of available-for-sale investments ......... R (30,348) .. - (98,205) . (42978)
Purchases of property and equipment .. .. ... e i e (15,554) '(13,280) (5,478)
Acquisitions, netof cash . . ... ....... e e e e wew e o (22,651) (13,376) - (15,328)
Unrealized (gain) loss'oninvestment .................... oo (138) s 1 —
Net cash used in investing activities ....................... "~ (10,456) - - «(51,742)  (41,969)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from stock options exercised .................... 5,029 . 6,671 6,440 ..
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ............ e . 680 . 510, - 350
Employee taxes withheld for restricted sfock units, .. ... ... - (253) = .-
Tax benefits from stock- based payment arrangements . 1,586 3336 6,285
Net cash provided by ﬁnancmg ‘activities . ......... R .. 7,042 10517 13,075
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. 16,592, (19,835) | 197)
Cash and cash. equivalents, beginning of period . . . . . P ..... 28465 48300 . 48497
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .................... $ 45,057 $ 28,465 $ 48,300
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest . ................. L P .. % 5 % 33 1
INCOME tAXES . oo o v v e een e eeee e SR 3,213 2,835° 853
Other non-cash item: ) ~ ‘
Purchase of property and equipment payable at end of period ... .. o 44 70 23)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

47



Interactive Intelligénce Group, Ine.
Notes to Consolidsted Finandial Statements
December 31, 2012, 2011 and: 3010 '

1. THE COMPANY

Effective July 1, 2011, Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. (“Interactive Intelligence”) became the
successor reporting company to Interactive Intelligence, Inc. (“ININ Inc.”), pursuant to a corporate .
reorganization approved by the shareholders of ININ Inc. at its 2011 annual meeting of shareholders (the
“Reorganization”). Interactive Intelligence is conducting the business previously conducted by ININ Inc. in
substantially the same manner. In these Notes to Consolidated Firlancial Statements, the term the “Company”
means ININ Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries for the periods through and including June 30, 2011, and
Interactive Intelligence and its wholly-owned subsidiaries for the periods after June 30, 2011.

&
The Company is a recognized leader in the global market for contact center and business communications
solutions, offering a suite of applications that can be deployed as a cloud-based or on-premises multichannel
communications platform. This platform is also the foundation of the Company’s solutions for unified
communications and business process automation. The Company’s solutions are used by businesses and,
organizations across a wide range of industries, including teleservices, insurance, banking, accounts receiyable
management, utilities, healthcare, retail, technology, government and business services. . ‘ R

The Company commenced principal operations in 1994 and revenues were first recognized in 1997. Since
then, the Company has established wholly-owned subsidiaries in 12 other countries. The Company’s workd
headquarters are located in Indianapolis, Indiana with regional offices throughout the United States and 20
other countries. The Company markets its software applications in the Americas, Europe, the Middle East and
Africa, and Asia-Pacific.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany accounts and transactions.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generaally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assuihptions that affect the amouiits
reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. On an on-going basis, management
reevaluates these estimates including those related to revenue recognition, allowance far doubtful accounts,
stock-based compensation, research and development, legal, other assets and accounting for income taxes.
Despite management’s best effort to establish good faith estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Reclassifications and Adjustments

Effective January 1, 2012, the Company reclassified certain rental revenues which were included in
product revenues in prior periods as recurring revenues. In prior years, these revenues were not significant;
however, as we have signed additional agreements with increasing teverues, we corchided that it is
appropriate to report these revenues as recurring. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
$1,950,000 and $522,000 respectively, have been reclassified as rectrring revenues based on ‘this new revenue
presentatlon The reclassification did not have any impact on the overall results prev1ously reported ‘

Revenue Recognition

The Company reports three types of revenues: product revenues, recurring revenues, and services
revenues. Product revenues are generated from licensing the right to use its software applications on-premlses
and in certain instances, selling hardware as a component of the solution. Recurring revenues are generated by
annual support fees and by the Company’s cloud-based offering. Services revenues are getierated primarily -
from professional services and educational services. Revenues are generated by direct sales with customers
and by indirect sales through a partner channel.
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Product Revenues S e e A

Substantially all of the Company’s license agreements: are ‘perpetual. For any revenues to be reconged
from a license agreement, the following :criteria must be met: -

. Persuasrve ‘evidence of an arr'angem_ent :exi'sts:;
-° The fee is fixed or determinable; e :.
*  Collection is probahie; and :

¢ Delivery has occurred.

For a perpetual license agreement, upon meéting the revenue recognition criteria above, the Company
immediately recognizes as product revenues the residual amount of the total contract fees if sufficient vendor
specific objective evidence (“VSOE?”) of fair value exists to support allocating: a portion of the total fee to
the undelivered elements of the arrangement. If sufficient VSOE of fair value for the undelivered elements
does not exist, the Cofnpany recognizes the initial license. fee as product révenues ratably. over the initial
term of the support agreement once support is the only undelivered element. The support period is generally
12 months but may be up to 18 months for initial orders because support begins when the licenses are
downloaded, when support commences, or no more than six months following the contract date. If the'
contract includes prepaid support, the support pericd may be up to 36:months. The Company determines
VSOE of fair value for support in on-premises agreements based on substantive renewal rates the. customer
must pay to renew the support. The VSOE of fair value for other services:is based on amounts charged when
the services are sold in stand-alone sales.

The Company sells hardware manpfactured by third parties, which does not contain the Company s
software, and certain apphances including the Interaction Gateway and the Interactron Media Server, which
combine third-party hardware and the Company s Interaction Gateway or Interacnon Media Server software.
These appliances are not pre-loaded with the Company s Customer Interactton Center (“CIC”) software and
the Company does not require its customers to purchase these items directly from them. The Company’s CIC
software will still function properly on hardware, gateways or medra servers. purchased from other vendors. .
Although the apphances mentioned above are a comblnatron of hardware and software, the software. does not
primarily function together with the, hardware to provrde the hardware s essentral functionality. In addition, the
Interaction Media Server software can be purchased separately and loaded on to other media servers the
customer already owns or purchased from another vendor. The Company recogmzes revenues related to
hardware sales when the hardware is delivered and all other revenue recognition criteria are met.

Contracts that contain both software and hardware are ‘reviewed to allocate:the deliverables into separate
units of accounting'in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Boatd (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 605-25, Revenue Recbgnition — Multiple Element Arrangements. The
units of accounting fall into one of two categoties: software ‘or’ non software reiated products FASB ASC
605-25 is used to allocate the fair value of each. v

Recurring Revenues

The Company generates recurring revenues from its cloud-based offering and annual support fees. For
cloud-based contracts, customers pay a minimum monthly fée to Use a specified number of software licenses,
plus any overages over the minimum. Customers are billed the greater of their minimum morthly fee or actual
usage, and revenue is recognized monthly as the service is delivered. The total contract fee also mcludes an
1mplementatron fee, which is recogmzed ratably over the term of the contract.

The Company recognizes annual _support, fees as recumng revenues ratably over the post-contract support
period, which is typically 12 months, but may extend up. to three years if prepaid. . .

Services Revenues

The Company generates revenues-from other services:that it provides to its customers and partners
including fees for professional services and educational services.-Revenues from professional services, which
include implementing the Company’s products, and educational services, which consist of. tra:rmng courses. for
customers and partners, are recognized as the related services are performed. :
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced .amount. The allowance for doubtful accounts is
the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses inthe Company’s existing accounts
receivable. The Company estimates bad debt expense based on a percentage of revenue reponed and a
detailed analysis of receivables each period. The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts each
reporting period based on a detailed analysis of its accounts receivable. In the analysis, the Company
primarily considers the age of the customer’s or partner’s receivable and also considers the creditworthiness of
the customer or partner, the economic conditions of the customer’s or partner’s 1ndustry and general economic
conditions, among other factors. If any of these factors change, the Company may also change its original
estimates, wh1ch could impact the level of its future allowance for doubtful accounts

If payment is not made timely,:the Company will contact the customer or partner to.try to obtam the -
payment. If this is not successful, the-Company will institute ether collection practices such as generating
collection letters; charging interest, involving sales personnel and ultimately terminating the customer’s or
partner’s access to future upgrades, licenses and: technical support. Once ali collection efforts are exhausted,
the receivable is wrltten off against the alloWance for doubtful accounts. - . = : =
Cash and Cash Eqmvalents ' R ' o o ,

The Company considers all highly hquld mvestments mth a manmty of three months or less from date
of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consxst pmnanly of cash on deposn with
financial institutions and high quality money market instruments. = "~ -’

Investments

The Company’s investments, which consist ‘primarily of taxable’ corporate and govemment debt securities,
are classified as avaﬂable for-sale. Such investments al'e recorded 4t fair value and unrealized gains and losses
are excluded from earnings and recorded as a separate component of equlty until réalized. Prermums or
discounts are amortized or accreted over the tife of the related securlty as’an ad_]ustment to yleld using the
effective initerest method. Realizéd gains and losses from the sale of avallabl’e-for-sale securrities are
determined on a specific identification’ basis. A decline in the market value Jf 'seciities below cost judged to
be other than temporary results ina reducnon in the carrymg amount to fair valué The unpairment is charged
to earnings and a new cost basis for the security is estabhshed Interest and d1v1dends on 1all securmes are
included in interest income when earned.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold impgovements are amortized,using the straight-line method
over the lesser of the term of the related lease ox.the: estimated useful life. The Company leases its office .
space under operating lease agreements. In agcordance with FASB ASC Topic 840, Leases (“FASB ASC
840”), for operating leases with escalating rent payments, the Company, records these rent payments on a
straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

Impatrment of long-Ltved Assets

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360, Pmpen;; Plam‘ and. Equzpmznt certam of the. Company s
assets, such as property and equipment and mtangtbles ssubject to ,amomzatlon, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an, asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverablhty of assets to be held and nsed is measured ‘by a comparison of the carrying amount
of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future eash-flows,-an rmpamnent chirge is’ recogmzed for the amount
by which the carrying amount of 'the asset exceeds the fair vilue of the asset.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company reviews its goodwill and-intangible assets.with indefinite lives for. impairment at least
annually in accordance with FASB Acdounting Standards Update (“ASU”")'2011-08, Testing Goodwill for
Impairment, which amends FASB ASC Topic 350; Intangibles— Govdwill and Other. This guidance requires
us to perform the goodwill impairment ‘analysis:annwally or when a change in facts and circumstances
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indicates that the fair.value of an asset may be below its carrying amount. As of November 30, 2012 when
our annual 2012 -goodwill impairment-test was performed, we had one reporting segment and therefore our .. .
impairment review of goodwill involved reviewing the:impatrment of the Company as a whole. Identifiable
intangible assets such as intellectual property trademarks and patents are amortized-over a 10 to 15 year . -
period using the straight-line method. In addition, other intangijble assets, such as. customer relationships, core
technology and non-compete agreements. are amortized over a 5'to 18 year period using the straight-line - -
method. Based on the review of the qualitative events and circumstances outlined in FASB ASU 2011-08, the
Company determined that it is more likely than not that. the fair value of the reporting unit is greater than its
carrying amount, and the two-step process of the goodwill impairment test was not necessary to perform We
determined no indication of impairment existed as of November 30 2012 when the annual goodwrll
impairment test was performed.

Advertising

The Company expenses all advertising ¢osts as incurred. Advertising’ expense for 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $1.9 million, $1.8 million and $1 4 million, respectlvely S

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred. FASB ASC Topic 985, Soﬁware,
requires capitalization of certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment of technological
feasibility. Based on the Company’s product development process, technological feasibility is established upon
completion of a working model. Costs incurred by the Company between completion of the working model
and the point at which the product is ready for general release have been insignificant. Through December 31,
2012, all research and development costs have been e;rpensed Research and development expense for 2012
2011 and 2010 was $45.7 million, $35. 6 rmlhon and $28.3 mllhon, respectrvely

Stock-Based Compensatzon ‘

Consistent with FASB ASC Toprc 718 Compensatzon — Stock Compensatlon (“FASB ASC 718”) the
Company continues to use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as its method of valuation for share- based
payment awards. The Company s determination of fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of ~
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model is affected by the Company’s stock price as well as
assumptions regarding .a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These varigbles include, but are .
not limited to, the Company’s expected stock price volatrlrty over the term of the awards and an expected
risk-free rate of return. If factors change and the Company uses dlﬁ'erent _assumptions for estlmatmg
stock-based compensation expense associated with awards granted in future periods, stock-based
compensation expense may differ materially in the future from that recorded in the current period.

The Company records compensation expense for share-based awards using the su'alght-hne rnet,hod
which is recorded into earnings over the vesting period of the award Stock-based compensation expense for
employee and director stock options and restricted stock units recognized under FASB ASC 718 for the years
ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010 was $6.7 million, $5.3 million and $4.0 millior, respectively. See
Note 5 for further information on the Company’s stock-based compensation.

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying amounts of the Company S ﬁnancral mstruments mcludmg cash and cash eqmvalents accounts :
receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities, approximate their respective fair market values due to the short
maturities of these financial instruments. The fair values of short-term and long-term investments are valued in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“FASB ASC 820™).

Income Taxes

- Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and hablhty method. Defemed tax assets and hablhtles are
recogmzed for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in thé years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates.is. recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.
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FASB ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“FASB ASC 740”), establishes financial accounting and reporting
standards for the effect of income taxes. The Company is subject to income taxes in both the United States
and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Sighificant judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s tax positions
and determining its provision for income taxes. The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to
recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax: Habilities and assets
for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial statements or tax
returns. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could materially impact the
Company’s financial position, results’of operations, or cash flows. ' o

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon generation of future taxable income prior to the period in which
temporary differences such as loss carryforwards and tax credits expire. Management considers projected
future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $3.2 million in tax credit carryforwards recorded as
deferred tax assets. There was no valuation allowance at December 31, 2012. The Company will continue to
evaluate the valuation of deferred tax assets in accordance with the requirements of FASB ASC 740. See '
Note 9 for further information on the Company’s income taxes. :

The revenue from sales tax collected from customers is recorded on a net basis.

Net Income per Share

Basic net income per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 260, Eamnings per Share. Diluted net income per share is
calculated based on the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus the effect of dilutive
potential common shares. When the Company reports net income, the calculation of diluted net income per. share
excludes shares underlying stock options outstanding that would be anti-dilutive. Potential common shares are
composed of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options. The following table sets forth
the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Net income, as reported (A) ............ e $ 906 $14,798 $14,901
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding (B) . . .. 19,241 18,714 17,563
Dilutive effect of employee stock options . .. ............. 921 1,171 1,331
Common stock and common stock equivalents © .00l ... 20,162 19,885 18,894
Net income per share:

Basic (A/B) .. ...t e e $ 0.05 $ 079 $ 085

Diluted (A/C) ......... e e e 0.04 0.74 0.79

Anti-dilutive shares not included in the diluted per' share calculation for 2012, 2011 and 2010 were
726,000, 305,000 and 820,000, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income (loss).
The Company reports unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities and foreign currency translation
adjustments ‘as other comprehensive income (loss).

Legal Proceeding.s;

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, penalties and other
sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment
and/or remediation can bé reasonably estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are
expensed as incurred. - g ' TP TR Co .

3. INVESTMENTS

The Company’s short-term investments all matuse in less than.one year and-the Company’s long-term
investments mature between one and three years. Both long-term and short-term investments are considered
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available for sale. In 2012 and 2011, the Company purchased short-term investments for $21.7 million and
$66.2 million, respegtively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, $23.8 million and $40.6 million, respectively,
in short-term mvestments and $11.8 million and $23.4 million, respectively, in long-term investments were
outstandmg and weré recorded at therr fair values. The Company does not invest in subprime assets.

Gross realized gams and losses included in mterest income, net totaled less than $10, 000 in each of 2012,
2011 and 2010.

Interest income was $772,000, $434:000, and $340,000 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

FASB ASC 820, as amended, defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset
or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. FASB ASC 820 also
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an _entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and -
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measurmg fair value. The standard describes the followrng
three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

*  Level ] — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date
for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

*  Level 2— Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar. assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

*  Level 3— Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

ey
The Company’s assets that are measured at fair value are classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the farr
value hietarchy. The types of instruments valuéd based on quoted prices in ‘active markets include mioney’
market securities. Such instruments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The Company
invests in money market funds that are traded daily and does not adjust the quoted price for such instruments.
The types of mstruments valued based on quoted prices in less active markets, broker or dealer quotatrons or
alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency include corporate notes, agency bonds,
commercial paper, certificates of deposit, and international government bonds. Such instruments are ‘classified
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The Company uses consensus pricing, which is based on multrple
pricing sources, to- value its fixed income investments. : :

The following table sets forth a summary of the Company’s financial assets, classrﬁed as cash and casp
equivalents, short-term investments and long-term investments on its condensed consohdated ba]ance sheet
measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands): '

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usmg

Quoted Prices Significant ‘
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable " Unobservable
. ) Identical Assets . . . Imputs. , - Inputs ,
Description . Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (I.evel 3!
Cash & cash equivalents: ' B
Cash................ P $42,964 $42,964 $— . 8 —
Money market funds . ................ 2,093 2093 — ’ —
Total . ......................... $45,057 $45057 -, .§ — $ —
Short-term investments: .
Corporate notes . ... ................ $21,568 $ — $21,568 = $ —
‘Commercial paper ......... e ‘ 1,298 - — 1,298 . —
Certificates of deposit .......... e 950 — -~ 950 e —
Total ................... Si..... $23816 $ - $23,816 i
Long-term investments: o Y ' T
Corporate notes . . . . . e e . $10,738 $ — $10,738 $ —
Agencybonds . ..... . .. . ... ... 1,019 — 019 —
Total .. .... e $11,757  $ — 811,757 $  —
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. inActive - - - Other ~:. Significant -
Markets for bservable = . Unobservable
: ' ‘Identical Assets " Tnputs 7 Inputs
Description - Total ’ (Level 1) (Level 2) (Levgl 3)
Cash & cash equivalents: ‘ ' "' - - S
Cash . oot $25,438 $25,438 $ — $ -
Money market funds . .. ............ .. 3027 ... 173,027 — ——
Total . .o oee e $28465 $28,465 $ — . -8 —
: . —— =3 e B —
Short-term investments: . S o
Corporate notes . . ............ L $29,084 $ — '$29,084 $ —
Agencybonds . ................ ... 5,409 — 5,409 —
Commercial Paper . . .. .............- 4,997 — 4997 —
Certificates of deposit B R, 1,099 — 1,099 , —
Total ..o oo P $40,589 $ — $40,589 @ 0§ —
Y st i E———
Long-term investments: ' o . .
Corporate iotes . . .. ....... e L. $21,395 $ — - $21,395 $ —
Agencybonds . .............. ... ... 2,020 — 2,020 —

Total o ovoee el 823415 0§ — $23,415 $ —

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment are summarized as follows as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (in tpousaridé): »

_ 2012 201

Computer equipment . . ...... AU P SN . $ 26,035 $ 20,655
Leasehold in1;3r0vcm¢nt§ ....... e e e R 14:,,84"6.‘ o ‘11,310'
Furniture and fixtures . .......... P e ... 8525 6136
SOFIWATE + .« v o oevv v vt et ee e ea e e 3,024 2,317
Office eqUIPMENt . . . . ..o vi et S e e 1,428 . 1232
Trade show equipment and other . .. ........ ... ..o 565 514
Construction in process . . . .. .. ....... e e 3,789 819

Total property and equipment . .......... e e 12 43,583
Less accumulated\depreciation R (31,396) ' (25,27§j

Net property and eqUiPIIEnt . - . . .. oot ot iu et e $ 26,816 $ 18,304

Property and equipme.nt is depreciated over useful lives of 3 to 7 years, except for leasehold
improvements, which are depreciated Q’y?:c‘r the lesser of the term of the related lease or the estimated useful
life, and vary from 3 to 15 years. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company reduced assets and
accumulated depreciation by $1.9 million for fully depreciated computer and software equipment that was
seven years old or older and was no longer in use. ' B

5. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Option Plans

The Company’s stock option plans, adopted in 1995, 1999 and 2006, authorize the Board of Directors or
the Compensation Committee, as applicable, to grant incentive and nonqualified stock options, and, in the case
of the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and as-assumed by Interactive Intelligence (the ““2006 Plan™),
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units (“RSUs™), performance shares, performance
units and other stock-based awards. After adoption of the 2006 Plan by the Company’s shareholders in
May 2006, the Company may no longer make any grants under previous plans, but any shares subjéc’t to
awards under the 1999 Stock Optiorr and Incentive Plan and the Outside Directors Stock Option Pla‘.n."
(coltectively, the 1999 Plans”) that are cancelled are added to shares available under the 2006 Plan.
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A maximum of 7,050,933 shares are available for delivery under the 2006 Plan, which consists of ..

(1) 3,350,000 shares, plus (ii) 320,000 shares available for issuance undgr the 1999 Plans, but not underlying
any outstanding stock options. or other awards under the 1999 Plans, plus (iii) up to 3,380,933 shares subject -
to outstanding stock options or other awards under the 1999 Plans,that expire, are forfeited or ptherwise
terminate. unexercised on or after May 18, 2006. The number of shares. available under the 2006.Plan, is
subject to adjustment for certain changes in the Company s capital structure. The, exercise price of options
granted under the 2006 Plan is equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock, as reported by The
NASDAQ Global Select Market, on the business day immediately preceding the date of grant.

The Company grants RSUs and three types of stock options. The first type of stock option is
non-performance-based subject only to time-based vesting, and these stock options are granted by the
Company as annual grants to executives, to certain new employees and to newly-elected non—employee
dlrectors, These stock options vest in four equal annual installments beginning one year after the grant date
The fair value of these option grants is determined on the date of grant and the related compensatlon expense
is recognized for the entire award on a straight-line basis over the requisite servioe period. . o

The second type of stock option granted by’ the Company is performance- ‘baded subJect to caricellation if
the specified performance targets are not miet. If the apphcable performance targcts havé been achieved, the
options will vest in four equal annual installments beginning one yeat after the performance-related period has
ended. The fair value of these stock option grants is determined on the date of grant and the related
compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period, including the initial period for which
the specified performance targets must. be met. -

The third type of stock option granted by the: Comipany is director options granted to' non-employee
difectors annually. These options are similar to the non-performance-based-options described above except that
the director options vest one year aftér the grant date. The fair value of these option:grants is determined on
the date of the grant and the related compensation expense is recognized over one year. These director options
are generally granted at the Company’s Annual Meetmg of Shareholders dunng the second quaster ofa .
fiscal year. - : . Tt S .

Commencing in January 2011, the Company began granting RSUs to certain key employées and
certain new employees. The fait value of the RSUs is determined on the date of grant and the RSUs vest in

four equal annual installments beginning one year after the grant date. RSUs are not included in issued and
outstanding common stock until the shares are vested and settlement has occurred c

The plans may be terminated by the Company’s Board of Directors at any tune.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense Information

" The following table summarizes the allocation of stock-based compensatlon expense related to employee
and director stock options and RSUs under FASB ASC 718 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 (m thousands):

Years Ended December 31, =~ %
2012 - )| C2010
Stock-based compensation expense by category: :
Costs of recurring revenues . ........ J $ 523 °  $ 429 $ 10
Costs Of SEIVICES TEVENUES . . . . o v vt i e e i 147 ' 94 ’ ) 311
Sales and marketing . ............. [P, 2,250 1,677 1,230
Research and development . . ... .................... 1,886 1,570 1,178
General and administrative . . ......... P 1,871 1,528 1,250
Total stock-based compensation expense . .. ........... $6,677 $5,298 $3,979
— it S s
Effect of stock-based compensation expense on net income per
share: C i
Basic .. ... $(0.35) $0.28) " $(0.23)
Diluted . . ........... S P 033 - (027 - (021
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At each quarter end, the Company evaluates the probability that the performance awards granted during
the first quarter will be forfeited at year-end for non-performance and revetses the’associated expensé recorded
in prévious periods. Duririg the fourth qifarter of 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company reversed stock option
expense recorded in previous periods associated with these options totaling '$54,000n 2012, $69,000 in 2011
and $54,000 in 2010. After taking irito account the options-that were cancelled during 2012,'2011 and 2010, -
the estimated total grant date fair value, not atcounting for éstimated forfeitures, is as follows (in thousands)f

o o | B Number of  Number of o

v ST " Options Optiens - Grant Date
Granted v Cancelled Fair Value
Year: ‘ T e ‘
2012 ....... U [T [P 416 - 21 $4,896
2011 ...l P 370 - a4 5655
2010 ....... e A S AU 642 26 6,400

As required by FASB ASC 718; management has made an estimate-of expected forfeitures and is
regognizing compensation expense only for those stock awards expected to vest. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Company estiplatcd that the total stock-based compgnsatiqp_'gxpgpse for the awards
not expected to vest was $240,000, with such amounts deducted to arrive at the fair value of $4.7 million.

Valuation Assumptions

The Company estimated the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model.
Non-performance-based options are typically granted throughout the year to newly-elected non-employee
directors and newly-hired employees of the Campany, and are granted annually to management. Performangce-
based options are only granted to sales and marketing employees during the. first quarter of each year and.:
annual option grants to non-employee directors only occur during the second quarter of each year. The
weighted-average estimated per option value of non-performanceé-based, performance-based and-directos. .. -
options under the stock option plans during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $12.21,
$16.18 and $10.43, respectively, using the following assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,

4 - 2012 2011 2010
Valuation assumptions for i ‘ . '
non-performance-based options:
Dividend yield .......:...... i T —% o —% : o —%
Expected volatility . .. ............. ... ... .. 59.04 - 64.70% 62.42-64.68% 64.74 - 69.10%
Risk-free interest rate . ... ...........vooun.n 053-071%  069-1.74% 1.19 —2.06%
Expected life of option (in years) ............. . v L 425 e 425 4.25
L T ' ' ' Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 o 2010
Valuation assumptions for
performance-based options:
Dividend yield ................... ... ... —% ., —% —%
Expected volatility ........... ... 63.23% © 65.55% . 67.81%
Risk-free interest rate . . . ... .. e 0.79% 197% ~ 230%
Expected life of option (in years) .............. 475 475 415
. Years Ended Decembgr 31, G
2012 2001, .. 2010
Valuation assumptions for
annual director options: : )
Dividendyield ...................... e . —% R 4 N R4
Expected volatility . ............... ..o 57.10% 64.38% 64.43%
Risk-free-nterestrate . ....... .......on. 0.49% 0.93% 1.41% . .-
Expected life of option (in years) . ............. 3.50 3.50 3.50
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Expected Dividend: The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an
input. The Company has never declared or paid cash dividends on its common stock and-does not expect .to
declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future

Expected Volatility: The Company’s volauhty factor was based exclusively on its historical stock prices
over the most recent period commensurate with the estlmated expected life of the stock options.

Risk-Free Rate: The Company bases the nsk free interest rate on the implied yield currently available
on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remalmng term commensurate with the estimated
expected life of the stock options.

Expected Term: The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock options
are expected to be outstanding and was determined using the simplified method as described in FASB ASC
718 for the Company’s plain-vanilla options. The Company chose to use the simplified method given the lack
of historical data for the current expiration term of six years and the non-employee director options that fully
vest in one year. FASB ASC 718 permits the continued use of this method after December 31, 2007 if the
Company does not believe it has sufficient historical data to support another method. The Company does not
have sufficient historical data to estimate an expected term for its performance-based options and therefore
uses 4.75 years, the same life as the plain-vanilla options but adjusted for the performance-based options
having an additional year life. The earned performance-based options accounted for 8%, 5%, and 7% of total
options granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Estimated Pre-vesting Forfeitures: Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company included an estimate for
forfeitures in calculating stock option expense. When estimating forfeltures the Company considers historical
termination behavior as well as any future trends it expects. :

For most options granted through December 31, 2004, ‘the term of each option is ten years from the date
of grant. In 2005, the Company began issuing options with a term of six years from the date of grant,

If an incentive stock option is granted to. an employee who, at the tlme the option is granted owns stock
representing more than 10% percent of the voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, the exercise
price of the option may not be less than 110% of the market value per share on the date the optlon is granted
and the term of the option shall be not more than five years from the date of grant.

RSUs are valued using the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant and expense is
recognized on a straight-line basis taking into account an estimated forfeiture rate.

Stock Option and RSU Activity

The following table sets forth a summary of stock option activity for the years ended December 31,

2012, 2011 and 2010:
Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average.
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Balances, beginning of year. . 2,665,654 $15.16 3,129,373  $11.58 . 3425743 § 936
Options granted ......... 401,000 24.87 369,500 3239 641,500 19.48
Options exercised ........ (429,956) 11.69 (786,832) 8.47 (860,669) 7.48
Options cancelled, forfeited : .
orexpired ........... (5,500)  14.05. (46,387) 18.05 (77,201) - 25,02
Options outstanding at end: . , : ‘ L
ofyear.............. 2,631,198 17.21 2,665,654 15.16 = 3,129,373 11.58
Option price range at end ‘
ofyear.............. $2.89 - 37.76 $2.59 - 37.76 $2.51 -35.00
Weighted-average fair value - : ‘
of options granted during - _ o .
theyear ............. $ 12.21 - $ 16.18 . $ 10.43
Options exercisable at end . . . ; ,
ofyear.............. 1,579,982 13.33 1,528,020  11.23 1,804,922 8.92
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The following table 'sets forth information regarding: the Company’s stock options outstanding and -
exercisable at' December 31, 2012: - - - ’ St e S '

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
o " Weightell- o ' R
B et TAverage - Weighted- . R Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
. s o : ; (Con{‘r.qmal,. . Exerelse.. . - | : Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices , Number ife _ Price Number Price
$289-8561.............. 284,559 1227 $460 28455 $ .4.60
572— 603 .............. 186,405 1.45 5.83 186,405 5.83
666~ 6.66............. o 316734 0 214 7 ¢ - 666" 206,859 6.66
670 1486 . ............ 264,366 133 1312 255273 1325
1510~ 1934 ........ Cooee. 254204 194 1779 217331 17.83 |
19.66— 19.66 .............. 435368 316 1966~ 187493 19.66
19.77- 2292 ...... ... 139062 068 2074 125312 2058,
24.50- 2450 . ... ..., . 310,000 517, 2450 . . — —
2500~ 30.92....... ..., 106,000 . 515 _ . 268 8750 27.71
3233- 3776 ..o . 334,500 423 . 3255 _108,000.. _32.56
Total shares/average price . ...... 2,631,198 273 - ‘17.2r . 1,579,982 13.33 . .

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year:ended December 31, 2012 was $7.3 million.
The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of December 31, 2012 was $43.0 million and the . -
aggregate intrinsic value of options currently exercisable as of December 31, 2012 was $31.9 million. The
aggregate intrinsic value represents the total intrinsic value, based on the Company’s closing stock price
per share of $33.54 as of December 31, 2012, which would have been realized by the option holders had all
option holders exercised their options as of that date. The total' number of in-the-money options exercisable as
of December 31, 2012 represented 1.6 million shares with a weighted average exercise price of $13:32. -

As of December 31, 2012, there was b$"7.9, million of total i’1'1:1‘1'rec('>gi1.i'kzed '_éqmpensgtipn cost re;latp@ to
non-vested stock options. These costs are expected to be recognized over the weighted average remaining,
vesting period of 1.84 years. R

The following table sets forth a summary of RSU activity for the year ended December 31, 2012:

! Weighted- Average

Awards Grant Date Price
Balances, beginning of year . . .. ........ L. N 116,340 $32.48
RSUs granted . ..........c..onuqonenenee e 152,800 28.34 -
RSUsvested .................. e S (29,036) 32.48
RS8Us forfeited .......... e e v e e e . (9,082) 31.88
RSUs outstanding . ......... e 231,022 29.77

As of Decefnﬁer 31, 2012,.fherc was .$5.21 million of fota.l ungecdghized compens,atiqn cost related to
non-vested RSUs. These costs are expected to be recogpized over the weighted average remaining vesting
period of 2.77 years. S L o

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 there were 753,883, 1,292,851 and 1,714,554 shares of stock,
respectively, available for issuance for equity compensation awards under the 2006 Plan. In May 2010, the
Company’s shareholders approved an amendment to the 2006 Plax‘l which increased theé number of shares
available for grant by 1,200,000 shares. Co T
2000 Employge -Stock Purchase Plan .. , o v

In May 2000, the Company adopted the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ‘2000 Purchase .
Plan™). A total of 500,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance understhe 2000:Purchase Plan.
In May 20085, theé shareholders of the Company approved an amendmient to the 2000 Purchase Plan that
increased the number of shares of common stock available for purchase and issuance to 750,000. The 2000

Purchase Plan permits eligible employées to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock through periodic
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payroll deductions. of up to-20% of their:total compensation up to a maximum of $1,000 per pay period. The
price at which the Company’s common stock may be purchased is 95%-of the fair market value of the
Company’s closing common stock price, as reported on The NASDAQ Global Select Market, on the last
business day of the’ quarter. The actual’ purchase date i$ génerally on thie first business day of the next calendar
quarter. An employeé may set aside up to $25,000 to purchase shares annually. The initial offering period. -
commenced on April 1, 2000. A total of 25,644 shares, 16,912 shares and 20,130 shares were purchased and
issued during 2012, 2011:and 2010, respectively, under thé 2000 Purchase Plan at an average price.of

$26.50, $30.16 ‘arid $16.69, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there were 107,730 shares available for -
purchase and issuance under the 2000 Purchase Plan.

The 2000 Purchase, Plan was madified, as of January .1, 2006, to ensure that it was considered
non-compensatory under FASB ASC 718. Asa result, the Company has not tecogmzed any stock-based
compensation expense related to its 2000 Purchase Plan. .

6. LEASE COMMITMENTS - : ’ N

The Company’s world headquarters are located in approximately 250,000 square feet of space in three
office buildings in Indianapolis,.Indigna. The Company leases the space under an operating lease agreement
and amendments which expire on March 31, 2018. The Company. also occupies a prodyct distribution center
in Indianapolis, Indlana and has several qther oﬁice leases throughout the Umted States and in 20 other
countries with initial lease terms of up to five years. The Company rents oﬂice space for sales, services,
development and international offices under month-to-month leases. In accordance with FASB ASC 840, rental
expense is recognized ratably-over the lease period, including those leases containing escalation ¢lauses.

- The Company believes that all of its facilities are adéquate and well suited to accommodateé its business
operations. The Company contmuously rev1ews space requlrements to ensure it has adequate room for growth
in the future . .

Rent expense net was $9.1 million, $6 7 million and $5 7 million for the years.ended Deeember 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Minimum future lease payments under the Company’s operating leases as
of December 31, 2012 are summarized as follows (in thousands): . .

2013 .. i e e e e e $ 8,600
201 e e e e 9,434
7 9,102
2006 .. e, 8,765
20T e e e 7,151
Thereafter . . . ..ot e e e 3,163
Total minimum lease payments . . . ... ... ...ttt $46,215:

7. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company manages its operations as a single segment for purposes of assessing performance and
making operating decisions. Also, the Company evaluates the creditworthiness of its customers and partners
on a periodic basis and generally does not require collateral.

No customer or partner accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s revenues in 2012, 2011 or 2010 or
for 10% or more of the- Company s accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. The Company’s
top five partners collectively represented 21% and 26% of the Company’s accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. No individual country accounted for more than 10% of the ,
Company s revenues, with the exception of the United States, which accounted for 63% of the Company s, for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

8. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

The Company maintains a 401(k) retirement savings plan (the “Plan”) to provide retirement benefits for
substantially all of its North American employees. Participants in the Plan may elect to contribute up to 50%
of their pre-tax annual compensation to the Plan, limited to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal
Revenue Code, as amended. The Company, at its discretion, may also make annual contributions to the Plan.
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Effective July 1,,2012, the Plan Administrator approved an amendment to the Plan Document to exclude
temporary and leased employees from bemg able to- part1c1pate in the Plan :

For the year ended December 31 2012 subject. to meetmg spemﬁed operatmg targets, the Company
matched up to 33% of the first 9% of a.participant’s pre-tax compensation contributed to the Plan. For the
year ended December 31, 2012, the Company’s. petformance resulted in no match; however due to the
Company’s high order growth performance;. its Board.of Directors granted a discretionaty ‘match for the :
maximum contribution of $1.5 million; which Wwas. contributedto the employees accounts in February
of 2013. -

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, subjéct to meeting spe¢:1ﬁed operating targets, the
Company matched up to 33% of the first 9% of 4 partiupant ] pre-tax compensauon contributed to the Plan.
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Coimpany’s performance resulted in a match for the full
amount of $1.3 million and $909,000, respectively, which was contributed to the emplopyees’ accounts in
February each of the following years.

For an eligible participant who has worked for the Company for less than four’ yehi‘s at the time of the
Company matching contribution, the contribution will vest in equal mstallments over four years based on the
anniversary date of the participant’s employment For an ehglble part1c1pant who has worked for the Company
for four or more years at thé time of contnbutlon the contnbutmn is 100% vested.” '

For the year ended December 31, 2013, if the Company reports non-GAAP net income, the Compa.ny
anticipates matching up to 33% of the first 9% of a participant’s pre-tax compensation, contributed to the Plan.

Although the Company has not expressed any intent to férminate the Plan, it has the option to do so at
any time subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Upon
termination of the Plan, elther full or partlal parnmpants become fuﬂy vested in their entire account balances

9. INCOME TAXES

The following table sets forth information regarding the United States and foreign components of income
tax -expense (benefit) for 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):

. Current Deferred Total
2012 ,
United States Federal . ... ......ccvtteennniniinnennens .. $9670 $ (7,844) $ 1,826
State and 10CAl .« . o v ot e e e 1,705 . (1,060), 645
Foreign jurisdiction . .............c.ottiniiiiiiinne 1,696 (3,407) (1,711)
TOl .« o v e e e e e Sob$13071  $(1231H)  $ 760
2011 L , L A ) .
United States Fedetal . . ............. Ll L E o 85176 08 712 $ 5,888
State and 10Cal . .. .t u e it . 14210 0 (439) 986
Foreign jurisdiction ............ R e e e e - 547 — 547
TOtal .« vt e i et $7044 8 277 $ 7,421
2010 : R ‘ Co _ " ‘
United States Federal . . . . . . R e i.. %659 502 6,161
State and local . ......... ol 136 (55 812
Foreign jurisdiction .. ... ..........uoinienenaenenn. P 689 — 689

TOtal . oo $7712 - $  (50) $7,662



The tax effects of temporary. differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets at.
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are presented below (in: thousands):.

: 2012 o20m 2010
Deferredtax assets: = o oo -

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... .. .......... e e § 455 $ 612 $ 459
Accrued expenses . ......... L N 3,786 1,503 1,337
Deferredrevenues . .......... .. .. ... .. [P 6,785 2,930 2,371
Stock-based compensation expense . .. ................... 5,575 4,056 - 2,881
Depreciation and amortization expense ......... e e 348 355 902
Tax net operating loss carryforwards . .................... 3,962 65 60
Foreign tax credit carryforwards . ... .. e e e : 1,031 — . 1,359
Research tax carryforwards - . . ... ...... ... ... ... .. ... - 2,190 2,091 3,061
Total deferred tax assets . ... ........................ ‘ 24,231 11,612 . 12,430
Deferred tax liabilities: o - s : S -
Intangibles . .............0 ... .. .. . . .. ... e - (7,491) (4,348) (4,166)
Investments . ...... A, o [ ' (140) — —_
Total deferred tax liabilities ......... e (7,631) (4,348) (4,166)
Net deferred tax assets . ... ...c....ovvinernennons $16, 501 $ 7,264 $ 8,264

In assessing the reahzablhty of deferred tax assets, management cons:ders ‘whether it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will ot be realized. The’ ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable i income prior to the periods in which those
temporary differences such as loss carryforwards and tax credits expire. Management considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, if any (including the impact of available carryback and carryforward
periods), projected future taxable income, and tax-planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon
the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the
deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will )
realize the benefits of these deductible. differences at December 31, 2012. The amount of the deferred tax asset
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near ferm if estimates of future taxable income during
the carryforward period are reduced.:. : :

The following table sets forth the items aceounting for the difference between expected income tax
expense compared to actual income tax expense recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
(in thousands): : .

Years Ended December 31, '
2012 2011 2010
Expected income tax expense at 35% taxrate ................. . $583 $7,870 $7,897
State taxes, net of federal benefit .......................... 554 710 632
Stock-based compensation expense related to non-deductible stock
OPHOI EXPENSE . . . .ot i ittt et it @) 287 (288)

Disqualifying dispositions of stock options . .. ................. ' 237) 402)

Research tax credit ......... e R (621) (519) (366)
Prior year tax credit adjustment ................ e e 97 214)

Reserves for income tax eXposures . ... .........c.oeiin ..., - 431 — —
Other ...... S O T (40) - (311) (213)
Income tax expense . . ... .... ... e $ 760 $7,421 $7, 662

During 2010, the Company utilized 1ts remaJmng US federal net operatmg losses generated from tax
benefits related to the exercise of stock options. Tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options during
2012, 2011 and 2010 were $1.2 million, $3.3 million and $6.3 million, respectively. The Company did not
have a deferred tax. asset on its balance sheet for the tax benefits from these deductions. At December 31,
2012, the Company had approximately $3.2 million of foreign tax credits and federal and state research tax
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credit carryforwards dvailable to offset taxes payable. In addition, the Company had a deferred tax asset of
$62,000 available to offset future taxable income of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries. :

The Company and its subsidiaries file federal income tax returns and income tax returns in various states
and foreign jurisdictions. Tax years 2009 and forward remain open for examination for federal tax purposes: .
and tax years 2008 -and forward remain open for examination for the Company’s more significant state
tax jurisdictions. Te the extent utilized in future years’ tax returns, net operating loss and capital loss
carryforwards at December 31, 2012 will remain subject to examination until the respective tax year is closed.

Historically, the impact of foreign effective income tax rates on the Company’s ovérall ' effective in¢orie
tax rates has been immaterial due to the fact that the Company uses a cost plus basis method for calculating
taxek in most foreign tax jurisdictions in which the Company operates. A cost plus basis limits the taxes paid
in these foreign jurisdictions to-a markup of the costs that the Company incurs i these jurisdictions and is-not
tied to the actual revenues generated. A cost plus basis guarantees the foreign subsidiaries operating income
whereas foreign subsidiary resellers are not guaranteed a profit margin. However, due to the Company. .
acquiring four foreign partners and switching certain of its existing foreign subsidiaries from cost plus to
resellers entities, the foreign effective tax rate could become material in future years. As of December 31, -
2012, 2011 and 2010, the recorded foreign tax expense (benefit) and the related effect on the income tax rates
were ($2.9 million), or (376%), $18,000, or 0.23%, and $187,000, or 2.3%, respectively. o

“As a result of switching foreign subsidiaries to resellers, the Company recorded deferred tax assets of
$3.9 million and $200,000 as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. These deferred tax
assets are net operating losses incurred by the foreign subsidiary resellers. The losses have been incurred in
the countries of Australia, the Netherlands, South Africa, the United Kingdom, and Germany. The net ‘
operating losses can be carried forward indefinitely and can be used to offset future taxable income. As of
December 31, 2012, a valuation allowance has not been recorded on the foreign net operating losses; however,
the need for a valuation allowance will be evaluated in future periods. ' ’

FASB ASC 740 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for the financial statement’
recognition and'measurement of a tak position taken or expected-to be taken in a tax return. The Company = -
has identified uncertain tax positions related to certain tax credits and certdin state income tax apportionment -
that the Company currently believes meet the “more likely than not” recognition threshold to be sustained
upon examination. The balance of the reserve was approximately $2.1 million at December 31, 2012.

The Company accounts for uncertair income takes under FASB ASC 740. The Company recogmizes
financial statement benefits for positions taker for tax réturn purposés when it is more-likely-than-not that the”
position will be sustained. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the gross unrecognized tax
benefits is as follows (in thousands):

_ . 2012 2011

Unrecognized Tax Benefits at Beginning of Year .. ................ e $1,645 $1,127
Increase in balance due to current year tax position . .................... 283 320
Increase in balance due to prior year tax position ............. e 147 198
Increase in balance due to acquisitions . ........ [ R 56 ‘ —
Unrecognized Tax Benefits at End of Year .. .................... R €$2,131 $1,645

If recognized, the entire rémaining balance of unrecognized tax benefits would impact the -effective tax
rate. We recognize interest income, interest expense, and penalties relating to tax exposures as a component of
income tax expense. As of December 31, 2012, the Company recognized $68,000 of interest expense and
penalties related to the above unrecognized tax benefits. Over the next 12 months, we anticipate the total
amount of our unrecognized tax benefits to significantly change. During the second quarter of 2012, the
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) commenced an audit of the Company’s 2010 and 2011 income tax returns.
The Company expects the audit to be concluded by the end of the second quarter-of 2013. As of
February 2013, the IRS has informed the Company that no chariges will be made to’ the research and
development credits claimed on historical tax returns. ‘As a resilt, in the first quarter 6f 2013, the Company
will be recognizing its previously unrecogttized tax benefits related to research and development tax ‘credits
claimed in tax years prior to 2012, which-were initially reserved for financial statements-purposes.
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10. SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

- In accordanice with FASB ASC Topic 280, ‘Segment Reportzng, ‘the! Company views its operations‘and
manages its business as principally one segment which is intéraction management software applications
licensing and associated services: As a result, the financial ‘information disclosed hereifi represénts all of the
material financial information related to the Company’s principal opérating segment>< =" ' " - :

Revenues derived from customers and partners located in the United States accounted‘for approximately
63%, 63% and 67% of the Company’s total revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The remaining
revenues are from customers and partners located in foreign countries and each individual foreign country
accounted for less than 10% of total revenues in each of 2012, 2011 and 2010. The Company attributes . -
revenues to countries based on the country in which the customer or partner is located. Addrtronally, as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the percentage of the Company s net property and equlpment whrqh mcluded
computer and office equ1pment furniture and fixtures and leasehold unprovements that was located outside of
the United States increased to approxrmately 24% in 2012 from 15% in 2011 as a result of the ATIO and Bay
Bndge acquisitions. No more than 10% of the Company S net property and equ1pment was located m any
1nd1v1dual foreign country as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES st i Lo
Legal Proceedmgs ‘ o R

From time to time, the Company has recerved nouﬁcatlon from cotppetltors and other technology
providers claiming that the Company’s technology mfnnges their propnetary nghts. The Company cannot
assure you that these matters can be resolved amicably without litigation, or that the Company will be able to
enter into licensing arrangements on terms and ‘conditions that w0uld not havc a matenal adverse eifect on 1ts
business, financial condition or results of operations. . S S

From time to trme the Company is also. mvolved m certam lega.l p;oceedmgs in the ordmary course of
conducting its business. While the ultimate liability pursuant to these actions, cannot currently be determrned
the Company believes these legal proceedmgs will not have a material adverse effect on its, ﬁnancw.l posltlon ‘
or results of operations. Litigation in general, and intellectual property litigation in partlcular can be
expensive and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings
are difficult to predict.

Guarantees

.The Company provides indemnifications of varying scope and amount to certaln customers agarnst claJms
of intellectual property infringement made by third parties arising from the use of its products The
Company’s direct software license agreements, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 460, Guamntees include
certain provisions for indemnifying customers, in material compliance with their license agreement agamst
liabilities if the Company’s software products infringe upon a third party’s intellectual property rights, over the
life of the agreement. There is no maximum potential amount of future payments set under the gtlarantee
However, the typical arrangement states that the Company may at any time and at its option and expense: '

(i) procure the right of the customer to continue to use the Company’s software that may infringe a third
party’s rights; (ii) modify its software so as to avoid infringement; or (iii) require the custoier to return its
software and refund the customer the fee actually paid by the customer for its software less depreciation based
on a five-year straight-line depreciation schedule. The customer’s failure to provide timely notice:or-
reasonable assistance will relieve the Company of its obligations under this indemnification to the extent that :
it has been actually and materially prejudiced by such failure. To date, the Company has not incurred, nor
does 1t expect to incur, any material related costs and, therefore ‘has not reserved for such liabilities.

The Company’s software license agreements also 1nc1ude a warranty that its software products wr,ll ‘
substantially conform fo its software user documentation for a period of one year, provided the customer is in
material compliance with the software license agreement. To date, the Company has not incurred a.ny matenal
costs associated with these product warrantles and as such has not reserved for any such warranty liabilities
in its operating results. » « ‘ :

Lease Commitments and Other Contmgenczes , .
See Note 6 for further information on the Company s lease comrmtrnents ot e
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The Company has received and may continue to receive certain payroll tax credits and real estate tax
abatements that were. granted to the Company based ypon certain growth projections. If the Company’s actual
results are less than those projections, the Company may,be subject to repaymeqt of some or all of the tax -
credits or payment of additional real estate taxes in the case of the abatements. The Company does not believe
that it will be subject to payment of any meney related to these taxes; however, the Company cannot provxde
assurance as to the outcome. ‘

12. ACQUISITIONS B

Bay Bridge Acquisition

The Compan) entered into a stock purchase agreement effective August 1, 2012, with Bay Bndge '
Decision Technologles Inc. (“Bay Bridge™), a privately-held Maryland corporation. Pursuant to the terms of
the stock purchase agreement, the Company purchased 100% of Bay Bndge S outstandrng cap1ta1 stock for an
aggregate purchase price of $12.9 million, funded with cash-on-hand. The' Company depos1ted $1.3 milhon of
the purchase price into an escrow account to ensure funds are available to pay 1ndemmﬁcat10n claims, if any
The Company acquired Bay Bridge to broaden its workforce optimization portfolio of appllcatlons and to add
advanced, long-term contact center capacity planning and strategic analytics capabilities that supplement the
Company’s Interaction Optimizer® workforce management functionality. The acquisition was accounted for.
using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations
(“FASB ASC 805). The results of Bdy Bridge’s operanons were mcluded in the Cornpany s consohdated
financial statemerits commencing on the acqursrtrdn date '

The purchase price allocations for the Company s acqursmon of Bay Bridge were prepared by th?,
Company’s management utilizing a third-party valuation report, which was prepared in agcordance with, the
provisions of FASB ASC 805, and other tools available to the Company, including conversations w1th Bay
Bridge’s management and historical data from the Company s othet acquisitions. The following table
summarizes the fair value of the mtangrble and other assets acqulred and liabilities assumed at fhe date of the
acquisition (in thousands) :

C_mp
Cashand cashequivalents . . . ... ... . ..ttt $ 1,525
Accounts TECEIVADIE . . . . vttt e e 300
Property and eqQUIPMeNt, NEt . .. .. ... ..ottt . ' 147
Prepaid eXpenses . . ... ..oevvenaen i e eheenreaeead PP S {1
Deferred tax asset . ... ... FAP [P 443
Other assets . .. ................... IR e P REREEE 17
Intangible assets, net . .......... B P e e A 5650
GoodWill . ... R PP 7,716 ..
Total assets aCQUIrEd . . . . . .. oo vttt e e e 15,903
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .......... (142)
Accrued compensation and related expemses .. ... .. iie e e e e e (184)
Deferred tax liability .................. G e P L T (2,135)
Deferredrevenue . . ...........c.c'oo/iueevn il i i, (388)
Net assets acquired . . ............ A T L s128se
—_——

Professional fees recognized as of December 31 2012 totaled approxnnately $54 000, of which $23 000
was recognized during the fourth quarter of 2012, and included transaction costs such as legal, accounting,
and valuation services, which were expensed s incurréd. These costs are mcluded w1thin general and ’
administrative expenses on the consolidated' statements of operatlons o

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets acquued in the purchase or goodwﬂl was
primarily attributed to Bay Bridge’s existing client base. Included within goodwill is the assembled workforce,
comprised of 22 employees, which does not quahfy for separate recogmtron None of the goodwrll is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes. :



Intangible assets acquired resulting from acquisitions include customer:relationships, technology and
trademarks, which are amortized on a straight-line: basis. Thé' following sets ferth the intangible assets
acquired as part of the Bay Bndge acqutsmon and their economic useful life at the date of acquisition
(dollars in thousands) )

As of December 31, 2012 . Economic
Gross Accumulated Net Useful Life
Amount Amortization Amount (in years)
Customer relationships . . .......... e - $4,6300 ¢ 28138 - $4,492 14
Technology . .......... e ey 909 24 0 . - 885 16
Trademark ........ e e R 15 e g © 102 - 5
Total ................ S e 0 85650 - 81710 $5,479

Brightware Acquisition S ST R

The Company entered into a stock purchase agreement, dated as of Apr;l 1 2012 w1th Bnghtware B.V.
(“Brightware™), a reseller offenng sales, deployment and 1ntegrat10n serv1ces focused on the contact center,
market. Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the Company purchased 100% of Bnghtware s
outstanding’ capital stock for an aggrégate purchase price of $6.4 million, funded with cash-on-hand. The ¢
Company deposited $461,800 of the purchase price into -an. escrow :account to ensure funds are available to -
pay indemnification claims, if any. The Comipany acquired' Brightware as a continued part of its. strategy for -
growing existing operations. in key international markets. The acquisition was:accounted for using the
acquisition method of accounting in accordance: with FASB ASC 805:  The results: of Brightware’s operations
were included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements commencing on the acquisition date. ..

The purchase price allocations for the Company’s acquisition of Brightware were prepared by the
Company’s management utilizing a third-party valuation report, which was prepared in accordance with-the
provisions of FASB ASC 805, and other tools available to the Company, including conversations with = -
Brightware’s management and historical data from the Company’s other acquisitions. The followirig table - -
summarizes the fair value of the intangible and other assets acquired -and liabilities assumed-at the date of the '
acquisition (in thousands): . )

2012
Cash and cashequivalents . . . ........................ P e e 82143
Accountsreceivable ... ...... ... ... ... L i i P T 579
Prepaid expenses ......... R A P R A R AL T L - 28
Property and equipment, net - R U T S VY N S LI P 196
Intangible assets .. ................ P 1,456
Goodwill .......... e s s lee v ate e e e s L A P S SIS RTINS LIPEE A S 3,347
Total assets acquired--... . ... .... S e e el e e T i 1749
Accounts payable and accrued habrlmes N R KT AT S U 313
Accrued compensation and related expenses . ...................... e e e “(22)
Deferred tax liability . ......i..0vnitivnennen.: R S O . (983)
Deferred servicerevenue . . . .. ..........c.u.u... B NS TN A N (678)....
Net assets acquired . ......... e e e e e e e e e e e $6,379

Professional fees recognized-as of December 31, 2012 totaled approximately $172,000, with
approximately $15,000 recognized during the fourth quarter of 2012, and included transaction costs such as
legal, accounting, and valuation services, which were expensed as incurred. These costs are included within
general and administrative expenses on the consohdated statements of operatrons

1

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets acqurred in the purchase or goodwill, was -
primarily attributed to Brightware’s existing client base. Included within goodwill is the assembled workforce
comprised of 14 employees, which does not: quahfy for. separate recogmtron None of the goodwr]l is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.. fe T E P . : .
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The following sets forth the intangible asset acquired as:past of the- Bnghl:ware acqmsntxon and its
economic useful life at the date. of acquisition (dolhts in thousands): . . 3

b v Avvof Dedémber 31, 2012 Economic
Gross Accumulated Net” * * “Useful'Life’
Amount Amortization Amount (in years)
Customer relationships . . . ... AT S T $1,457 $60 $1,397 10

ATIO Acquisition ..

On January §, 2012, the Company closed its acquisition of certain assets of ATIO Corporation (Pty.) Ltd.
(“ATIO”), a reseller of its multichannel contact center solutions based in South Africa. Pursuant to the terms
of the asset purchase agreement, the Company purchased certain contact center assets of ATIO for
approximately $7 million, funded with cash-on-hand. The Company deposited $704,000 of the purchase price
into an escrow account to ensure funds are available to pay indemnification claims, if any. The Company
acquired the assets of ATIO as a continued part of its growth strategy to accelerate business in key
international markets. The acquisition was accounted for usmg the acquxsmon method of accountmg in
accordance with FASB ASC 805. The results of ATIO’s’ operatlons related to the acquued assets were, mcluded
in the Company’s consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements commericmg ori the acqulsmon date.

The purchase price allocatlons for the Company’s acqmsmnn of the ATIQ assets: were prepared by the
Company’s management utilizing a third-party valuation repost, which was prepared in accordance with the
provisions of FASB ASC 805, and other tools available. to the Company, including conversations with ATIO’s
management and historical data from the. Company:s. other acquisitions, The following table:sumumarizes the
fair value of the intangible and other a¥sets aaqumd and habthnes assumed at the date of the acquxsmon (in

thousands): DL s
January 5
. ‘ . i e . y 2012
Accounts receivable .. ...... i e v e e ey o $1,032
Property and equipment, net . ........ T S R .. 507
Prepaid €XpERses - . . ... ... o e e e e e e g s e b e e . 40,
Intangible assets, net ........... ey e G g e by e enge B i e d 2,303 .
GOoOAWIll . . oot e e e . 1 ¥
Total assets acquired . . . .. ... ... 8,399
Accrued compensation and related expenses .. ... ... ...l (164)
Deferred ServiCes TEVEIUES . . . . o v v vt v vt e e e et ittt et aeaee e e (1,151)
Net assets acquired . .. ........... e 0 $7,084

Professional fees recognized as of December 31, 2012 totaled approximately $34,000 and ineluded
transaction costs such as legal, accountmg, and valuation services, which were expensed as incurred. These
costs are included within general and admlmstratwe expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in the purchase, or. goodwill, was
primarily attributed to ATIO’s existing client base. Included within goodwill is the assembled. workforce,
comprised of 40 employees, which does not qualify for separate recognitien, None of the- goodwdl is expected
to be: deductible for tax purposes. et -

The following sets forth the intangible asset acquired as part of the ATIO acqu1s1t10n and its economic
useful life at the date of acquisition (dollars in thousands): .

- - As of December 31, 2012 Y Feonomic
] Grops . Accumulated Net Useful Life
A N " : Amortitation' . - ‘Amount (in years)
Customer relationships . ... ... 0 .. 0 v oo ied s 82233 B v$1‘23*‘i-f ‘$2,110 18 -

R Paft i,

CallTime Acquisition

The Company entered mto a stock purchase agreement dated as of July 1 2011 wnh CallTlme
Technology Sdn. Bhd., the ultimate parent company -of €allTimé Solutions Litd: (“CallTime”). CallTime is
based in Australia and New Zealend, and is an extlusive reseller of thd-Company’s: sohtions«Pursuant to the
terms of the stock purchase agreement, the Company purchased 100% of CallTime’s outstanding' capital stock
for an aggregate purchase price of $11.4 million, funded with cash-on-hand. The- Company deposited :

66



$2.1 million of the purchase price into an, escrow, account to ensure funds would be available to pay any -
indemnification claims. This escrow amount was released in four equal installments, with the first installment,;
released on-October. 1, 2011 andthe last installment released on. July 1, 2012:-The Company acquired,
CallTime as past of its growth strategy of. accelerating business in key international markets, CallTime was the
Company’s largest revenue-producing reseller in Australia and New Zealand from 2008 through 2010. The . |
acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 803. .
The results of CallTime’s operations were included in the Company s consolidated financial statements
commencing on the acquisition date. : -

The purchase price allocations for the Company s acqulsltlon of CallTxme were prepared by the ‘
Company’s management utilizing a thlrd-party valuation feport, which was prepared in accordance with the
provisions of FASB ASC 805, and other tools avallable to the Company, mcludmg conversatipns with .
CallTime’s management and historical data from the Company’s other acquisitions. The following table
summarizes the fair value of the intangible and other assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the
acquisition (in thousands):

July 1,
201
Cashand cashequivalents . . ........ ..., ... ... . . . . i iiiiiiinnnnnnns .. 8 2,106‘
Accounts receivable . ... ... ... e e e VOJ0n 5,790
Property and equipment, net ......... e e e e e e 419
Prepaid expenses . ... ...... .. ... i e 842
Intangible assets, met . ... ... ... e e 2,410
Goodwill ....................... N seae 9,197
Total assets acquired . ... .......... ...ttt OB oo ono.. 20,764
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ...................0 00 . . . 000, oL (353T)
Accrued compensation and related expenses ... ... ... ... ... X (3,133) -
Other liability, net . ... ... ... . i e (329
Deferred tax liability . ........ ... ... . S (123)
Deferred SEIVICE TEVENUE . . . . . . o o v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e A ¢ K140
Net assets acquired . ....... R R $11371

Professional fees recognized as of December 31, 2012 totaled approxnnalaely $186 000 and mcluded
transaction costs such as legal, accounting, valuation and other professional services, which were expensedas
incurred. These costs are included within general and administrative expenses on the consolidated statements
of operations.

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets-acquired in the purchase, or goodwill, was :
primarily attributed to CallTime’s existing client-base. Included within goodwill is the assembled workforce,
comprised of 21 employees, which does not qualify for separate recognition. None of. the goodwill is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

The followmg sets forth the mtanglble asset acquxred as part of the CallTune acqulsmon and 1ts
economic useful life at the date of acquisition (dollars in thousands):

As of December 31, 2012

Economic
Gross Accumulated Net Useful Life
Amount Amortization Amount (in years)

Customer relationships .............. o $2,410 $303 $2107 12

Agori Acqutsztlon

The Company entered into a stock purchase agreement dated as-of. February 28 2011 w1th Agon
Communications GmbH (“Agori”), 'a Frankfurt, Germany-based reseller of the Company’s solutions. Pursuant
to the terms of the stock purchase agreement, the Company purchased .100% of Agori’s outstanding capital
stock for an aggregate purchase price of $4.9 million, including $808,000 related to-the working capital of ..,
Agori, funded with cash-on-hand. The Company- deposited $493,000. of the purchase price into an .escrow ..
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account to ensure funds would be available to' pay any indemnification claims. These funds were distributed to
the former shareholders in February 2012. The Company acquired Agori as part of its growth strategy of
accelerating business in key international markets, inchuding Germany, the fourth largest economy in the
world. The acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with
FASB ASC 805, and-the results of Agori’s operations were included in the Company’s condensed consolidated
financial statements commencing on the February 2011 acquisition date. -

The purchase price allocations for the Company’s acquisition of Agori were prepared by the Company’s
management utilizing a third-party valuation report, which was prepared in accordance with the provisions of
FASB ASC 805, and other tools available to the Company, including convé,rsatio‘ns‘ with Agori’s management
and historical data from the Company’s other acquisitions. The following table summarizes the fair value of
the intangible and other assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition (in thousands):

- February 28,
2011

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . ... ...ttt e $ 815
ACCOUDES TECEIVADIE .« .« « v v v et e e ettt et e et ettt et et 1,098
Prepaid €XPEnses . . . .. ..ot e 288
Property and equipment, MEt . . ... ...... ...t 123
Other @SSELS, MEL . . . v v v vt et e et oo ettt et et ee e ot e 221
Intangible assets, DEt . . .. .. .. ... 2,670
GOOAWHIL . o o oo e e e e e e e e e 2,344

Total assets aCQUITEA . . . . o o oot vttt e e e 7,559
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .. ............. ... . i (812)
Accrued compensation and related expenses . ........... o0 e : (102)
Contingent liability .............. ..oy N (370)
Deferred tax liability . ... ... ... ..ot (801)
Deferred SEIVICES TEVENUES . . . . v v v vttt ie e tn s ea s te s tiea e N (548)

Net assets ACQUITEA . . . . o vt vt e ee ettt e $4,926

Professional fees recognized as of December 31, 2012 totaled approximately $391,000 and included
transaction costs such as legal, accounting, valuation and other professional services, which were expensed as
incurred. These costs are included within general and adminijstrative expenses on the consolidated statements
of operations. : :

The premium paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in the purchase, or goodwill, was
primarily attributed to Agori’s existing client base. Included within goodwill is the assembled workforce,
comprised of 16 employees, which does not qualify for separate recognition. None of the goodwill is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes. ‘ ' '

The following sets forth the intangible asset acquired as part of the {_Xgori acquisition and its economic
useful live at the date of acquisition (dollars in thousands): ' ' ‘

As of December 31, 2012

Economic
Gross Accumulated Net Useful Life
) ‘ : Amount Amortization Amount (in years)
Customer relationships . . ................:...  $2,670 $469 $2,201 10

In accordance with the stock purchase agreement with Agori, the Company agreed to make contingent
earn-out payments based upon pre-defined terms. The Company estimated the earn-out payments will total
approximately $370,000 to be paid over two and a half years. from the acquisition date. A corresponding
liability-has been recorded. for this amount. Payments totaling approximately $152,000 were paid in 2012
related to this earn-out. In corinection with EASB-ASC 805, the fair value of any contingent consideration is
established at the acquisition date and included in the total purchase price. The contingent consideration is
then adjusted to fair value as an increase. or-décrease’ in current earnings in each reporting period.
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Pro Forma Results

‘We have not fum:shed pro forma ﬁnan01al information related to our Bay Bridge, Brightware, ATIO,
CalfTime or Agon acquisitions becauSe such information is not material individually or in the aggregate to the
overall’ ‘financial results ‘of the Company '

Gooadwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table presents a roll forward of goodwill as of December 31, 2012 (in thousands)

Balance ds of December 31, 2001 ... ... ... ... . . ... ..., $22,696

ATIO 800AWIll .. .o oot ettt ettt e e 4,392
Brightware goodwill . .. ............ ... ... .. .......... e ... 3491
Bay Bridge goodwill ............................... . PONUREEEN & 5T
Deferred tax adjustment . . . ... e F 428
Balance as of December 31,2012 . ... ... .. F R '$38,723

The Company performed a goodwill impairment test as of November 30, 2012 and concluded that no
impairment existed. As there were no changes in facts and circumstances that indicated that the fair value of
the reporting unit may have been below its carrying amount, no additional impairment tests were performed
during in December of 2012.

13. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

There are no accounting standards that have been issued but not yet adopted that we believe will have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

14. UNAUDITED SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected quarterly data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
This information has been derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company that, in
management’s opinion, reflect all recurring adjustments necessary to fairly present the Company’s financial
information when read in conjunction with its consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. The results
of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

2012
Quarter Ended
Mar. 31, June 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
Totalrevenues . .............couuirurnnn.. $52,768 $54,781 $59,274 $70,542
Grossprofit ...............cc .. 35,267 35,708 38,910 47,893
Operating income (Ioss) . ... ................. 276 (1,807) (915) 3,529
Netincome (10SS) ............0viuenun... 189 (1,108) (445) 2,270
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic ......... ... ... ., $ 0.01 $ (0.06) $ 0.02) $ 012
Diluted . ........... ... ..., 0.01 (0.06) (0.02) 0.11
Shares used to compute net income (loss) per share
Basic ....... ... ... e 19,099 19,213 19,283 19,367
Diluted . . ...... ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... 20,020 19,213 19,283 20,308
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2011

Quarter Epded,

" Mar. 31,

Jume3o,  Sep.3,  _ Dec3l,

Total revenues . .- ....... LT T
Gross profit . .......... i 32,505

Operating income . .. ........c.cccveeeeneenns 4,922
Netincome .............cooouininnnnn. _ 3,095

Net income per share:

Shares used to compute net income per share:

BasiC . .. it 18,417

Diluted . . .......... i 19,780
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$51,981 . . 852,140 857,675
35,822 34,779 40,995
5490, 4,685 . 6544

3,827 3,281 4,595
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+ - Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc, Cee
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
ﬁor the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and ;oy) |

e e Balanceat edio‘ | S L
S S AT Begimiﬁlgof R(ikv:;gneand Reduction of Balarice at -

Descvlpﬁlm L LIRS sty Peried Expmses net : Allowiiﬁce“" " End of Period
Allowance for Donbtful Accounts Recclvable R :

2012 ... ..., e Aol ek T $1\,718000 $ 397000 $ 531 ;000 $1,584,000
2010 e 1, 148,000 1,590,000 1,020,000 1,718,000

2010 @94000? 1,259,000 1,205,000 1,148,000

[a A

1 Uncollectlble actounts: wrltfen off, hét of recoveries.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE,:, . .. ., i pty ool

Not applicable,, - - S B N
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures. that are designed to ensure that information requ1red
to be disclosed by us in the reports filed by us under the Exchange Act is (a) recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods spegified;in the SEC’s rules;ang: forms, and. (b) accumulated and
commuynicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal | ﬁnanclal oﬁcers, to allow
timely decnsmns regardmg required d;sclosures We canned out an evaluanon, under the’ suPerv1s1on and with the
participation of our management, mcludlng opr ¢ President and Ch1ef Executlve Oﬂieer (prmmpal executive officer)
and our Chief Financia] Officer (pnnc1pal financial officer and prmc1pa1 accounting oﬂicer) of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2012, pursuant to Rule
13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our President and:Chief Executive ‘Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

P RO

(b) Management’s Repdrt on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Interactive Intellxgence Group, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsiblc fot e‘stabhshmg
and maintaining adequate intérnal contrql over financial reporting for the Company. Internal cont:ol ovet
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securmes Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, as a process. dcs1gned by, or, under the supervision of, the Company $ prlnclpal _
executive and prmmpal financial ofﬁcers and effected by the Company’s ‘Board of Dlrectors, management and
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regardmg the reliability of financial reporting. and the
preparation of consolidated financial sta}ements for external reporting purposes in accordange: with-accounting
principles generally accepted in the Umted States of America and includes: those policies ‘and proccdures that:

e Pertain to the maintenance of'records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reﬂect the

DR N

transactions and dispositions of:the Company’s assets; PR

+  Provide reasonable assutance that transactions are recorded as necessal'y to peﬁmt preparauon of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that the
Company’s recéipts-and expenditures are bemg made only in accordance w1th authonzanons of its
management and directors; and SRR R

Provide reasonable assurance regarding, prevennon or t1me1y detectlon of unauthonzed ‘acquisition,
use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a matcrlal effect on the consohdatqd

financial statements. CL SRty

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are sub_]ect 10 thie risk that’
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comphance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management (with the participation and under the supervision of the Company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers) conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the
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Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the frantework in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Grgamzaﬁons of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).
Based on this evaluation and the ¢fiteria il Inférrial Control — Integrated F. Fakigwdrk issued by COSO,
mapagemegt congluded that the Company’s intérnal cohitrol over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2012:The Company’s. independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, has audited
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 3b; 2012, as, stated
in their report dated March 18, 2013 which is includcd in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

(c) Changes in Intemal Control over Fmancml, R@portmg
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reportmg that occurred during the
quarter ended December 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,

oyr mternal control over ﬁnanc1a1 reportmg

(d) Attestation Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accountinﬁ Firm

Wb

A S
3.\9.

See Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm report in Item 8§ of this Annual Repoxt orv Forni 10-K.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART .

S

ITEM 10. DmEC'mRs EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPGRATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Ttem coricerning our- direbtors ‘afid executive officérs, audit committe¢
members and ﬁnanc1a.l expert, code of ethics. disclosure of delinquent Sectlon 16 filers and shareholder’
director nommaﬁon procedures is mcorporated heréin by réference from our Pfoxy Statément ‘for the Annual

Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the SEfC’ no later than 120 days after December 31 2012

1

The followmg is the cu:rent blogtaphlcal mfonnatlon with respect to our dmectors and our

executive officers:

ot ExepuﬂveOQqers ) e L

Board of Directors . -
Donald E. Brown, M.D.. fDonaldE Brown,M,D S n
Chairman of the Board, President ,and Chief ~ Chairman of the Board, Pres;dent and
Executive Officér o AChxef Executive’ Oﬁcer :

Richard G. Halperm +

Former Chief Executive Officer of Coherent
Networks Intérhiational Inc. -

(GIS software company)

Edward L. Hamburg ** -
Advisory Partner; Morgan Stanley Expansxon
Capital; Eormer Executive Vice President of,

Corporate Operations, Chief Financial Officer andi

Corporate Secretary of SPSS Inc. (provider of
predictive analytlcs softwane technology
and services)

Michael C. Helm A

Corporate Vice President and Global Chief
Information Officer, Wthlpool Corporatlon
(manufacturing company) o )

Mark E. Hill +* '

Managing Partner, Collina Ventures LLC
(private 1nvestn}ent company)

Richard A, Reck *+

President, Business Strategy Advisors LLC

e

(business strategy consultancy) - RRY

*  Member-of Audit Commiftee .

" "Marketing -

Gary R. Blough

‘ Executlve Vice Presuient Worldwrde Sales

" William J. Gildea 0f
“Semor Vice President, Corporate Development

- Stephen R Head
" Chief Financial Officer, Sénior Vice Presidént, Finance
.- and Administration, Secretary and Treasurer

- Hans 'W. Heltzel'
.. Vice President, Services

Pamela J. Hynes

.. Vice President, Clien . Success and Educaqon

Joseph A. Staples: -
Chief Marketmg Ofﬁcer Semor Vlce Pres1dent

S

+ Member of Compensation and Stock Optwn Commmee
A Member of Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The mfonnauon required by this Item concernmg ,remunerauon of our exccuuve oﬂicers and directors,
material transactions involving such executive officers and directors and Compensation Committee interlocks,
as well as the Compensation Committee Report and the Compensatlon Discussion and Analysis, are
incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be
filed with the SEC no later than 120 days _aftzr December 31 2012.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item concerning the stock ownership of management, five percent
beneficial owners and securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is incorporated
herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the
SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2012.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. -

The information required by this Item concerning certain relationships and:related person transactions,
and director independence is incorporated herein by reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with thé SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2012.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

. : :
The information required by this Item concerning the fees and services of our independent registered
public accounting firm and our Audit Committee actions with respect thereto is incorporated herein by
reference from our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed w1th the SEC no later
than 120 days after December 31, 2012. ' ‘ '

PART IV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCI-IEDTJLES.
1. Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set forth under Item_ 8 of .this Annuel Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts is set forth under Itenj 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. ‘

All other schedules are omitted because they are either not required, not applicable, or the required
information is otherwise shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Notes thereto or
Schedule I — Valuation and Quantifying Accounts.
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3. Exhibits

The following documents are filed as Exhibits to this Annual Report,on Form :10-K or incosporated by . -
reference herein and, pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the General Rules and Regulatlons promulgated by the SEC
under the-Exchange Act, reference is made:to' such dotuments as previously filed as exhibits with the SEC.

INDEX TQ EXHIBITS
Exhibit © 7 Ineorporated by Refererice Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date HereWIth
2.1 Agréement and Plan of T S4/A - Atinéx T to the 4/27/2011
Reorganization, dated April 11, 2011, (Régmtratmn o Proxy Statement/
by..and among Interactive ... No.333-173435) . Prospectus,
Intelligence, Inc., Interactive s ( .
Intelligence Group, Inc., and
ININ Corp. L _ ; .
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the S-4/A Annex II to the 4/27/2011
Company, as currently in effeet - . (Regiswration  Proxy Statement/-:, " -, - :
No. 333-173435) ;""" Prospectus ' iy
3.2  By-Laws of the, Company, as . - - S-4/A . . Annex HItothe 4/27/2011
currently in effect - .. (Registration ,  Proxy Statement/ .
. L No. 333-173435) : . Prospectus .
10.1  * Assumption and General 8-K 10.1 7/6/2011

Amendment of Company Plans; N
dated as of July 1, 2011, between

Initeractive Intelligence, Inc. and ,

Intetactive Intelligence Group, Inc.

10.2  * Assumption of Non-Employee 8-K 102 ., . 7/6/2011
Director Change of Control '
Agreements, dated as of July 1,

2011, between Interactive
Intelligence, Inc. and Interactlve
Intelligence Group, Inc. - A

10.3  *Form of Assignment, Assumption, 8-K 10.3 7/6/2011
Consent and Amendment to Change
of Control and Retention Agreement, - -
dated as of July 1, 2011, by and
among Interactive Intelligence, Inc.,
Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.
and each of Gary R. Blough, William
J. Gildea III, Stephen R. Head, Hans
W. Heltzel, Pamela J. Hynes and
Joseph A, Staples

104  Asset Purchase Agreement dated as 8K+ - 10.6 4/23/2007
of April 17, 2007 between the
Company and Alliance Systems, Ltd.
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Exhibit
Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

S I : R |

. Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Filed

Form

- Exhibit -

. Filing Date Herewith

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Patent License Agreement, dated
December 31, 2004, between the
Company and AudioFAX IP LLC
(confidential treatment has been
granted for certain portions of this
exhibit, and accordingly, those
portions have been omitted from
this exhibit and filed separately
with the Securities and

Exchange Commission)

*Employment, Non-Disclosure and

Non-Competition Agreement between J

the Company and Gary R. Blough,
dated May 26, 2006

*Employment Agreement between
the Company and Stephen R. Head,
dated November 3, 2003

*(i) Employment Agreement between
the Company and Pamela J. Hynes
dated November 4, 1996 and the
First Amendment to Employment
Agreement between the Company -
and Pamela J. Hynes dated RN
February 23, 2000 L

*(ii) Letter of Assignmeﬁt between

.the Company and Pamela J. Hynes,

dated as of January 2, 2007

*Employment Agreement between
the Company and Hans W. Heltzel,
dated January 31, 2001

(i) Office Lease, dated April 1, 2001,
between the Company and
Duke-Weeks Realty Limited
Partnership (Exhibits thereto will be
furnished supplementally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission
upon request)

(ii) Lease Modiﬁcation Agreement,
dated September 19, 2001, between
the Company and Duke-Weeks

Realty Limited Partnership (Exhibits -

thereto will be furnished
supplementally to the Securities and
Exchange Commission upon request)

10-K+

8-K+

10-K+

10-Q+

10-K+
10-K+

10-K+

10-K+

75

- 10.8 .

. 106

Co10a1

1013

10.20
. 10410

-+ 10.16(1)

- 10.16(i1)

3/28/2005

5/31/2006

3/25/2004

5/12/2004

- 3/15/2007

©3/16/2011

3/17/2008

3/17/2008



Exhibit
Number

INDEX:TO EXHIBIFS

Exhibit Description

Incorporated by Reference

Filed:

ot Form

 Exhibit -

Filing Date Herewith

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20
10.21

10.22

(iif) Third Lease Amendment, dated
June 19, 2007, between the Company
and Duke Realty Limited Partnership
(formerly Duke-Weeks Realty
Limited Partnership)

(iv) Fourth Lease Amendment, dated
March 14, 2008, between the
Company and Duke Realty Limited
Partnership (formerly Duke-Weeks
Realty Limited Partnership)

Amended 1999 Stock Option and
Incentive Plan, as currently in effect

*Form of Agreement for Incentive
Stock Options under 1999 Stock
Option and Incentive Plan

*Form of Agreement for
Nongqualified Stock Options under
1999 Stock Option and

Incentive Plan

*Form of Indemnity Agreement
between the Company and each of its
directors and executive officers

Amended Outside Directors Stock
Option Plan, as currently in effect

*Form of Agreement for Outside
Directors Stock Option under Outside
Diréctors Stock Option Plan

*Employment Agreement dated
January 3, 2005 between the
€Company and Joseph A. Staples

*Summary of Certain Director and
Executive Officer Compensation

*Amended Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, as currently in effect

*401(k) Savings Plan, as amended

*2006 Equity Incentive Plan, As
Amended May 20, 2010

* Restricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement Under 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan

8-K+

10-Q+

10-K+

10-K+

10-K+

S-1/A+

10
10.16

103

10.21:

10.22 -

10.23 .

(Registration
No. 333-79509)

DEF 14A+ Appendix A

10-Q+

8-K+

8-K+

10-Q
8-K+

10-K+ -

76

© 1024

1025

10.28

10.1

1033

10.18

6/25/2007

5/12/2008

3/17/2008

3/17/2008

3/17/2008

7f14/1999

4/8/2004

11/15/2004

1/6/2005

1/5/2006

5/9/2012
572472010

3/16/2011



INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit ; Co ‘ L Incorporated by Reference , " Filed
Number = " ‘Exhibit Description - ' Form - ~ Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
10.23  *Form of Incentive Stock Option: - - . 8-K+ 10.35 212212007

Agreement under 2006 Equity
Incentive Plan

10.24  *Form of Nonqualified Stock Option‘ . 8K+ 10.36 2/22/2007
Agreement under 2006 Equity T
‘ Incentlve Plan

10.‘25 ' *Form of Non—Employee Director 10-Q+ 10.37 8/9/2007
" Stock Option Agreement under 2006 :
Equity Incentive Plan :

10.26 = *Form of Non-Employee Director 10-Q+ 10.38 8/9/2007
Change of Control Agreement ;
10.27 *Employment Non-Disclosure and 10-K+ S 10.40 ' 3/16/2010

Non-Competitor Agreement dated |
March 4, 2008 between the Company
" and William J. Gildea, ITI

10.28 *Form of Change of Control and 8-K+ 10.5 3/17/2006
Retention Agreement by and between :
the Company and each of Stephen R.
Head, Joseph A. Staples, Pamela J.
Hynes, Gary R. Blough, William J.
Gildea IIT and Hans W. Heltzel

21 Subsidiaries of the Company as of December 31, 2012 ’ ‘ ; _ X
23 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Flrm X

31.1  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the - X
- Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the \ ‘ X .
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1  Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as X
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
322  Certification of the Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as X

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101  The following materials from Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.’s Annual Report on X
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (1) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (2) the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income, (3) the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, (4) the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity, (5) Financial
Statement Schedule II, and (6) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The indicated exhibit is a management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed
by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

The indicated exhibit was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by Interactive Intelligence,
Inc. (SEC File No. 000-27385). On July 1, 2011, Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc. became the
successor issuer to Interactive Intelligence, Inc.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this,report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonz.cd.

Interactive Intelligence Group, Inc.
(Registrant) -

Date: March 18, 2013 : By: /s/ Stephen R. Head

Stephen R. Head .
Chief Financial Officer, Semor Vice Prestdent of
Finance and Admmtstratwn, Secretary and Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES ‘ " CAPACITY © " DATE
/s/ Donald E. Brown, M.D. Chairman of the Board of Directors, Premdent ‘ March 18, 2013
Donald E. Brown, M.D. Chief Executive Officer ' co

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Stephen R. Head Chief Financial Officer, Senior'Vice PrQSident of March 18, 2013
Stephen R. Head Finance and Administration, ' '

Secretary and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer and Pnncnpal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ Richard G. Halperin Director - . March 18, 2013
Richard G. Halperin R ’

/s/ Edward L. Hamburg, Ph. D. Director o ‘ ‘ Mprch 18, 2013
Edward L. Hamburg, Ph. D. ' T B e

/s/ Mark E. Hill Director . " March 18, 2013
Mark E. Hill - '

/s/ Michael C. Heim Director c March 18, 2013
Michael C. Heim ' ' S

/s/ Richard A. Reck Director ' a ' ’ ' © ‘March 18, 2013
Richard A. Reck ' ' o
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